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Forward-Looking Statements

This Report contains statements which constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933 and Section 2 1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These statements are based on many assumptions and estimates and
are not guarantees of future performance.: Our actual results may differ materially from those projected in any forward-looking
statements, as they will depend on many factors about which we are unsure, including many factors which are beyond our control.
The words “may,” “would,” “could,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,” and “estimate,” as well as similar
expressions, are meant to identify such forward-looking statements. Potential risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to
those described below under “Risk Factors.”
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PART I
Item 1. Business

SCBT Financial Corporation (the “Company”) is a South Carolina corporation headquartered in Columbia, South Carolina. Known
as First National Corporation until February 2004, SCBT Financial Corporation was established in 1985 and is a bank holding
company. The Company operates principally through three wholly owned subsidiaries: South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A.
(organized in 1934), South Carolina Bank and Trust of the Piedmont, N.A. (organized in 1996), and SunBank, N.A. (organized in
2000). The Mortgage Banc, Inc. (organized in 2004) is a wholly owned subsidiary of South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. The
Company’s common stock is listed and traded on The NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “SCBT”.

SCBT Financial Corporation’s subsidiaries provide a full range of retail and commercial banking services, mortgage lending services,
trust and investment services, and consumer finance loans through forty-two financial centers in fifteen South Carolina counties, and
have served South Carolinians for over seveénty years. At December 31, 2005, SCBT Financial Corporation had $1.9 billion in assets,
$1.5 billion in loans, $1.5 billion in deposits, $148.4 million in shareholders’ equity, and a market capitalization of $290 million.

SCBT Financial Corporation began its operations in 1934 in Orangeburg, South Carolina and has maintained its ability to provide
superior local service while at the same time leveraging its size to offer many products more common to super-regional banks. SCBT
Financial Corporation has pursued a strategy of growth that relies primarily upon organic growth, supplemented by the acquisition of
select financial institutions or branches in some market areas.

In July 2003, South Carolina Bank and T.:rust of the Pee Dee, N.A., formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
merged with South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. in order to achieve operating efficiencies.

In February 2004, South Carolina Bank énd Trust, N.A. purchased the Denmark, South Carolina branch of Security Federal
Bank, including premises and equipment,*‘ performing loans and deposits. At the time of the transaction, South Carolina Bank
and Trust, N.A. vacated its existing leased Denmark office, moving its operations to the newly acquired banking facility.

In March 2004, South Carolina Bank and!Trust, N.A. sold its Cameron, South Carolina branch, including premises, equipment
and certain deposits, to Farmers and Merchants Bank of South Carolina and recognized a pre-tax gain of $782,000.

In September 2004, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. opened two loan production offices — a Summerville service facility,
just north of Charleston, South Carolina, wwhmh was afterward granted a branch charter to provide full service banking to its
customers, and an additional Fort Mill, South Carolina office serving the Tega Cay community near Charlotte, North Carolina.

In December 2004, South Carolina Bank ‘and Trust, N.A. opened a facility in Hilton Head, South Carolina, convertmg a loan
production office to full service branch status. -

In April 2004, The Mortgage Banc, Inc. (“TMB”) was incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of South Carolina Bank and
Trust, N.A. TMB focuses on providing mortgage products and services to other financial institutions and mortgage companies in
South Carolina and some out-of-state markets TMB’s offices and personnel are located in the Company’s headquarters facility
in Columbia, South Carolina.

In April 2005, SCBT Financial Corporation continued its expansion in the western portion of the State with its acquisition of New
Commerce BanCorp and its subsidiary, New Commerce Bank, into the Company’s lead subsidiary South Carolina Bank and Trust,
N.A. The acquisition provided South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. with two new branches in Simpsonville and Greenville, South
Carolina, both located in one of the fastest growmg markets in the stdte.

In April 2005, the Company formed SCBT Capital Trust I and SCBT Capital Trust II for the purpose of issuing an aggregate
of $20,000,000 of trust preferred securltges In July 2005, the Company formed SCBT Capital Trust 111 for the purpose of
issuing an aggregate of $20,000,000 of trust preferred securities.

In May 2005, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. purchased Devine Mortgége, a small South Carolina mortgage originator.
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In November 2005, SCBT Financial Corporation expanded its footprint farther up the South Carolina coast with the acquisition of
Sun Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiary, SunBank, N.A. SunBank, N.A. will act as a third subsidiary of SCBT Financial Corporation
until March 24, 2006, at which time it will be merged into the Company’s lead subsidiary, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. The
acquisition provides South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. with two additional branches in Murrells Inlet and Georgetown. SunBank’s
third property, a loan production office, is located in Myrtle Beach.

In February 2006, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. opened a loan production office in Charleston, South Carolina. In April
2006, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. is scheduled to open a second loan production office in Charleston, South Carolina.

The Company’s principal executive offices are located at 520 Gervais Street, Columbia, South Carolina 29201. The Company’s
mailing address at this facility is PO Box 1030, Columbia, South Carolina 29202 and its telephone number is (800) 277-2175.

Available Information

SCBT Financial Corporation’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are
accessible at no cost on our website, www.scbandt.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after those reports have been electronically
filed or submitted to the SEC. These filings are also accessible on the SEC’s website, www.sec.gov. In addition, SCBT Financial
Corporation makes available on www.scbandt.com (i) its Corporate Governance Guidelines, (ii) its Code of Conduct & Ethics, which
applies to its directors and all employees, and (iii} the charters of the Audit, Management Resources & Compensation, and Corporate
Governance & Nominating Committees of its Board of Directors, These materials also are available free of charge in print to
shareholders who request them by writing to: Financial Management Division, SCBT Financial Corporation, 520 Gervais Street,
Columbia, South Carolina 29201. SCBT Financial Corporation also makes available through its website statements of beneficial
ownership of SCBT Financial Corporation’s equity securities filed by its directors, officers and 10% or greater shareholders under
Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, The information on our website is not incorporated by reference into this report.

Territory Served and Competition

At the end of 2005, South Carolina Bank & Trust, N.A. conducts its business from thirty-four financial centers in twelve South
Carolina counties. South Carolina Bank and Trust of the Piedmont, N.A. conducts its business from six financial centers in two South
Carolina Counties. SunBank N.A. conducts its business from three financial centers in two South Carolina counties. In certain of their
markets, the three banks (the “Banks™) encounter strong competition from several major banks that have a preponderance of the
deposit market share for the commercial banking industry in their service areas and in South Carolina generally.

Several competitors have substantially greater resources and higher lending limits than the Banks and they offer certain services for
their customers that the Banks do not offer. In addition to commercial banks, savings institutions and credit unions, the Banks
compete for deposits and loans with other financial intermediaries and investment alternatives, including mortgage companies, credit
card issuers, leasing companies, finance companies, money market mutual funds, brokerage firms, governmental and corporation
bonds, and other securities. Many of these non-bank competitors are not subject to the same regulatory restrictions as the Company
and many have substantially greater resources than the Company.

The banking and financial services industry is highly competitive, and the Company’s profitability depends principally upon its ability
to compete in its market areas. In the Company’s market areas, it faces competition from national, super-regional, smaller community
banks, and non-traditional internet based banks, as well as non-bank financial services companies. The Company encounters strong
competition both in making loans and attracting deposits. Competition among financial institutions is based, in part, upon interest
rates offered on deposit accounts, interest rates charged on loans and other credit and service charges. Customers also consider the
quality and scope of the services rendered, the convenience of banking facilities and, in the case of loans to commercial borrowers,
relative lending limits. Customers may also take into account the fact that other banks offer different services. Many of the large
national and super-regional banks against which the Company competes have significantly greater lending limits and may offer
additional products; however, the Company’s management believes that SCBT Financial Corporation has been able to compete very
effectively with other financial institutions, regardless of their size, by emphasizing customer service and by providing a wide variety
of services. Additionally, most of the Company’s non-bank competitors are not subject to the same extensive state and federal
regulations that govern bank holding companies and federally insured banks. Competition within the financial services industry
continues to increase as a result of consolidation among firms, thus allowing greater lending limits and expanded footprints.
Competition may further intensify if additional financial services companies enter markets in which we conduct business or if we
enter mature markets as part of our expansion plan.

As a banking holding company, the Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from its subsidiaries. The Company coordinates
the financial resources of the consolidated enterprise and thereby maintains financial, operation and administrative systems that allow
centralized evaluation of subsidiary operations and coordination of selected policies and activities. The Company’s operating
revenues and net income are derived primarily from cash dividends received from its subsidiary.
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Employees

As of December 31, 2005, the Company s SubSIdlaI‘leS had 590 full-time equivalent employees compared to 513 as of the same date in
2004. The three acquisitions in 2005 prov1ded 44 of the additional employees. The Company considers its relationship with its
employees to be excellent. The employee benefit program that the Company provides includes: group life, health and dental
insurance, paid vacation, sick leave, educational opportunities, a cash incentive plan, a stock purchase plan, stock incentive and
deferred compensation plans for officers and key employees, a deﬁned benefit pension plan for employees hired prior to or on
December 31, 2005, and a 401(k) plan.

Regulation and Supervision

The following discussion sets forth some of the material elements of the regulatory framework applicable to financial holding
companies and bank holding companies and their subsidiaries and provides some specific information relevant to us. The regulatory
[framework is intended primarily for the protection of depositors and the Bank Insurance Fund and not for the protection of security
holders and creditors. To the extent that the following information describes statutory and regulatory provisions, it is qualified in its
entirety by reference to the particular statutory and regulatory provisions.

General
I

The current regulatory environment for financial institutions includes substantial enforcement activity by the federal banking
agencies, the U.S. Department of Justice, the Securities and Exchange Commission and other state and federal law enforcement
agencies, reflecting an increase in activity 'over prior years. This environment entails significant potential increases in compliance
requirements and associated costs. A number of banking institutions have recently been subject to enforcement actions as well as
settlements involving, among other thmgs cease and desist orders, written agreements, deferred prosecutions and payments of
monetary penalties.

The Company is a "bank holding company" registered with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal
Reserve Board") and is subject to the supervision of, and to regular inspection by, the Federal Reserve Board. Each Bank is organized
as a national banking association and subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency (the "OCC"). In addition, the Company and each Bank is subject to regulation (and in certain cases examination) by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC"), other federal regulatory agencies and the South Carolina State Board of
Financial Institutions (the "State Board"). The following dlscusswn summarizes certain aspects of banking and other laws and
regulations that affect the Company and its subsuhanes [,,
Under the Bank Holding Company Act (the ;{’BHC Act"), the Company's activities and those of its subsidiaries are limited to banking,
managing or controlling banks, furnishing 'services to or performing services for its subsidiaries, or any other activity which the
Federal Reserve Board determines to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident
thereto. The BHC Act requires prior Federal Reserve Board approval for, among other things, the acquisition by a bank holding
company of direct or indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting shares or substantially all the assets of any bank, or
for a merger or consolidation of a bank holding company with another bank holding company. The BHC Act also prohibits a bank
holding company from acquiring direct or indirect control of more than 5% of the outstanding voting stock of any company engaged
in a non-banking business unless such business is determined by the Federal Reserve Board to be so closely related to banking as to
be a proper incident thereto. Further, under South Carolina law, it is unlawful without the prior approval of the State Board for any
South Carolina bank holding company (i) to acquire direct or indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting shares of
any bank or any other bank holding company, (ii) to acquire all or substantially all of the assets of a bank or any other bank holding
company, or (iil) to merge or consolidate wigh any other bank holding company.

The Graham-Leach-Bliley Act amended a number of federal banking laws affecting the Company and the Banks. In particular, the
Graham-Leach-Bliley Act permits a bank holding company to elect to become a "financial holding company,” provided certain
conditions are met. A financial holding company, and the companies it controls, are permitted to engage in activities considered
"financial in nature" as defined by the Graham-Leach-Bliley Act and Federal Reserve Board interpretations (including, without
limitation, insurance and securities activities), and therefore may engage in a broader range of activities than permitted by bank
holding companies and their subsidiaries. The Company has determined to remain a bank holding company but may at some future
date seek to become a financial holding company

Interstate Banking

In July 1994, South Carolina enacted legislation which effectivelyf‘provided that, after June 30, 1996, out-of-state bank holding
companies may acquire other banks or bank holding companies in South Carolina, subject to certain conditions. Further, pursuant to
the Riegel-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the "Interstate Banking and Branching Act"), a bank
holding company became able to acquire banks in states other than its home state, beginning in September 1995, without regard to the
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permissibility of such acquisition under state law, subject to certain exceptions. The Interstate Banking and Branching Act also
authorized banks to merge across state lines, thereby creating interstate branches, unless a state, prior to the July I, 1997 effective
date, determined to "opt out" of coverage under this provision. In addition, the Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act
authorized a bank to open new branches in a state in which it does not already have banking operations if such state enacted a law
permitting such "de novo" branching. Effective July 1, 1996, South Carolina law was amended to permit interstate branching but not
de novo branching by an out-of-state bank. The Company believes that the foregoing legislation has increased takeover activity of
South Carolina financial institutions by out-of-state financial institutions.

Obligations of Holding Company to its Subsidiary Banks

Under the policy of the Federal Reserve Board, a bank holding company is required to serve as a source of financial strength to its
subsidiary depository institutions and to commit resources to support such institutions in circumstances where it otherwise might not
desire or be able to do so. Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA"), to avoid
receivership of its insured depository institution subsidiary, a bank holding company is required to guarantee the compliance of any
insured depository institution subsidiary that may become "undercapitalized" within the terms of any capital restoration plan filed by
such subsidiary with its appropriate federal banking agency up to the lesser of (i) an amount equal to 5% of the institution's total
assets at the time the institution became undercapitalized, or (ii) the amount which is necessary (or would have been necessary) to
bring the institution into compliance with all applicable capital standards as of the time the institution fails to comply with such
capital restoration plan.

In addition, the "cross-guarantee” provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as amended ("FDIA"), require insured depository
institutions under common control to reimburse the FDIC for any loss suffered or reasonably anticipated by the FDIC as a result of
the default of a commonly controlled insured depository institution or for any assistance provided by the FDIC to a commonly
controlled insured depository institution in danger of default. The FDIC's claim for damages is superior to claims of shareholders of
the insured depository institution or its holding company but is subordinate to claims of depositors, secured creditors and holders of
subordinated debt (other than affiliates) of the commonly controlled insured depository institutions.

The FDIA also provides that amounts received from the liquidation or other resolution of any insured depository institution by any
receiver must be distributed (after payment of secured claims) to pay the deposit liabilities of the institution prior to payment of any
other general or unsecured senior liability, subordinated liability, general creditor or shareholder. This provision would give
depositors a preference over general and subordinated creditors and shareholders in the event a receiver is appointed to distribute the
assets of the Banks.

Any capital loans by a bank holding company to any of its subsidiary banks are subordinate in right of payment to deposits and to
certain other indebtedness of such subsidiary bank. In the event of a bank holding company's bankruptcy, any commitment by the
bank holding company to a federal bank regulatory agency to maintain the capital of a subsidiary bank will be assumed by the
bankruptcy trustee and entitled to a priority of payment.

Under the National Bank Act, if the capital stock of a national bank is impaired by losses or otherwise, the OCC is authorized to
require payment of the deficiency by assessment upon the bank's shareholders, pro rata, and if any such assessment is not paid by any
shareholder after three months notice, to sell the stock of such shareholder to make good the deficiency.

Capital Adequacy

The various federal bank regulators, including the Federal Reserve Board and the OCC, have adopted risk-based capital requirements
for assessing bank holding company and bank capital adequacy. These standards define what qualifies as capital and establish
minimum capital standards in relation to assets and off-balance sheet exposures, as adjusted for credit risks. Capital is classified into
tiers. For bank holding companies, Tier ! or "core” capital consists primarily of common and qualifying preferred shareholders'
equity, less certain intangibles and other adjustments ("Tier 1 Capital"). Tier 2 capital consists primarily of the allowance for possible
loan losses (subject to certain limitations) and certain subordinated and other qualifying debt ("Tier 2 Capital”). A minimum ratio of
total capital to risk-weighted assets of 8.00% is required and Tier 1 Capital must be at least 50% of total capital. The Federal Reserve
Board also has adopted a minimum leverage ratio of Tier 1 Capital to adjusted average total assets (not risk-weighted) of 3%. The 3%
Tier 1 Capital to average total assets ratio constitutes the leverage standard for bank holding companies and national banks, and is
used in conjunction with the risk based ratio in determining the overall capital adequacy of banking organizations.

The Federal Reserve Board and the OCC have emphasized that the foregoing standards are supervisory minimums and that an
institution would be permitted to maintain such levels of capital only if it had a composite rating of "1" under the regulatory rating
systems for bank holding companies and banks. All other bank holding companies are required to maintain a leverage ratio of 3% plus
at least 1% to 2% of additional capital. These rules further provide that banking organizations experiencing internal growth or making
acquisitions will be expected to maintain capital positions substantially above the minimum supervisory levels and comparable to peer
group averages, without significant reliance on intangible assets. The Federal Reserve Board continues to consider a "tangible Tier 1
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leverage ratio” in evaluating proposals for expanswn or new activities. The tangible Tier 1 leverage ratio 1s the ratio of a banking
organization's Tier 1 Capital less all intangibles, to total assets, less all intangibles. The Federal Reserve Board has not advised the
Company of any specific minimum leverage ratio applicable to it. As of December 31, 2005, the Company, South Carolina Bank and
Trust, N.A., South Carolina Bank and Trust of the Piedmont, N.A. and SunBank, N.A. had leverage ratios of 8.58%, 7.88%, 8.16%,
and 12.96%, respectively, and total risk adjusted capital of 11.45%, 10.90%, and 11.86% and 15.96%, respectively.

FDICIA, among other things, identifies five capital categories for insured depository institutions (well capitalized, adequately
capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly Undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized) and requires the respective Federal
regulatory agencies to implement systems for "prompt corrective action" for insured depository institutions that do not meet minimum
capital requirements within such categories. FDICIA also imposes progressively more restrictive constraints on operations,
management and capital distributions, depending on the category in which an institution is classified. Failure to meet the capital
guidelines could also subject a banking institution to capital raising requirements. An "undercapitalized" bank must develop a capital
restoration plan and its parent holding company must guarantee that bank's compliance with the plan (see "Obligations of Holding
Company to its Subsidiary Banks," above). In addition, FDICIA requires the various regulatory agencies to prescribe certain non-
capital standards for safety and soundness relating generally to operations and management, asset quality and executive compensation
and permits regulatory action against a financial institution that does not meet such standards.

The various regulatory agencies have adopted substantially similar regulations that define the five capital categories identified by
FDICIA, using the total risk-based capital, Tier 1 risk-based capital and leverage capital ratios as the relevant capital measures. Such
regulations establish various degrees of corrective action to be takeh when an institution is considered undercapitalized. Under the
regulations, a "well capitalized" institution must have a Tier 1 capital ratio of at least 6%, a total capital ratio of at least 10%, a
leverage ratio of at least 5% and not be subject to a capital directive order. An "adequately capitalized” institution must have a Tier 1
capital ratio of at least 4%, a total capital ratio of a least 8% and a leverage ratio of at least 4% (or 3% in some cases). Under these
guidelines, each Bank is considered well capitalized.

Banking agencies have also adopted final regulations which mandates that regulators take into consideration (i) concentration of credit
risk, (ii) interest rate risk (when the interest rate sensitivity of an institution's assets does not match the sensitivity of its liabilities or its
oft-balance-sheet position), and (iii) risks from non-traditional activities, as well as an institution's ability to manage those risks, when
determining the adequacy of an institution's capital. That evaluation will be made as a part of the institution's regular safety and
soundness examination. In addition, the bankmg agencies have amended their regulatory capital guidelines to 1ncorporate a measure
for market risk. In accordance with the amended guidelines, if the Company and the Banks weré to engage in significant trading
activity (as defined in the amendment) they must incorporate a measure for market risk in their respective regulatory capital
calculations effective for reporting periods after January 1, 1998.

Payment of Dividends

The Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from its subsidiaries, and the Company's funds for cash distributions to its
shareholders are derived primarily from dividends received from the Banks. Each Bank is subject to various general regulatory
policies and requirements relating to the payment of dividends. Any restriction on the ab111ty of the Banks to pay dividends will
indirectly restrict the ability of the Company to pay dividends.

The approval of the OCC is required if the total of all dividends declared by a national bank in any calendar year w1ll exceed the total
of its retained net profits for that year combined with its retained net profits for the two preceding years, less any required transfers to
surplus. In addition, national banks can only pay dividends to the extent that retained net profits (including the portion transferred to
surplus) exceed statutory bad debts in excess of the bank's allowance for loan losses. Further, if in the opinion of the OCC a bank
under its jurisdiction is engaged in or is about to engage in an unsafe or unsound practice (which, depending on the financial condition
of the bank, could include the payment of dividends), the OCC may require, after notice and a hearing, that such bank cease and desist
from such practice.- The OCC has indicated that paying dividends that deplete a national bank's capital base to an inadequate level
would be an unsafe and unsound banking practice. The Federal Reserve Board, the OCC and the FDIC have issued policy statements,
which provide that bank holding companies and insured banks should generally only pay dividends out of current operating earnings.

In addition to the foregoing, the ability of.the Company and the Banks to pay dividends may be affected by the various minimum
capital requirements and the capital and non-capital standards established under FDICIA, as described above. The right of the
Company, its shareholders and its creditors to participate in any distribution of the assets or earnings of its subsidiaries is further
subject to the prior claims of creditors of the Company's subsidiaries.




Certain Transactions by the Company and its Affiliates

Various legal limitations place restrictions on the ability of the Banks to lend or otherwise supply funds to the Company and its
affiliates. The Federal Reserve Act limits a bank's "covered transactions," which include extensions of credit, with any affiliate to
10% of such bank's capital and surplus. All covered transactions with all affiliates cannot in the aggregate exceed 20% of a bank's
capital and surplus. All covered and exempt transactions between a bank and its affiliates must be on terms and conditions consistent
with safe and sound banking practices, and banks and their subsidiaries are prohibited from purchasing low-quality assets from the
bank's affiliates. Also, the Federal Reserve Act requires that all of a bank's extensions of credit to an affiliate be appropriately secured
by acceptable collateral, generally United States government or agency securities. In addition, the Federal Reserve Act limits covered
and other transactions among affiliates to terms and circumstances, including credit standards, that are substantially the same or at
least as favorable to a bank holding company, a bank or a subsidiary of either as prevailing at the time for transactions with
unaffiliated companies.

Insurance of Deposits

As FDIC-insured institutions, the Banks are subject to insurance assessments imposed by the FDIC. Under current law, the insurance
assessment to be paid by FDIC-insured institutions is as specified in a schedule required to be issued by the FDIC that specifies, at
semi-annual intervals, target reserve ratios designed to increase the FDIC insurance fund's reserve ratio to 1.25% of estimated insured
deposits (or such higher ratio as the FDIC may determine in accordance with the statute) in 15 years, Further, the FDIC is authorized
to impose one or more special assessments in any amount deemed necessary to enable repayment of amounts borrowed by the FDIC
from the United States Department of the Treasury. The actual assessment to be paid by each FDIC-insured institution is based on the
institution's assessment risk classification, which is determined based on whether the institution is considered "well capitalized,"
"adequately capitalized” or "undercapitalized”, as such terms have been defined in applicable federal regulations, and whether such
institution is considered by its supervisory agency to be financially sound or to have supervisory concerns (see "Capital Adequacy"
above). As a result of the current provisions of federal law, the assessment rates on deposits could increase over present levels. Based
on the current financial condition and capital levels of the Banks, the Company does not expect that the current FDIC risk-based
assessment schedule will have a material adverse effect on the Banks' earnings in 2006.

International Money Laundering Abatement and Financial Anti-Terrorism Act of 2001

On October 26, 2001, the President signed the USA Patriot Act of 2001 into law. This act contains the International Money
Laundering Abatement and Financial Anti-Terrorism Act of 2001 (the "IMLAFA™). The IMLAFA contains anti-money laundering
measures affecting insured depository institutions, broker-dealers and certain other financial institutions. The IMLAFA requires U.S.
financial institutions to adopt new policies and procedures to combat money laundering and grants the Secretary of the Treasury broad
authority to establish regulations and to impose requirements and restrictions on financial institution's operations. The Company has
adopted policies and procedures to comply with the provisions of the IMLAFA.

Other Laws and Regulations

Interest and certain other charges collected or contracted for by the Banks are subject to state usury laws and certain federal laws
concerning interest rates. The Banks' operations are also subject to certain federal laws applicable to credit transactions, such as the
federal Truth-In-Lending Act, which governs disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers, the Community Reinvestment Act
requiring financial institutions to meet their obligations to provide for the total credit needs of the communities they serve (which
includes the investment of assets in loans to low- and moderate-income borrowers), the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975
requiring financial institutions to provide information to enable the public and public officials to determine whether a financial
institution is fulfilling its obligation to help meet the housing needs of the community it serves, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act
prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed or other prohibited factors in extending credit, the Fair Credit Reporting Act of
1978 governing the use and provision of information to credit reporting agencies, the Fair Debt Collection Act governing the manner
in which consumer debts may be collected by collection agencies, and the rules and regulations of the various federal agencies
charged with the responsibility of implementing such federal laws. The deposit operations of the Banks also are subject to the Right to
Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to maintain confidentiality of consumer financial records and prescribes procedures for
complying with administrative subpoenas of financial records, and the Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E issued by the
Federal Reserve Board to implement that act, which govern automatic deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts and
customers' rights and liabilities arising from the use of automated teller machines and other electronic banking services.

From time to time, bills are pending before the United States Congress and in the South Carolina state legislature which in certain
cases contain wide-ranging proposals for altering the structure, regulation and competitive relationships of financial institutions.
Among such bills are proposals to prohibit banks and bank holding companies from conducting certain types of activities, to subject
banks to increased disclosure and reporting requirements, to alter the statutory separation of commercial and investment banking, and
to further expand the powers of banks, bank holding companies and competitors of banks. It cannot be predicted whether or in what
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form any of these proposals will be adopted or the extent to which the business of the Company and its subsidiaries may be affected
thereby.

Fiscal and Monetary Policy

Banking is a business that depends largely én interest rate differentials. In general, the difference between the interest paid by a bank
on its deposits and its other borrowings, and the interest received by a bank on its loans and securities holdings, constitute the major
portion of many banks' earnings. Thus, the earnings and growth of the Company will be subject to the influence of economic
conditions generally, both domestic and forelgn and also to the monetary and fiscal policies of the United States and its agencies,
particularly the Federal Reserve Board. The Federal Reserve Board regulates the supply of money through various means, including
open-market dealings in United States govei‘nment securities, the discount rate at which banks may borrow from the Federal Reserve
Board, and the reserve requirements on dep051ts The nature and tlmmg of any changes in such policies and their impact on the
Company cannot be predicted.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

These are general risk factors affecting SCBT Financial Corporation. Additional visks and uncertainties not currently known to the
Company or that the Company currently deems to be immaterial also may materially and adversely affect our business operations.
Any of these risks could materially and adversely affect the business, f nancial condition or results of operation. In such cases, you
may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Affecting SCBT Financial Corjporation

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to‘mterest payments made on deposits and borrowings relative to interest earned on assets
and other investments; net interest income may decrease.

The profitability of the Company is largely dependent on net interest income. This is determined by the differences in volume yields
or interest rates on and difference in income eaming products such as interest-earning assets and interest bearing liabilities. The
Company is exposed to changes in general interest rate levels and other economic factors beyond its control. Conditions in which net
interest income may be reduced can occur if more interest-earning assets than interest-bearing liabilities reprice or mature during a
time when interest rates are declining or more interest-bearing liabilities than interest-earning assets reprice or mature during a time
when interest rates are rising.

The Company is also exposed to the differénce in short and long-term interest rates. If the difference between short-term and long-
term interest rates shrink or disappear, the difference between rates paid on deposits and received on loans could narrow significantly,
thus decreasing our net interest income. In addition to these factors, if market interest rates rise rapidly, interest rate adjustment caps
may limit increases in the interest rates on adjustable rate loans, thus reducing the Company’s net interest income. Also, certain
adjustable rate loans reprice based on laggmg interest rate indices; This lagging effect may also negatively affect our net interest
income when general interest rates continuelto rise periodically.

|
SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to reduced profitability from increases in some loan prepayments and some prepayments
of loans underlying mortgage backed securities.
Prepayment rates are affected by consumer behavior, conditions in mhe housing and financial markets, general economic conditions
and the relative interest rates on fixed-rate and adjustable-rate mortgage loans. Changes in prepayment rates are therefore difficult to
predict. Recognition of deferred loan origination costs and premiums paid in originating these loans are normally recognized over the
contractual life of each loan. As prepayments occur, the rate at which net deferred loan origination costs and premiums are expensed
accelerates. The effect of the acceleration of deferred costs and premium amortization may be mitigated by prepayment penalties paid
by the borrower when the loan is paid in full within a certain period of time, which varies between loans. If prepayment occurs after
the period of time when the loan is subject to a prepayment penalty, the effect of the acceleration of premium and deferred cost
amortization is no longer mitigated. The Company recognizes premiums it pays on mortgage-backed securities as an adjustment from
interest income over the life of the security based on the rate of repayment of the securities. Acceleration of prepayments on the loans
underlying a mortgage-backed security shortens the life of the security, increases the rate at which premiums are expensed and further
reduces interest income. The Company may not be able to reinvest loan and security prepayments at rates comparable to the prepaid
instrument particularly in a period of declining interest rates.

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to‘changes in interest rates.

The Company is unable to predict changes jin market interest rates, which are affected by many factors beyond its control including
but not limited to inflation, recession, unemployment money supply, monetary policy, and other changes that affect financial markets
both domestic and foreign. Our net interest income is affected not only by the level and direction of interest rates, but also by the
shape of the yield curve and relationships between interest sensitive instruments and key driver rates, as well as balance sheet growth,
client loan and deposit preferences and the timing of changes in these variables. In the event rates increase, the Company’s interest
costs on liabilities may increase more rapidly than its income on interest earning assets and a deterioration of net interest margins
could ensue. As such, fluctuations in interest rates could have significant adverse effects on our financial condition and results of
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operations, including, without limitation, by decreasing the value of mortgage servicing rights. The initial and ongoing valuation and
amortization of mortgage servicing rights is significantly impacted by interest rates, prepayment experience and the credit
performance such items.

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to loss from adjustable rate loans and loans with optional payment characteristics.

The Company’s loan portfolio currently contains approximately one-third optional payment characteristics. These loans provide the
consumer with several payment options each month and may result in monthly payments being lower than the amount of interest due
on the loan. Any unpaid monthly interest is added to the loan balance and results in negative amortization and as a corollary, an
increased loan balance. Loans such as these provide the consumer with the ability to reduce their initial loan payment and limit the
amount of annual increase in the required monthly payment. If a loan negatively amortizes in the initial years, the consumer must
make the payments up in the later years of the loan. A potential repayment risk ensues if the consumer is unable to meet the higher
payment or repay the loan through refinancing or sale of the underlying property.

Periodically, the Company may sell these loans in the secondary market. Secondary market illiquidity could have an adverse effect on
our earnings. Currently, there are no regulatory limitations on this type of loan product. Any regulatory limitation may affect the
mortgage and residential real estate markets. If this were to happen, the ability to grow our portfolio at historic rates may be
impacted.

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to the possibility of having inadequate allowance for loan losses, which would reduce its
earnings.

The Company is exposed to the risk that its customers will be unable to repay their loans according to their terms and that any
collateral securing the payment of their loans will not be sufficient to assure full repayment. Credit losses are inherent in the lending
business and could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s operating results and its ability to meet obligations. The volatility
and deterioration in foreign and domestic markets may also increase our risk for credit losses. The Company’s loan portfolio
composition, with loans primarily secured by real estate, reduces loss exposure. The Company evaluates the collectibility of its loan
portfolio and provides an allowance for loan losses that is believed to be adequate based on a variety of factors including but not
limited to: the risk characteristics of various classifications of loans, previous loan loss experience, specific loans that have loss
potential, delinquency trends, estimated fair market value of the collateral, current economic conditions, the views of the Company’s
regulators, and geographic and industry loan concentrations. If the evaluation is incorrect and borrower defaults cause losses
exceeding the allowance for loan losses, the Company’s earnings could be significantly and adversely affected. No assurance can be
given that the allowance will be adequate to cover loan losses inherent to our portfolio. The Company may experience losses in its
loan portfolios or perceive adverse conditions and trends that may require the Company to significantly increase its allowance for loan
losses in the future, a decision that would reduce earnings.

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to higher credit risk by commercial real estate, commercial business, and construction
lending.

Commercial real estate, commercial business and construction lending usually involve higher credit risks than that of single-family
residential lending. These types of loans involve larger loan balances to a single borrower or groups of related borrowers. Commercial
real estate loans may be affected to a greater extent than residential loans by adverse conditions in real estate markets or the economy
because commercial real estate borrowers’ ability to repay their loans depends on successful development of their properties, as well
as the factors affecting residential real estate borrowers. These loans also involve greater risk because they generally are not fully
amortizing over the loan period, but have a balloon payment due at maturity. A borrower’s ability to make a balloon payment
typically will depend on being able to either refinance the loan or sell the underlying property in a timely manner.

Risk of loss on a construction loan depends largely upon whether the Company’s initial estimate of the property’s value at completion
of construction equals or exceeds the cost of the property construction (including interest) and the availability of permanent take-out
financing. During the construction phase, a number of factors can result in delays and cost overruns. If estimates of value are
inaccurate or if actual construction costs exceed estimates, the value of the property securing the loan may be insufficient to ensure
full repayment when completed through a permanent loan or by seizure of collateral.

Commercial business loans are typically based on the borrowers’ ability to repay the loans from the cash flow of their businesses.
Such loans may involve greater risk because the availability of funds to repay each loan depends substantially on the success of the
business itself. In addition, the collateral securing the loans may depreciate over time, be difficult to appraise and liquidate and
fluctuate in value based on the success of the business.

Commercial real estate, commercial business and construction loans are more susceptible to a risk of loss during a downturn in the
business cycle. The underwriting, review and monitoring performed by the Company’s employees, officers, and directors cannot
eliminate all of the risks related to these loans.




SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to the effect of negative events in certain geographic areas.
Negative conditions in the real estate markets where collateral for the Company’s mortgage loans are located could adversely affect
the Company’s borrower’s ability to repay; and the value of the collateral. SCBT Financial Corporation is fully exposed to the
negative effects of real estate values, which are affected, by various fictors, including but not limited to changes in general or regional
economic conditions, governmental rules or policies and natural disasters such as hurricanes or floods.

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to competition with other financial institutions.

The banking and financial services industry is very competitive. Legal and regulatory developments have made it easier for new and
sometimes unregulated competitors to compete with us. The financial services industry has and is experiencing an ongoing trend
towards consolidation in which fewer large national and regional banks and firms are replacing many smaller and more local banks
and firms. These larger firms hold a large accumulation of assets. These larger institutions have significantly greater resources and a
wider geographic presence or greater accessibility. In some instances, these banks operate without the traditional brick and mortar
facilities that restrict geographic presence. Some competitors are able to offer more services, more favorable pricing or greater
customer convenience than we do. In addition, competition has grown from new banks and other financial services providers that
target our existing or potential customers. As consolidation continues among large banks, the Company expects additional smaller
institutions to try to exploit its markets.

Technological developments have allowed competitors, including some non-depository institutions, to compete more effectively in
local markets and have expanded the range of financial products, services and capital available to the Company’s target customers. If
the company is unable to implement, maintdin and use such technolegies effectively, it may not be able to offer products or achieve
cost-efficiencies necessary to compete in th1s industry. In addition, some of these competitors have fewer regulatory constraints and
lower cost structures.

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to the Sfailure of our technology

The Company relies on its computer systems and outside service providers and their technology, for much of its business, including
recording the Company’s assets and liabilities. If computer systems .or outside technology sources fail, are not reliable or there is a
breach of security, the Company’s ability to maintain accurate financial records may be impaired, which could materially affect
operations and financial condition. ‘

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to the services of its management team and employees.

The Company is dependent upon the ab111ty and experience of a number of key management personnel who have substantial
experience with our operations, the ﬁnanc1a1 services industry and the markets in which the Company offers services. It is possible
that the loss of the services of one or more of the Company’s senior executives or key managers would have an adverse effect on
operations. The Company’s success also depends on its ability to continue to attract, manage and retain other qualified middle
management personnel as it grows. We cannot assure you that we will continue to attract or retain such personnel.

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to the fact that additional capital resources may be needed in the future and the fact that
these capital resources may not be available when needed or at all.

The Company may need to incur additional debt or equity financing in the future to make strategic acquisitions or investments or for
future growth. No assurance can be given that such financing will be available to the Company on acceptable terms or at all.

Risks Relating to Legal and Regulatoﬁy Matters

SCBT Financial Corporation is subject to extensive regulation that could restrict its activities and impose financial requirements
or limitations on the conduct of our business and limit our ability to receive dividends from the Banks.

The Company is subject to regulation from, the Federal Reserve Board. Our Banks are subject to extensive regulation, supervision
and examination by the OCC which are their primary federal regulator, and by the FDIC, which insures their deposits. As a member
of the FHLB, the Bank must also comply with applicable regulations of the Federal Housing Finance Board and the FHLB.
Regulation by these agencies is intended primarily for the protection of our depositors and the deposit insurance fund and not for the
benefit of our shareholders. The Banks’ activities are also regulated under consumer protection laws applicable to our lending, deposit
and other activities. A sufficient claim against us under these laws could have a material adverse effect on our results,

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to changes in the regulation of financial services companies.

Proposals for further regulation of the financial services industry are continually being introduced in the Congress of the United States
of America and the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina. The agencies regulating the financial services industry also
periodically adopt changes to their regulations. Proposals that arel now receiving a great deal of attention include regulation of
government sponsored entities. It is possible that one or more legislative proposals may be adopted or regulatory changes may be
made that would have an adverse effect on the Company.




SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to negative public opinion, which could damage our reputation and adversely affect
earnings.

Reputational risk is the risk to the Company’s operations from negative public opinion. Negative public opinion can result from the
actual or perceived manner in which the Company conducts its business activities, including but not limited to the following: sales
practices, practices in origination and servicing operations and retail banking operations, management of actual or potential conflicts
of interest and ethical issues, and protection of confidential customer information. Negative public opinion can adversely affect the
Company’s ability to keep and attract customers and can expose the Company to litigation.

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to changes in accounting standards that could impact reported earnings.

The accounting standard setters, including the FASB, SEC and other regulatory bodies, periodically change the financial accounting
and reporting standards that govern the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements. These changes can be hard to
predict and can materially impact how it records and reports its financial condition and results of operations. In some cases, the
Company could be required to apply a new or revised standard retroactively, resulting in the restatement of prior period financial
statements. ‘

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to declines in the value of qualified pension plan assets or unfavorable changes in laws or
regulations that govern pension plan funding, which could require the Company to provide significant amounts of funding for its
qualified pension plan.

The Company does expect to make material cash contributions to its qualified defined benefit pension plan in the near and long term.
A significant decline in the value of qualified pension plan assets in the future or unfavorable changes in laws or regulations that
govern pension plan funding could materially change the timing and amount of required pension funding. As a result, the Company
may be required to fund its qualified defined benefit pension plan with a greater amount of cash from operations, perhaps by an
additional material amount. Also, recognition of an additional minimum liability caused by changes in pension plan assets or
measurement of the accumulated benefit obligation could have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. As of
December 31, 2005 the Company’s qualified pension plan assets exceed its accumulated benefit obligation by $109,000.

Other Risk Factors

SCBT Financial Corporation may make future acquisitions, which could dilute current shareholders’ ownership of the
Company’s stock and may cause the Company to become more susceptible to adverse economic events.

On a regular and ongoing basis, the Company reviews and evaluates other business and opportunities for business combinations that
would be strategically beneficial. As a result, we may be involved in negotiations or discussions that, if they were to result in a
transaction, could have a material effect on the Company’s financial conditions including short and long term liquidity or results of
short or long term operations.

Future business acquisitions could be material to the Company and it may issue additional shares of common stock to pay for those
acquisitions, which would dilute current shareholders’ ownership interest. Acquisitions also could require the Company to use
substantial cash or other liquid assets or to incur debt. In those events, it could become more susceptible to economic downturns and
competitive pressures.

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to difficulties in combining the operations of acquired entities with the Company’s own
operations, which may prevent the Company from achieving the expected benefits from its acquisitions.

The Company may not be able to achieve fully the strategic objectives and operating efficiencies in an acquisition. Inherent
uncertainties exist in integrating the operations of an acquired entity. In addition, the markets and industries in which the Company
and its potential acquisition targets operate are highly competitive. The Company may lose customers or the customers of acquired
entities as a result of an acquisition. The Company also may lose key personnel, either from the acquired entity or from itself, as a
result of an acquisition. The Company may not discover all known and unknown factors when examining a company for acquisition
during the due diligence period. These factors could produce unintended and unexpected consequences for the Company.
Undiscovered factors as a result of acquisition, pursued by non-related third party entities, could bring civil, criminal, and financial
labilities against the Company, its management, and the management of those entities acquired. These factors could contribute to the
Company not achieving the expected benefits from its acquisitions within desired time frames, if at all.

SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to a volatile stock price.

The Company’s stock price has been volatile in the past, and several factors could cause the price to fluctuate substantially in the
future. These factors include but are not limited to: actual or anticipated variations in earnings, changes in analysts’ recommendations
or projections, the Company’s announcements of developments related to its businesses, operations and stock performance of other
companies deemed to be peers, new technology used or services offered by traditional and non-traditional competitors, news reports
of trends, concerns, irrational exuberance on the part of investors, and other issues related to the financial services industry. The
Company’s stock price may fluctuate significantly in the future, and these fluctuations may be unrelated to the Company’s
performance. General market declines or market volatility in the future could adversely affect the price of the Company’s common
stock, and the current market price may not be indicative of future market prices.
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SCBT Financial Corporation is exposed to conditions or assumptions different from the judgments, assumptions or estimates used
in the Company’s critical accounting policies, the accuracy of our financial statements and related disclosures could be affected.

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosure in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, or GAAP, requires management to make judgments, assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts
reported in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Our critical accounting policies, which are described in
this document, describe those significant accounting policies and methods used in the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements that are considered “critical” because they required judgments, assumptions and estimates that materially impact the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. As a result, if future events differ significantly from the
judgments, assumptions and estimates in our critical accounting policies, such events or assumptions could have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.’

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commenjts

None

Item 2. Properties

In January 2003, the Company relocated its ‘executive headquarters td a new four-story facility at 520 Gervais Street, Columbia, South
Carolina. The lead branch in the Midlands. region of South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. also moved into the 57,000 square foot
building. The main offices of South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. are located at 950 John C. Calhoun Drive, S.E., Orangeburg,
South Carolina in a four-story facility with 48,000 square feet of space for operating and administrative purposes. South Carolina
Bank and Trust, N.A., which also owns twenty-five other propertles iand leases eleven properties, all of which are used, substantially,
as branch locations or for housing other operatlonal units.

South Carolina Bank and Trust of the Piedmont, N.A. owns a 12,000 square foot office building that serves as its main office located
at 1127 Ebenezer Road, Rock Hill, South Carohna The bank owns two additional properties and leases three others, which are used
as branches and loan production offices.

SunBank, N.A. operates from three prdberties. SunBank, N.A. owns the 10,000 square foot main office building that is
located on a land-lease lot at 4210 Highway 17 Bypass, Murrells Inlet, South Carolina. It also owns the Georgetown
branch facility that is located on a land- lease lot, and it leases a loan production office in Myrtle Beach.

Although the properties owned and leased are generally considered adequate, there is a continuing program of modernization,
expansion, and as needs materialize, occasional replacement of facilities.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Neither the Company nor any of its subs{diaries is a party to, nor is any of their property the subject of, any material pending
legal proceedings, other than ordinary routme proceedings incidental to its business as of December 31, 2005, and the date of
this Form 10-K.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to 4 Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of shareholders in the fourth quarter of 2005.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

(a.) The table below describes historical information of the Company’s common equity securities:

Stock Performance & Statistics

2005 2004

2003 2002 2001
Stock Performance
Dividends per share $ 0.68 % 065 § 063 $§ 054 § 0.50
Dividend payout ratio 34.29% 36.66% 33.98% 33.71% 32.63%
Dividend yield (based on the average of
the high and low for the year) 2.14% 2.06% 2.45% 2.42% 3.32%
Price/earnings ratio (based on year-end stock
price and diluted earnings per share) 16.46x 19.52x 15.70x 13.45x 11.07x
Price/book ratio (end of year) 1.95x 2.27x 2.05x 1.78x 1.44x
Common Stock Statistics
Stock price ranges:
High $ 3489 § 3738 $ 3067 § 2796 % 18.83
Low 28.53 25.60 20.52 16.73 11.26
Close 33.42 33.57 28.58 22.86 16.71
Volume traded 2,202,700 1,711,500 1,436,000 2,049,200 837,900
As a percentage of average shares outstanding 27.09% 21.23% 17.81% 25.46% 10.35%
Earnings per share, basic $ 205 % 1.74 § 183 § 1.72  § 1.51
Earnings per share, diluted 2.03 1.72 1.82 1.71 1.51
Book value per share 17.17 14.77 13.91 12.85 11.57
Quarterly Common Stock Price Ranges and Dividends
2005 2004 2003
Quarter High Low Dividend High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
Ist $ 33250 $§ 28530 § 017018 31667 $§ 28762 $ 0.162]$ 26667 $§ 20524 § 0.152
2nd $ 32000 $ 28810 § 0170 | $§ 31.143 § 25600 $§ 0.162}18 26752 § 23486 § 0.152
3rd $ 3480 §$ 3135 $ 0170|% 30762 § 25810 $ 0.162|S 27971 § 23857 § 0.162
4th $ 34340 § 30980 $ 0170 {$ 37381 $ 28086 $ 0.162]$ 30667 $ 26333 § 0.162

Share data have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to a 10% common stock dividend paid to shareholders of record on November 22, 2002 and a 5%

common stock dividend paid to shareholders of record on December 20, 2004,

As of March 10, 2006, the Company had issued and outstanding 8,671,091 shares of Common Stock which were held of record by
approximately 5,400 persons. The Company’s Common Stock is traded on The NASDAQ National Market under the symbol

“SCBT”.

The Company pays cash dividends to its shareholders from its assets, which are provided primarily by dividends paid to the
Company by its subsidiaries. Certain restrictions exist regarding the ability of the Company’s subsidiaries to transfer funds to
the Company in the form of cash dividends, loans or advances. The approval of the OCC is required to pay dividends in
excess of the Banks’ respective retained net profits for the current year plus retained net profits (net profits less dividends
paid) for the preceding two years, less any required transfers to surplus. As of December 31, 2005, approximately
$31,577,000 of the Banks’ retained earnings were available for distribution to the Company as dividends without prior
regulatory approval. For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Banks paid dividends of approximately $5,531,000 to the

Company. The Company anticipates that it will continue to pay comparable cash dividends in the future.

(b.) Not applicable.
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(¢.) The table below sets forth information regarding the Company’s purchases of its common stock during each of the twelve months
in the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively:

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Total Number
of Shares Maximum Number
Purchased as Part of Shares
Total Number of Average of Publicly that May Yet Be
Sharés Price Paid ‘ Announced Purchased Under the
Period Purchased per Share ___Programs (1) Programs (1)
January 2004 (2) 14760 | $ 31.7000 - 250,000
February 2004 L= ~ , - 250,000
March 2004 3,075 [ $ 31.6945 3,075 246,925
April 2004 P - : - 246,925
May 2004 39285 ] $ 29.2341 39,285 207,640
June 2004 18,300 | § 28.2246 18,300 189,340
July 2004 2,000 | $ 28.0750 | 2,000 187,340
August 2004 27,854 | $ 28.7748 27,854 159,486
September 2004 8,214 18§ 29.9800 8,214 151,272
Qctober 2004 3,400 $ 31.3154 | 3,400 147,872
November 2004 (2) 1,079 | § 33.9400 | . - 147,872
December 2004 (2) 2,941 |8 36.8797 - 147,872
January 2005 - ‘ - - 147,872
February 2005 (2) 17,6951 % 29.9500 147,872
March 2005 Do - . - 147,872
April 2005 .- - , - 147,872
May 2005 (2) 12518 33.5700 | - 147,872
June 2005 L - , - 147,872
July 2005 L= - - 147,872
August 2005 L= - - 147,872
September 2005 - - - 147,872
October 2005 - - ‘ - 147,872
November 2005 - - - 147,872
December 2005 (2) 647 | $ 33.5800 - 147,872
Total 129,375 | § 29.6979 | 102,128 147,872

(1) On February 19, 2004, the Board of Directars approved a share repurchase program under which the Company was authorized to acquire up to

@

250,000 shares of its outstanding common stock during 2004 and 2005. Shares displayed in these columns reflect shares pursuant to this
program.

These shares were repurchased under arrangemehts, authorized by the Company’s stock-based compensation plans and the Board of Directors, whereby officers
or directors may sell previously owned Company shares to the Company in order to pay for the exercises of stock options.



Item 6.  Selected Financial Data

(Dollars in thousands, except per share) December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Financial Data
Assets $1,925.856 $1,436,977 $1,197,692 $ 1,144948 § 1,025,682
Loans, net of unearned income* 1,535,901 1,153,230 938,760 863,422 748,080
Investment securities 182,744 165,446 152,009 164,951 189,933
Deposits 1,473,289 1,171,313 947,399 898,163 811,523
Nondeposit borrowings © 294420 141,136 133,017 138,116 116,117
Shareholders' equity 148,403 118,798 112,349 103,495 93,065
Number of locations 41 34 32 32 30
Full-time equivalent employees 590 513 514 480 442
Number of common shares outstanding 8,644,883 8,038,382 7,690,186 7,673,339 6,964,878
Selected Ratios
Return on average equity _ 13.19% 12.20% 13.72% 14.09% 13.64%
Return on average assets '1.00% 1.05% 1.23% 1.28% 1.21%
Average equity as a percentage of

average assets 7.56% 8.65% 9.00% 9.05% 8.91%
Asset Quality Ratios
Allowance for loan losses to period end loans 1.30% 1.25% 1.25% 1.28% 1.28%
Allowance for loan losses to period '

end nonperforming loans 468.74 442 .64 173.30 23347 203.74
Nonperforming assets to period end

loans and OREQ 030 0.43 0.87 0.67 0.74
Nonperforming assets to period end

total assets 0.24 0.35 0.88 0.51 0.47
Net charge-offs to average loans 0.11 0.15 0.19 0.25 0.19

v Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Summary of Operations _ ‘
Interest income $ 94203 § 67913 § 64854 § 67324 § 74472
Interest expense 28,710 14,643 14,622 18,752 29,972
Net interest income 65,583 53,270 50,232 48,572 44,500
Provision for loan losses 4,907 4,332 2,345 3,227 2,304
Net interest income after loan loss provision 60,676 48,938 47,887 45,345 42,196
Noninterest income 23,855 22,650 22,915 17,848 13,680
Noninterest expense 60,053 51,135 48,715 42,567 37,133
Income before provision for income taxes 24,478 20,453 22,087 20,626 18,743
Provision for income taxes 7,823 6,437 7,301 6,792 6,486
Net income $ 16655 § 14016 $ 14,786 13,834 § 12,257
Per Common Share
Net income, basic 3 205 % 1.74 3 183 § 172§ 1.51
Net income, diluted 2.03 1.72 1.82 1.71 1.51
Book value 17.17 14.77 13.91 12.85 11.57
Cash dividends 0.68 0.65 0.63 0.54 0.50
Dividend payout ratio 34.29% 36.66% 33.98% 33.71% 32.63%

* Excludes loans held for sale.

Per share data have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to a 10% common stock dividend paid to shareholders of record on

November 22, 2002 and a 5% common stock dividend paid to shareholders of record on December 20, 2004.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Overview

This discussion and analysis is intended to assist the reader in understanding the financial condition and results of
operations of SCBT Financial Corporation and its operating subsidiaries, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A., South
Carolina Bank and Trust of the Piedmont, N.A., and SunBank, N.A. The five-year period 2001 through 2005 is
discussed with particular emphasis on:the years 2003 through 2005. This commentary should be reviewed in
conjunction with the financial statements and related footnotes and the other statistical information related to SCBT
Financial Corporation beginning on page'F-1 of this document. -

In 1996, the Company sponsored the organization of South Carolina Bank and Trust of the Piedmont, N.A. (formerly
National Bank of York County) in Rock Hill, South Carolina, and sold shares of the Company’s common stock to
capitalize the new bank and pay organizational and pre-opening expenses. South Carolina Bank and Trust of the
Piedmont, N.A. began operations on July 11, 1996, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

In 1998, the Company sponsored the organization of South Carolina Bank and Trust of the Pee Dee, N.A. (formerly
Fiorence County National Bank) in Florence, South Carolina, and sold shares of the Company’s common stock to
capitalize the new bank and pay organizational and pre-opening expenses. South Carolina Bank and Trust of the Pee
Dee, N.A. began operations on April 1,:1998, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. This bank was merged
with South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. in July 2003 in order'to achieve certain operating efficiencies.

Also in 1998, the Company sponsored the organization of CreditSouth Financial Services Corporation (“CreditSouth”), a
consumer finance company that began operations in Orangeburg, South Carolina, in November 1998. In December
2002, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. acquired the majority of CreditSouth’s consumer loan portfolio and related
assets, and CreditSouth ceased operations. In March 2004, the remaining loans and related assets of CreditSouth were
donated to South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. and CreditSourh was dissolved.
" L

In February 2004, South Carolina Banl{‘ and Trust, N.A. purchased the Denmark, South Carolina branch of Security
Federal Bank, including premises and equipment, certain loans and deposits. At the time of the transaction, South
Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. vacated 1ts existing leased Denmark office, moving its operations to the newly acquired
banking facility.
In March 2004, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. sold its Cameron, South Carolina branch, including premises,
equipment and certain deposits, to Farmers and Merchants Bank of South Carolina and recognized a pre-tax gain of
£782,000. :

In September 2004, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. opened two loan production offices ~ a Summerville service
facility, just north of Charleston, South Carolina, which was subsequently granted a charter to provide full service banking
to its customers, and an additional Fort Mill, South Carolina office serving the Tega Cay community near Charlotte,
North Carolina. ‘

In December 2004, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. opened a facility in Hilton Head, South Carolina, converting a
loan production office to full service status.

In April 2004, The Mortgage Banc (“TMB”) was incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of South Carolina Bank and
Trust, N.A. TMB focuses on providing mortgage products and services to other financial institutions and mortgage
companies in South Carolina and some out-of-state markets. TMB’s offices and personnel are located in the Company’s
headquarters facility in Columbia, South Carolina. Also in April 2004, the credit card loan portfolios of both of the
Company’s banking subsidiaries were sold for a pre-tax gain of $953,000.

In April 2005, SCBT Financial Corporatibn continued its expansion in the western portion of the State of South Carolina with
its acquisition of New Commerce BanCorp and its subsidiary, New Commerce Bank, into the Company’s lead subsidiary
South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. The acquisition provided South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. with two new branches in
Simpsonville and Greenville, South Carolina, both located in one of the fastest growing markets in the state.

in April 2005, the Company formed SCBT Capital Trust 1 and SCBT Capital Trust II for the purpose of issuing an

aggregate of $20,000,000 of trust preferred securities. In July 2005, the Company formed SCBT Capital Trust III for
the purpose of issuing an aggregate of $20 000,000 of trust preferred securmes
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In November 2005, SCBT Financial Corporation expanded its footprint farther up the South Carolina coast with the acquisition
of Sun Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiary SunBank, N.A. SunBank, N.A. will act as a third subsidiary of SCBT Financial
Corporation until March 24, 2006 at which time it will be merged into the Company’s lead subsidiary, South Carolina Bank
and Trust, N.A. The acquisition will provide South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. with two additional branches in Murrells
Inlet and Georgetown. SunBank’s third property, a loan production office, is located in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina.

In February 2006, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. opened a loan production office in Charleston, South Carolina. In
April 2006, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. is scheduled to open a second loan production office in Charleston, South

Carolina.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See page F-11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information relating to recent accounting
pronouncements.

Executive Summary

We completed a very successful year in 2005, which was impacted by several factors that are covered in more detail in later
sections of this item. In addition to a large increase in earnings, we experienced continued strong growth throughout the
Company. Organically, we saw a 20% increase in total loans net of unearned income and an 11.5% increase in deposits. In
total, we increased our assets 34%, counting the acquisitions of New Commerce BanCorp, Sun Bancshares, Inc., and Devine
Mortgage Company.

While the net interest margin for the full year decreased from 2004 to 2005, we experienced some margin expansion during
2005 from the levels in late 2004. The Company therefore benefited not only from increased net interest income attributable to
higher loan balances, but also from this increasing interest rate margin. During the same time we went against the industry
trend and increased our loan loss reserve ratio, an action that we felt was the sensible thing to do given our strong organic
growth and the relatively unseasoned loan portfolios of our acquired banks. It should be noted that despite this increase in our
reserve ratio, for the year our credit quality remained very sound as evidenced by net charge-offs at only .11% of average loans,
past due loans at year end of .70% and OREO at a record low level of $379,000 at year end.

While we continued to grow and expand our fundamental business, we also experienced record earnings with an 18.8%
increase in net income and diluted earnings per share increasing by 17.8%. Our non-interest income also increased for the year
largely as a result of fees associated with growing numbers of deposit accounts and loans and debit card fees. We were
extremely successful in opening approximately 16,000 new checking accounts in 2005. Our increases in non-interest expense
in 2005 were mainly attributable to increases in employee compensation and advertising, both of which are by-products of the
rapid growth we experienced. As we grow we are cognizant of expenses and continuously attempt to control their growth.
Through a process improvement initiative last year, we were able to eliminate $1.3 million in overhead expenses.

We continue to maintain a well-capitalized position in the Company and its subsidiary banks. To supplement Tier 1 capital, we
issued $40 million in trust preferred securities during the year to finance new and expanded operations, including the
acquisitions.

The year 2005 was a record year for us on nearly every front, and we are pleased to deliver strong increases in earnings, growth
of assets and funding, and sound credit and interest rate risk management to our shareholders. We will continue to work hard
on these fronts and to provide unsurpassed service to all of our customers. We are very pleased that as of February 2, 2006, we
now operate in every coastal county in South Carolina. This is illustrative of our commitment, through continued expansion
and a focus on soundness, profitability and growth, to be South Carolina’s bank.

Summary of Operations

In the following analyses, all per share data have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to a 10% stock dividend paid to
shareholders of record on November 22, 2002 and a 5% stock dividend paid to shareholders of record on December 20, 2004,

SCBT Financial Corporation reported net income of $16,655,000 in 2005 compared with $14,016,000 in 2004 and $14,786,000
in 2003. This represents an earnings increase of 18.8% in 2005 when compared to 2004, following a decrease of 5.2% in 2004
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compared to 2003. Basic earnings per share increased to $2.05 in 2005 compared with $1.74 in 2004 and $1.83 in 2003.
Similarly, diluted earnings per share were $2.03, $1.72, and $1.82 in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

The book value of the Company's common.stock increased to $17.17 in 2005 compared to $14.77 in 2004, and $13.91 in 2003.
The return on average assets was 1.00 percent in 2005, compared with 1.05 percent in 2004, and 1.23 percent in 2003, The

return on average shareholders' equity was 13 19 percent in 2005, compared with 12.20 percent in 2004, and 13.72 percent in
2003.

Total earning assets (reflecting strong loan growth) and total deposits increased throughout 2005. At December 31, 2005, total
earning assets were $1,774,947,000, an increase of 31.3 percent over $1,351,871,000 at year-end 2004, which was 21.3 percent
more than $1,114,252,000 at year-end 2003. In 2005, average earning assets were $1,549,672,000 which was $309,304, or 24.9
percent, greater than $1,240,369,000 in 2004, which was $116,792,000, or 10.4 percent, greater than $1,123,037,000 in 2003.

At December 31, 2005, total deposits were $1,473,289,000, an increase of 25.7 percent from $1,171,313,000 at the end of
2004. The 2004 balance was 23.6 percent greater than the $947,399,000 at the end of 2003. Total deposits averaged
$1,325,927,000 in 2005, an increase of 23, 1 percent over $1,059,993,000 in 2004, which was an increase of 11.9 percent over
$946,919,000 in 2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, total interest income was $94,293,000, an increase of 38.8 percent from $67,913,000 in
2004, which was an increase of 4.7 percent from $64,854,000 in 2003. This increase was mainly volume related, primarily the
result of strong loan growth and an aggressive home loan market.

Total interest expense was $28,710,000 for the year 2005, an increase of $14,067,000, or 96.1 percent, over 2004. Interest
expense was $14,643,000 for the year 2004, an increase of $21,000:over $14,622,000 in 2003. This increase resulted primarily
from the rising interest rate environment and from intense deposit product competition,

" In February 2004, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a program with no formal expiration date to repurchase up to
250,000 of its common shares in 2005 and:2004. The Company did not repurchase any shares under this program during 2005.
During the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company repurchased, 120,908, 2,100 and 12,402 shares,
respectively, at a cost of $3,590,000, $53,000 and $265,000, respectively. During 2005, the Company redeemed 8,467 of its
shares from four officers at an average cost of $30.28 under an approved program designed to facilitate stock option exercises
under the Company's stock option plans.

Net Interest Income

i N
The largest component of the Company’s net income is net interest income, which is the difference between the income earned
on interest-earning assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowings. Net interest income is determined by the rates earned
on interest-earning assets, rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities, the relative amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities, the degree of mismatch and the maturity and repricing characteristics of interest- earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities. Net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets represents the Company’s net interest margin.

Net interest income was $635,583,000 in 20085, an increase of $12,313,000, or 23.1%, over 2004, This increase was all
volume related, as total average earning assets grew by $309,304,000, or 24.9%. A significant offset to the strong earning
assets growth was the continued historically low interest rate environment as the net interest spread decreased by 14
basis points, from 4.01 percent in 2004 to 3.87 percent in 2005. Net interest income in 2004 was $53,270,000, an
increase of $3,038,000, or 6.0 percent, from the previous year. Similar to 2005, this increase was basically volume driven
as total average earning assets grew $117,332,000, or 10.4 percent. A 16 basis point decrease in the net interest spread
from 2003 partially offset the impact of strong earning asset growth, reflecting a greater decline in rates earned on
earning assets as compared with rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities.

During 2005, the net interest margin (taxable equivalent) decreased 9 basis points to 4.28 percent compared with 2004.
Contributing to this decline was an eight basis point increase in the impact of interest free funds. The taxable
equivalent net interest margin was 4.37 percent in 2004, a decrease of 19 basis points from 2003. This was attributable
to the continued low interest rate environment.




Table 1

Volume and Rate

Variance Analysis 2005 Compared to 2004 2004 Compared to 2003
Changes Due to Changes Due to
Increase (Decrease) In Increase (Decrease) In
(Dollars in thousands) Volume (1) Rate (1) Total Volume (1) Rate (1) Total
Interest income on:
Loans (2) $§ 15971 § 8,352 § 24,323 $ 7,116 $§ (4,132) § 2984
Investments:
Taxable 739 552 1,291 (96) 219 123
Tax exempt (3) (267) 23 (244) (224) 6 (218)
Funds sold 833 22) 811 207 (151) 56
Interest-earning deposits with banks 32 167 199 61 53 114
Total interest income $ 17,308 $ 9,072 $ 26,380 $ 7,064 § (4,005 $ 3,059

Interest expense on:

Deposits:
Interest-bearing transaction accounts $ 86 § 229§ 315 $ 9% $ (120) $ (24)
Savings 1,009 2,864 3,873 305 829 1,134
Certificates of deposit 2,080 3,635 5,715 (45) (1,377) (1,422)
Funds purchased 250 2,094 2,344 27 115 142
Notes payable 1,357 463 1,820 337 (146) 191
Total interest expense § 4782 § 9285 § 14,067 $ 720 $ (699) $ 21
Net interest income $ 12,527 § (214) $ 12,313 $ 6344 $ (3,306) $ 3,038

(1) The rate/volume variance for each category has been allocated on an equal basis between rate and volumes.
(2) Nonaccrual loans are included in the above analysis.
(3) Tax exempt income is not presented on a taxable-equivalent basis in the above analysis.
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Table 2

Yields on Average Earning Assets and
Rates on Average Interest-bearing Liabilities

(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Interest earning assets
Loans, net of unearned in¢ome
Investment securities ‘
Taxable
Tax exempt
Funds sold
Interest-earning deposits with banks
Total earning assets ‘

Cash and other assets
Less allowance for loan losses

Total assets

Liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities

Deposits :
Interest-bearing transaction accounts
Savings |
Certificates of deposit

Funds purchased

Notes payable

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposits
Other liabilities
Shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and sﬁareho]ders‘ equity

Net interest spread
Impact of interest free funds

Net interest margin (non-taxable equivalent)
Net interest income ;

2005
Average Interest Average
Balance Earned/Paid Yield/Rate

$ 1333554 $ 85590 6.42%
147,071 6,162 4.19
27,164 1217 4.48
30,056 949 3.16
12,568 374 2.98

1,550,413 94,292 6.08
137,299
(16,687)

$ 1,671,025

$ 257,538 $ 1,054 0.41%
338,759 5,993 1.77
488,689 14,099 2.89
123,352 3,031 2.46
87,959 4,533 5.15

1,296,297 28,710 2.21
240,941
7,527
. 126,260
$ 1,671,025

3.87

0.36

423%

$__02382
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Table 2 (Continued)

Yields on Average Earning Assets and
Rates on Average Interest-bearing Liabilities

(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Interest earning assets
Loans, net of unearned income
Investment securities
Taxable
Tax exempt
Funds sold
Interest-earning deposits with banks

Total earning assets

Cash and other assets
Less allowance for loan losses

Total assets

Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities
Deposits
Interest-bearing transaction accounts
Savings
Certificates of deposit
Funds purchased
Notes payable
Total interest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposits
Other liabilities
Shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

Net interest spread

Impact of interest free funds

Net interest margin (non-taxable equivalent)
Net interest income

20

2004
Average Interest Average
Balance Earned/Paid Yield/Rate
$ 1,057,813 § 61,267 5.79%
127,370 4,856 3.81
33,417 1,471 4.40
11,156 138 1.24
10,613 175 1.65
1,240,369 67,907 5.47
102,103
(13,026)
$ 1,329,446
$ 230,749 § 739 0.32%
229,545 2,120 0.92
391,542 8,384 2.14
90,445 687 0.76
58,630 2,713 4.63
1,000,911 14,643 1.46
208,106
5,549
114,380
$ 1,329,446
4.01
0.28
4.29%
$ 53,264




Table 2 (Continued)

Yields on Average Earning Assets and

Rates on Average Interest-bearing Liabilities 2003
‘ Average Interest Average
(Dollars in thousands) ‘ ' Balance Earned/Paid Yield/Rate
Assets
Interest earning assets ‘
Loans, net of unearned ipcome "% 942,717 § 58,283 6.18%
Investment securities '
Taxable ; 130,048 4,682 3.60
Tax exempt : 38,339 1,679 4.38
Funds sold ‘ ) 6,605 82 1.24
Interest-earning deposits with banks 5,328 61 1.14
Total earning assets, 1,123,037 64,787 5.77
Cash and other assets h 86,455 '
Less allowance for loan losses (11,214)
Total assets $ 1,198,278
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities
Deposits _
Interest-bearing transaction accounts - § 205077 § 763 0.37%
Savings , 175,347 986 0.56
Certificates of deposit . 393,365 9,806 2.49
Funds purchased : 86,185 545 0.63
Notes payable 51,720 2,522 4.88
Total interest-bearing liabilities ' 911,694 14,622 1.60
Demand deposits ‘ 173,130
Other liabilities 5,688
Shareholders' equity : 107,766
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 1,198,278
Net interest spread : 4.17
Impact of interest free funds ' 0.30
Net interest margin (non-taxable equivalent) 4.47%

Net interest income : ‘ $ 50,165
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Investment Securities

The second largest category of earning assets is investment securities, which are used to provide liquidity, employ
excess funds, pledge as collateral for certain public funds deposits and purchased funds, and may be liquidated in some
instances to provide cash to fund earning asset growth or replace deposits. At December 31, 2005, investment securities
were $182,744,000, or 10.3 percent of earning assets, compared with $165,446,000, or 12.3 percent of earning assets,
at the end of 2004. As securities are purchased, they are designated as held to maturity or available for sale based upon
management’s intent, which incorporates liquidity needs, interest rate expectations, asset/liability management strategies,
and capital requirements. The Company does not currently hold, nor has it ever, any securities that are designated as
held for trading.

Interest earned on the held to maturity portfolio, consisting mainly of tax exempt state and municipal securities, was
$905,000 in 2005, a decrease of $270,000, or 23.0 percent, from the $1,175,000, earned in 2004. This decrease was
slightly offset by a three basis point increase in the average yield from 2004 to 2005. In 2004, this portfolio segment
earned $208,000, or 15.0 percent less than 2003 interest of $1,383,000. This decrease was due primarily to an average
portfolio balance that was $4,475,000, or 14.6 percent less than the balance in 2003. Contributing to a lesser extent was
a three basis point decrease in yield from year to year. The average maturity of the held to maturity portfolio was 1.8
years, 1.8 years and 2.4 years at December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

Securities available for sale consist mainly of U.S. Government Agency and mortgage-backed securities. In 20085,
interest earned on this portfolio was $6,474,000, compared with $5,158,000 in 2004. The overall increase of $1,316,000,
or 25.5 percent, was the result of a 37 basis point increase in the average earning rate which is primarily attributed to a
$19,599,000, or 14.6 percent average balance increase from year to year. Average earning rates on available-for-sale
securities were 4.20 percent during 2005, as compared to 3.83 percent in 2004. Average outstanding balances were
$£154,111,000 in 2005. In 2004, earnings from this segment of the investment securities portfolio were $113,000, or 2.2
percent more than the $5,045,000 earned in 2003. This result was a combination of a slightly upward rate shift and an
average balance decline from year to year. Average earning rates on available-for-sale securities were 3.83 percent
during 2004, or 16 basis points increase from 2003. Average outstanding balances were $137,637,000 in 2004, a
$37,032,000, or 21.2 percent decrease from the prior year, as funds were redeployed to meet higher yielding loan demand
throughout the period.

At December 31, 2005, the fair value of the investment securities portfolio was $183,003,000, or 0.1 percent higher than
the carrying value, including the effect of a $259,000 higher market value of held-to-maturity securities, compared to their
amortized cost. The differences between fair and carrying values at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were also favorable at
$802,000, or 0.5 percent and $1,465,000, or 1.0 percent, respectively. At December 31, 2005, investment securities with
an amortized cost of $155,813,000 and fair value of $153,628,000 were classified as available for sale. The negative
adjustment of $2,185,000 between the carrying value of these securities and their amortized cost has been reflected, net of
tax, in the consolidated balance sheets as accumulated other comprehensive loss. At December 31, 2005, investment
securities (principally Federal Reserve Bank stock and Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta stock, each with no readily
determinable market value) with an amortized cost and fair value of $10,922,000 were classified as other investments.
During 2005, the Company realized a net loss on the disposition of investment securities of $202,000, as the Company
elected to strategically reposition a portion of its investment portfolio for the current interest rate environment. The
Company realized a net loss of less than $4,000 in 2004, and no gains or losses in 2003,
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Table 3

Book Value of Investment Securities

December 31, :
(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Held-to-Maturity
U.S. Treasury and other U.S.

Government agencies $ - - $ - s - 3 - $ -
Mortgage-backed - - - 51 247
State and municipal ‘ 18,194 24,604 29,487 33,160 34,767

Total Held-to-Maturity 118,194 24,604 29,487 33,211 35,014

Available-for-Sale
U.S. Treasury and U.S.

Government agencies 137,749 25,185 : 25,453 45,859 44,265

Mortgage-backed 99,595 94,664 78,560 74,694 101,728

Corporate bonds "11,361 10,300 " 6,500 ; .

Corporate stocks j‘ 4,923 4,909 6,734 6,414 4,360
Total Available-for-Sale 153,628 135,058 117,247 126,967 150,353
Total Other Investments 10,922 5,784 " 5,275 4773 4,566

Total § 182,744 § 1654461 § 152,009 $ 164,951 $ 189,933
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Loan Portfolio

Loans held for investment, the largest category of earning assets, were $1,535,918,000 at December 31, 2005, an
increase of $382,511,000, or 33.2 percent, compared to $1,153,407,000 at the end of 2004. Average loans outstanding
during 2005 were $1,313,796,000, an increase of $270,325,000, or 25.9 percent, over the 2004 average of
$1,043,471,000.

Real estate mortgage loans continue to comprise the largest segment of the loan portfolio. All commercial and
residential loans secured by real estate, except real estate construction loans, are included in this category. At December
31, 2005, loans secured by real estate mortgages were $1,158,044,000, and comprised 75.4 percent of the total loan
portfolio. This was an increase of $311,350,000, or 36.8 percent, over year-end 2004. Commercial, financial,
agricultural and other loans were $192,090,000, representing 12.5 percent of all loans at December 31, 2005. This
category increased $30,648,000, or 19.0 percent, compared to the balance at the end of 2004. Consumer installment
loans, comprising $127,768,000, or 83 percent of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2005, increased 22.6 percent from
the previous year.

Loan interest income, including fees, was $85,590,000 in 2005, an increase of $24,323,000, or 39.8 percent, over 2004
earnings of $61,267,000. The increase was the result of a substantial increase in the total average outstanding loan
balance in 2005 compared with 2004; as well as an average loan portfolio yield in 2005 of 6.42 percent which was 63
basis points higher than the 5.79 percent loan yield in 2004. Interest and fee income for 2005 was 39.7 percent above
the 2004 income of $61,267,000. The average loan yield in 2004 was 39 basis points below the 2003 yield of 6.18
percent. Table 6 shows the maturity and interest rate sensitivity of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2005. Loans that
mature in one year or less were $353,483,000, or 23 percent of total loans.

The placement of loans on a nonaccrual status is dependent upon the type of loan, the past due status and the collection
activities in progress. Loans that are well secured and in the process of collection are allowed to remain on an accrual
basis until they become 120 days past due. Unsecured commercial loans are charged off on or before the date they
become 90 days past due and, therefore, do not reach nonaccrual status. Commercial and real estate loans that are
partially secured are written down to the collateral value and placed on nonaccrual status on or before becoming 90 days
past due. Closed end consumer loans are charged off or written down to the contractual value on or before becoming 120
days past due. Open end consumer loans are charged off or written down to the contractual value on or before becoming
180 days past due. All interest accrued in the current year but unpaid at the date a loan is placed on nonaccrual status is
deducted from interest income, while interest accrued from previous years is charged against the allowance for loan
losses. At December 31, 2005, nonaccrual loans were $2,760,000, compared with $2,429,000 at year-end 2004. At
December 31, 2005, loans that were 90 days or more past due and still accruing were $1,512,000 compared to $340,000
at the end of 2004. |

Interest income that was foregone was an immaterial amount for each of the three years ended December 31, 2005. The
Company does not have any loans that have been restructured or any foreign loans.

The Company attempts to avoid making loans that, in an aggregate amount, exceed 10 percent of total loans to a
multiple number of borrowers engaged in similar business activities which could cause these aggregated loans to be
similarly impacted by economic or other conditions. As of December 31, 2005, we believe that there were no such
aggregated credit concentrations.

The level of risk elements in the loan bortfolio for the past five years is shown in Table 7.
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Table 5

Distribution of Net Loans

By Type
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Commercial, financial

agricultural and other h 192,090 $ 161,442 $ 133,055 $ 149,385 $ 118,819
Real estate - construction 57,999 40,915 26,511 40,338 37,709
Real estate - mortgage 1,157,979 846,694 678,229 562,179 475,110
Consumer 127,850 104,356 100,965 111,520 116,442
Total $ 1,535,918 $ 1,153,407 $ 938,760 $ 863,422 $ 748,080

Percent of Total

Commercial, financial

agricultural and other 12.5 % 14.0 % 14.2 % 17.3 % 15.9 %
Real estate - construction 3.8 % 35% 28 % 47 % 50 %
Real estate - mortgage 75.4 % 73.4 % 72.2 % 65.1 % 63.5 %
Consumer 8.3 % 9.1 % 10.8 % 129 % 15.6 %
Total 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
Table 6
Maturity Distribution of Loans

Maturity
December 31, 2005 1 Year 1-5 Over 5

(Dollars in thousands) Total or Less Years Years
Commercial, financial

agricultural and other $ 192,090 $ 77,207 $ 97,299 $ 17,584
Real estate - construction 57,999 11,856 7,462 38,681
Real estate - mortgage 1,157,979 250,538 625,194 282,247
Consumer 127,850 13,899 101,169 12,782
Total $ 1,535918 § 353,500 $ 831,124 $ 351,294
Loans due after one year with:

Predetermined interest rates $ 823,884

Floating or adjustable interest rates $ 691,593

Asset Quality

Asset quality is maintained through the management of credit risk. Each individual earning asset, whether in the
investment securities or loan portfolio, is reviewed by management for credit risk. To facilitate this review, SCBT Financial
Corporation has established credit and investment policies that include credit limits, documentation, periodic examination
and follow-up. In addition, these portfolios are examined for exposure to concentration in any one industry, government
agency, or geographic location. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company did not have more than ten percent of
the loan portfolio in any one industry and had no foreign loans.

Each category of earning assets has a degree of credit risk. To measure credit risk, various techniques are used. Credit risk
in the investment portfolio can be measured through bond ratings published by independent agencies. In the investment
securities portfolio, 99.5 percent of the investments consist of U.S. Government Agency securitics and tax-free securities
having a rating of “A” or better by at least one of the major bond rating agencies. The credit risk of the loan portfolio can
be measured by historical experience. The Company maintains its loan portfolio in accordance with its established credit
policies. Net loan charge-offs as a percentage of net average loans improved to 0.11 percent in 2005, compared with (.15
percent in 2004 and 0.19 percent in 2003. See “Loan Portfolio” for a discussion of the Company’s charge-off and
nonaccrual policies.
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Table 7

Nonaccrual and Past Due Loans

December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)

. 2005 : 2004 2003 2002 2001
Loans past due 90 days or more : $ 1,512 § 840 § 2,082 § 1,729 § 1,561
Loans on a nonaccruing basis ' 2,760 2,429 4,669 3,010 3,317
Total ) $ 4272 § 3269 § 6,751 § 4,739 §$ 4,878
Table 8 ;
Il
Summary of Loan Loss Experience
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) i
%3 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Allowance for loan losses - January 1 $ 14,470 . § 11,700 § 11,065 $§ 9818 § 8,922
Total charge-offs ‘ (1,850) (2,008) (2,410) (2,236) (1,808)
Total recoveries ‘ 383 446 700 256 400
Net charge-offs f (1,467) (1,562) (1,710) (1,980) (1,408)
Provision for loan losses 4,907 4332 2,345 3,227 2,304
Reserve acquired in business combinations 2,115
Allowance for loan losses - December 31 $ 20,025 $ 14470 §$ 11,700 $ 11,065 $ 9,818
Average loans - net of unearned income $ 1,313,796 § 1043471 $ 899,421 §$ 792,594 § 732,587
Ratio of net charge-offs to'average ‘
loans net of unearned income 0.11%. 0.15% 0.19% 0.25% 0.19%

Loan Loss Provision :

The Company maintains an allowanc%: for loan losses at a level that management believes is sufficient to provide for
potential losses in the loan portfolio. Management periodically evaluates the adequacy of the allowance through its internal
risk rating system, outside credit review and regulatory agency examinations to assess the quality of the loan portfolio and
identify problem loans. The evaluation process also includes management’s analysis of current and future economic
conditions, composition of the loan portfolio, past due and nonaccrual loans, concentrations of credit, lending policies and
procedures and historical loan loss experience. The provision for loan losses is charged to expense in an amount necessary to
maintain the allowance at the appropriate level.

The provision for loan losses for the year ended December 31,; 2005 was $4,907,000, compared with $4,332,000 in 2004 and
$2,345,000 in 2003. The higher provision in 2005 reflects management’s close attention to asset quality and response to
strong loan growth and loans acquired through bank acquiitions during the year. The allowance for loan losses was
$20,025,000 at December 31, 2005, or; l 30 percent of total loans, net of unearned discount, compared with $14,470,000, or
1.25 percent of total net loans at the end of 2004, Total charge-offs were $1,850,000 in 2005, a decrease of $158,000, or 7.9
percent, from 2004. Recoveries of loans previously charged off were $383,000, a decrease of $63,000, or 14.1 percent
from the previous year. '

Other real estate owned includes certain real estate acquired as a result of foreclosure and deeds in lieu of foreclosure, as well
as amounts reclassified as in-substance foreclosures. At December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, other real estate
owned was $379,000 and $1,712,000, respectlvely i
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The Federal Reserve continued to enact monetary policies that reflected and attempted to stimulate a growing national economy in
2005 through several one-quarter point increases in short-term interest rates. National economic growth and its fostering policy is
likely to continue to remain positive during 2006. The Federal Reserve’s monetary policy may help to preserve the economic gains
of the last three years. An increasing rate environment is likely to continue in 2006. South Carolina may feel some benefits from
this national trend. However, the events of the past five years have caused South Carolina’s business environment to be more
restrained than that of some other states and regions. Certain sectors of the South Carolina economy are still suffering from the
effects of global job export. In this environment, management expects loan charge off levels to remain similar to 2005 during the
coming months. The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency recommends that banks take a broad view of certain factors
in evaluating their allowance for loan losses. These factors include loan loss experience, specific allocations and other
subjective factors. In its ongoing consideration of such factors, management considers the Company’s allowance for loan
losses to be adequate.

Liquidity

Liquidity may be defined as the ability of an entity to generate cash to meet its financial obligations. For a bank, liquidity
primarily means the consistent ability to meet loan and investment demands and deposit withdrawals. The Company has
employed its funds in a manner to provide liquidity in both assets and liabilities sufficient to meet its cash needs.

Asset liquidity is maintained by the maturity structure of loans, investment securities and other short-term investments.
Management has policies and procedures governing the length of time to maturity on loans and investments. As noted in
Table 4, eight percent of the investment portfolio contractually matures in one year or less. This segment of the portfolio
consists largely of U.S. Government Agency securities, municipal obligations, and agency preferred stock. Loans and other
investments are generally held for longer terms and not used for day-to-day operating needs.

Increases in the Company’s liabilities provide liquidity on a day-to-day basis. Daily liquidity needs may be met from
deposit growth or from the use of federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreements to repurchase and other short-
term borrowings.

The Company regularly obtains borrowed funds in the form of cash management or “sweep” accounts that are
accommodations to corporate and governmental customers pursuant to the sale of securities sold under agreements to
repurchase arrangements. During 2005, the Company maintained a prudent level of liquidity through growth in interest-
bearing and non-interest-bearing deposits, cash management accounts, federal funds purchased, and advances from the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta.

Derivatives and Securities Held for Trading

The Securities and Exchange Commission has adopted rules that require comprehensive disclosure of accounting policies
for derivatives as well as enhanced quantitative and qualitative disclosures of market risk for derivatives and other financial
instruments. The market risk disclosures are classified into two categories: financial instruments entered into for trading
purposes and all other instruments (non-trading purposes). The Company does not currently employ financial derivatives,
nor does it maintain a trading portfolio.

Asset-Liability Management and Market Risk Sensitivity

The Company’s eamnings or the value of its shareholders’ equity may vary in relation to changes in interest rates and in
relation to the accompanying fluctuations in market prices of certain of its financial instruments. The Company uses a
number of methods to measure interest rate risk, including simulating the effect on earnings of fluctuations in interest rates,
monitoring the present value of asset and liability portfolios under various interest rate scenarios, and monitoring the
difference, or gap, between rate sensitive assets and liabilities, as discussed below. The earnings simulation model and gap
analysis take into account the Company’s contractual agreements with regard to investments, loans and deposits. Although
the Company’s simulation model is subject to the accuracy of the assumptions that underlie the process, the Company
believes that such modeling provides a better illustration of the interest sensitivity of earnings than does static interest rate
sensitivity gap analysis. The simulation model assists in measuring and achieving growth in net interest income while
managing interest rate risk. The simulations incorporate interest rate changes as well as projected changes in the mix and
volume of balance sheet assets and liabilities. Accordingly, the simulations are considered to provide a good indicator of
the degree of earnings risk the Company has, or may incur in future periods, arising from interest rate changes or other
market risk factors.

The Company’s policy is to monitor exposure to interest rate increases and decreases of as much as 200 basis points ratably
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over a 12-month period. The Company’s policy guideline for the maximum negative impact on net interest income from a
steady (“ramping”) change in interest rates of 200 basis points over 12 months is 8 percent. The Company traditionally has
maintained a risk position within the policy guideline level. As of December 31, 2005, the earnings simulations indicated
that the impact of a 200 basis point decrease in rates over 12 months would result in an approximate 3.0 percent decrease in
net interest income while a 200 basis point increase in rates over the same period would result in an approximate 1.6
percent increase in net interest income -- both as compared with a base case unchanged interest rate environment. These
results indicate that the Company’s rate sensitivity is essentially moderately asset sensitive to the indicated change in
interest rates over a one-year horizon. Actual results may differ from simulated results due to the timing, magnitude and
frequency of interest rate changes and changes in market conditions or management strategies, among other factors. The
shape of the fixed-income yield curve can also influence interest rate risk sensitivity, with a “flat” yield curve having a
dampening effect on the Company’s asset sensitivity, as is currently the case.

As mentioned above, another (though'less useful) indicator of interest rate risk exposure is the interest rate sensitivity gap
and cumulative gap. Interest rate sensitivity gap analysis is based on the concept of comparing financial assets that reprice
with financial liabilities that reprice within a stated time period. The time period in which a financial instrument is considered
to be rate sensitive is determined by that instrument’s first opportunity to reprice to a different interest rate. For variable rate
products the period in which repricing occurs is contractually determined. For fixed rate products the repricing opportunity is
deemed to occur at the instrument’s maturity or call date, if applicable. For non-interest-bearing funding products, the
“maturity” is based solely on a scheduled decay, or runoff, rate. When more assets than liabilities reprice within a given
time period, a positive interest rate gap (or “asset sensitive” position) exists. Asset sensitive institutions may benefit in
generally rising rate environments as assets reprice more quickly than liabilities. Conversely, when more liabilities than
assets reprice within a given time period, a negative interest rate gap (or “liability sensitive” position) exists. Liability sensitive
institutions may benefit in generally falling rate environments as funding sources reprice more quickly than earning assets.
However, another shortfall of static gap analysis based solely on the timing of repricing opportunities is its lack of attention
to the degree of magnitude of rate repricings of the various financial instruments.

As shown in the gap analysis in Table 9 below at December.31, 2005, the Company had a greater dollar value of financial
assets that were subject to repricing: within a 12-month time horizon than its financial liabilities that were subject to
repricing. The next twelve-month period displays more financial liabilities than financial assets subject to repricing.
Thereafter, generally there are more financial assets subject to repricing as compared to financial liabilities. Consequently,
the Company has a cumulatively positive interest rate gap for the S5-year aggregate period through 2010. The degree of
magnitude of rate repricings of the financial assets and liabilities is, as mentioned above, not accounted for by a static gap
analysis such as that presented in Table 9.

The Company does not currently use interest rate swaps or other derivatives to modify the interest rate risk of its financial
instruments.

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2005 about the Company’s financial instruments that are
sensitive to changes in interest rates. For fixed rate loans, securities, time deposits, federal funds and repurchase
agreements, and notes payable, the table presents principal cash flows and related weighted-average interest rates by
expected maturity dates, call dates, dr average-life terminal dates. Variable rate instruments are presented according to
their first repricing opportunities. Non-interest bearing deposits and interest-bearing savings and checking deposits have
no contractual maturity dates. For purposes of Table 9, projected maturity dates for such deposits were determined based on
decay rate assumptions used internally by the Company to evaluate such deposits. For further information on the fair value
of financial instruments, see Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Table 9

Financial Instruments That Are Sensitive to Changes in Interest Rates Fair
There Value
Dollars in thousands) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 After Total 12/31/2005
Financial Assets:
Loans, net of unearned incomre:
Fixed Rate:
Book Value $ 231,730 $ 201,572 S 160204 § 128536 $ 85539 § 30359 $§ 83790 § 825852
Average interest rate 6.07% 5.77% 5.89% 6.26% 632% 7.85% 6.08%
Variable Rate:
Book Value $ 595728 § 290491 § 18796 $§ 25484 § 20,185 $§ 1,213 § 690897 § 691,344
Average interest rate 7.11% 5.01% 5.52% 5.67% 5.70% 6.00% 6.88%
Securites held to maturity:
Fixed Rate:
Book Value $ 684 § 3664 § 2632 % 2477 8 1,235 § 1352 § 18194 § 18453
Awverage interest rate 4.37% 4.33% 4.25% 4.54% 429% 0.00% 4.04%
Variable Rate:
Book Value $ - S - S - 8 - 8 - - 5 - $ -
Average interest rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Securites available for sale:
Fixed Rate:
Book Value § 35164 § 31,768 § 39176 $§ 12045 § 17008 § 795 $ 143117 $§ 143,117
Average interest rate 4.37% 4.23% 4.16% 4.28% 4.48% 42% 4.28%
Variable Rate: -
Book Value $ 10511 § - 5 - 8 - S - 8 - S 10,511 § 10,511
Average interest rate 5.5%% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 5.59%
Other investments:
Fixed Rate:
Book Value $ - S - 8 -~ 8 -5 1,889 S - $ 1,889 § 1,889
Average interest rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%% 6.00% 0.00% 6.00%
Varigble Rate:
Book Value § 9033 § - S - 8 - 8 - 3 - 3 9,033 § 9,033
Average interest rate 4.56% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%% 0.00% 0.00% 4.56%
Federal finds sold $ 41440 § - 3 - 8 - 3 - $ - 8 41,440 § 41,440
Average interest rate 4.46% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 4.46%
Total Financial Assets $ 930440 $ 266495 § 220808 § 168542 § 125856 $ 40880 § 1,753,021 § 1,741,639
Financial Liabilities:
Nor-interest bearing deposits $ 31,775 § 3L775 S 31,775 $ 34,775 $ 3L,776 S 95223 § 254099 $§ 214,213
Average interest rate NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Interest-bearing
Savings and checking $ 203875 $ 203875 § 71,721 § 71,721 § 68,028 $ - $ 619220 § 590,797
Average interest rate 1.88% 1.88% 0.62% 0.62% 0.65% 0.00% 1.45%
Tive deposits $ 473416 $ 115746 § 5637 § 2120 § 1054 $§ 1997 § 599970 $ 597,990
Average inferest rate 3.4%% 3.99% 3.45% 3.78% 3.72% 4.44% 3.59% -
Federal funds purchased
and securities sold under
agreamments to repurchase $ 150,163 $ - 3 - 8 - 3 - 3 - % 150,163 § 150,163
Average Interest Rate 347% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 3.47%
Notes payable $ 67745 § 126 $§ 3209 § 13015 § 132§ 60030 § 144257 § 144933
Average interest rate 4.81% 4.93% 5.45% 4.66% 4.92% 5.4%% 5.09% -
Total Financial Liabilities $ 926974 $ 351522 § 112342 $ 118631 $ 100990 $ 157250 $ 1,767,709 § 1,698,096
Interest rate sensitivity gap $3466  ($85,027) $108466 $49,911 $24.866  (3116,370) (514,688)
Cuimulative interest rate
sensitivity gap $3.466  (381,561)  $26,905 $76,816  $101,682  ($14,688)
Culrmulative interest rate
sensitivity gap as percent
of total financial assets 0.20% -4.65% 1.53% 4.38% 5.80% -0.84%
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Deposits

Customer deposits provide the Company with its primary source of funds for the continued growth of its loan and
investment securities portfolios. At December 31, 2005, total deposits were $1,473,289,000, an increase of
$301,976,000, or 25.8 percent, from $1,171,313,000 at the end of 2004. The 2004 balance was $223,914,000, or 23.6
percent, greater than total deposits at year-end 2003. Noninterest-bearing accounts grew by $30,072,000, or 13.4
percent, for the year ended December 31, 2005. Interest-bearing deposits were $1,219,190,000 at end of 2005, an
increase of $271,904,000, or 28.7 percent, from one year earlier. Contributing to these increases was a corporate-wide
free checking deposit campaign to increase new account activity which resulted in 13,064 new personal accounts and
2,875 new business checking accounts. This represents a 20 percent increase in new checking account activity from
2004. In addition, $167,877,000 new deposits were acquired in merger transactions during the year.

Average total deposits during 2005 were $1,325,927,000, an increase of $265,940,000, or 25.1 percent, over 2004. Total
average interest-bearing deposits grew by $233,150,000, or 27.4 percent, led by a $131,263,000, or 33.9 percent,
increase in average interest-bearing transaction accounts. Average noninterest-bearing demand deposits increased
$32,790.,000, or 15.8 percent. In 2004, total deposits averaged $1,059,987,000, an increase of $113,068,000, or 10.7
percent, compared with 2003. This increase was also mainly due to growth in average interest-bearing transaction
accounts of $78,047,000, or 10.1 percent.

At December 31, 2005, the ratio of iﬁteresbbearing deposit‘s to total deposits was 82.8 percent, up slightly from 80.9
percent and 81.7 percent at the end of 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Table 10

Maturity Distribution of CD's of $100,DOO or more

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) : 2005 2004

Within three months : $ 78,377 $ 35,032
After three through six months ‘ . 58,567 21,342
After six through twelve months : : 81,533 . 49,774
After twelve months , ) 49,735 50,830
Total $ 268,212 3 156,978

Short-Term Borrowed Funds

The distribution of SCBT Financial Corporation’s short-term borrowings at the end of the last three years, the average
amounts outstanding during each such period, the maximum amounts outstanding at any month-end, and the weighted
average interest rates on year-end and average balances in each category are presented below. Federal funds purchased and
securities sold under agreement to repurchase most typically have maturities within one to three days from the
transaction date. Certain of the borrowings have no defined maturity date.
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Table 11

December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

At period-end:
Federal funds purchased
and securities sold under

repurchase agreeements $ 150,163 3.47% $ 89,206 1.43% $ 80,967 0.45%

Average for the year:
Federal funds purchased
and securities sold under

repurchase agreeements $ 123,352 2.46% $ 90,445 0.76% $ 86,185 0.63%

Maximum month-end balance:
Federal funds purchased
and securities sold under

repurchase agreeements $ 163,593 $ 111,889 $ 101,991

Capital and Dividends

A traditionally strong shareholders’ equity base has provided SCBT Financial Corporation with support for its banking
operations and opportunities for growth, while ensuring sufficient resources to absorb the risks inherent in the business. As
of December 31, 2003, shareholders’ equity was $148,403,000, or 7.7 percent of total assets. At year-end 2004 and 2003,
shareholders’ equity was $118,798,000, or 8.8 percent of total assets, and $112,349,000, or 9.4 percent of total assets,
respectively.

The Federal Reserve Board on March 1, 2005 announced changes to its capital adequacy rules, including the capital treatment of
trust preferred securities. The Federal Reserve’s new rules, which took effect in early April 2005, permit the bank holding
companies to treat outstanding trust preferred securities as Tier 1 Capital for the first 25 years of the 30 year term of the related
junior subordinated debt securities, The Company issued $40,000,000 of these types of junior non-consolidated securities during
2003, positively impacting Tier I Capital. (See Note 1 on page F-11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a more
detailed explanation of the Company’s trust preferred securities.)

The Company and its banking subsidiaries are subject to certain risk-based capital guidelines that measure the relationship
of capital to both balance sheet and off-balance sheet risks. Risk values are adjusted to reflect credit risk. Pursuant to
guidelines of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, which are substantially similar to those promulgated
by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, Tier 1 capital must be at least fifty percent of total capital and total
capital must be eight percent of risk-weighted assets. The Tier 1 capital ratio for SCBT Financial Corporation was 10.25
percent at December 31, 2005, 9.85 percent at December 31, 2004 and 11.81 percent at the end of 2003. The total capital
ratio for the Company was 11.45 percent, 11.10 percent and 13.06 percent for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively.

As an additional measure of capital soundness, the regulatory agencies have prescribed a leverage ratio of total capital to total
assets. The minimum leverage ratio assigned to banks is between three and five percent and is dependent on the
institution’s composite rating as determined by its regulators. The leverage ratio for SCBT Financial Corporation was 8.58
percent at December 31, 2005, 8.05 percent at December 31, 2004 and 9.13 percent at December 31, 2003. The Company
well exceeded all minimum ratio standards established by the regulatory agencies.

SCBT Financial Corporation pays cash dividends to shareholders from funds provided mainly by dividends from its
subsidiary banks. Such bank dividends are subject to certain regulatory restrictions and require the approval of the Office
of the Comptroller of the Currency in order to pay dividends in excess of the banks’ net earnings for the current year, plus
retained net profits for the preceding two years, less any required transfers to surplus. As of December 31, 2004,
approximately $31,577,000 of the Banks’ retained earnings was available for distribution to the Company as dividends
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without prior regulatory approval.

In 2005, the Company made shareholder dividend payments of $5,527,000 as compared with $5,228,000 in 2004 and
$5,070,000 in 2003. The dividend payout ratios were 34.29 percent, 36.66 percent and 33.98 percent for 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Earnings that are retained continue to be used as a basis for loan and investment portfolio growth and
in support of acquisition or other business expansion opportunities.

Noninterest Income and Expense

Noninterest income provides additional revenues for the Company that are significant sources of income. This is especially
important in periods such as the financial services industry has experienced in recent years in which prolonged historically
low interest rates have resulted in compression of net interest margins. For the year ended December 31, 2005, noninterest
income was $23,855,000, or 5.3 percent more than $22,650,000 in 2004. Noninterest income in 2004 was $265,000, or 1.2
percent less than $22,915,000 in 2003: In 2005, 2004 and 2003, noninterest income comprised 20.2 percent, 25.0 percent
and 26.1 percent, respectively, of total interest and noninterest income.

Service charges on deposit accounts were $12,473,000 in 20035, or 52.2 percent of total noninterest income, and $619,000,
or 5.2 percent, more than the total in,2004. This increase was mainly the result of strong deposit and deposit accounts
growth during 2005. For the year ended December 31, 2004, service charges on deposit accounts were $11,854,000, or
52.3 percent of total noninterest income. This was a $317,000, or 2.8 percent, increase over 2003 and also resulted
primarily from deposit growth.

During 2005, other service charges and fees increased by $2,345,000, or 26.0 percent, to $11,375,000, compared with
2004. For the year 2004, other service charges decreased $2,348,000, or 20.1 percent, to $9,030,000, compared to the
previous year of 2003. The year 2003 stands out during this three-year period as fees earned on the origination of home
mortgage loans sold into the secondary market reached peak levels. This was the result of the prolonged low interest rate
environment and attendant surge in loan activities, especially in the area of mortgage refinancing. Like most lending
institutions, the Company experienced a decrease in mortgage loan originations toward the end of 2003 and throughout 2004.
However, during 2005 the company was able to grow the volume of its secondary market originations and in turn increase
fee income related to these types of loans by $1,612,000, or 29.9 percent. During 2005, the Company produced
$197,000,000 more in secondary market mortgages than the previous year. This growth in volume is related to the
establishment in 2004 of the wholly owned subsidiary, The Mortgage Banc, and to the increase in mortgage originators
and their production in the Company’s bank subsidiaries. The performance of this affiliate has counter-balanced the
effects of a slowing home loan marketover the past few years by simply increasing the number of loans produced.

Noninterest income also includes gains on the sale of assets. During 2005, the Company realized $7,000 in gains while in
2004 the gains were $1,766,000. The Company initiated two nonrecurring-type transactions during 2004 that produced
significant additions to noninterest income. During the first quarter, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. recognized a
$782,000 pretax gain on the sale of its Cameron, South Carolina branch to Farmers and Merchants Bank of South Carolina.
In the second quarter of 2004, the Company’s banks sold their credit card loan portfolios to a third party service provider,
recognizing a combined pretax gain 0f'$953,000. There were no gains of this nature in 2003.

Noninterest expense was $60,053,000 in 20035, an increase of $8,918,000, or 17.4 percent, from 2004. In 2004, noninterest
expense was $51,135,000, an increase of $2,420,000, or 5.0 percent, compared with 2003. Salaries and employee benefits
were the largest component of noninterest expense, comprising 56.7 percent, 54.3 percent and 58.9 percent, respectively,
of the category totals for 2005, 2004 and 2003. In 20035, salaries and employee benefits were $34,074,000, an increase of
$6,312,000, or 22.7 percent, compared with 2004. This increase was primarily the result of an increase in full time
equivalent employees gained in the acquisitions during 2005 and the related benefits and incentive costs associated with
increased staffing levels. In 2004, salaries and employee benefits were $27,762,000, a decrease of $908,000, or 3.2 percent,
from 2003. This decrease resulted from lower commissions. paid on lower levels of mortgage loan originations and from
efforts to control personnel-related expenses. No incentive bonuses were paid in 2004. At December 31, 2005, the Company
employed 590 full-time equivalent employees, compared with 513 and 514 at the end of 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Payments under cash incentive plans covering all employees and based on attainment of certain earnings thresholds were
$1,583,302 in 2005, $0 in 2004, and $1,514,255 in 2003.

Net occupancy expense was $3,493,000, $3,309,000 and $2,887,000 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The 5.5 percent
increase in 2005 compared to 2004 and the 14.0 percent increase in 2004 compared to 2003 result from newly opened or
acquired financial centers during these years and the increased lease expenses and operating costs associated with the new
facilities. In 2003, an expense increase of 24.5 percent from the previous year was the result of bran¢h openings and the
new Columbia, South Carolina corporate headquarters facility completed and occupied in January 2003
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Furniture and equipment expense was $4,340,000, $4,447,000 and $4,397,000 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These
expenses were down 2.4 percent from 2004 to 2005 as service contract costs were largely offset by decreased expenses
associated with equipment data processing leases. The 1.1 percent expense increase from 2003 to 2004 was mainly due to
higher depreciation expense and costs of leasing data processing equipment and other equipment in connection with new
facilities.

For the year 2005, other expense was $17,944,000, an increase of $2,331,000, or 14.9 percent, compared with 2004. This
increase resulted from a $623,000 increase in information services expense as the Company expanded its footprint in two
additional markets in South Carolina and an increase of $618,000 in advertising expenses, mainly associated with extended
loan and deposit marketing campaigns and name recognition marketing efforts in newly entered geographical markets.
Charitable contributions increased in 2005 by approximately $400,000, including a $100,000 contribution to establish a
SCBT Foundation fund within the Central Carolina Community Foundation. The Company will be able to grow this
foundation fund over time through contributions and investment returns, and it will be able to largely centralize its CRA and other
donation activities through self-directed donations. The Company also incurred approximately $266,000 of merger related costs
during 2005. In 2004, other expense was $15,613,000, an increase of $2,852,000, or 22.4 percent, compared with 2003.
This increase resulted from a $629,000 increase in advertising expenses, mainly associated with extended loan and deposit
marketing campaigns; foreclosed property maintenance and disposition expense increases of $408,000; chief executive
officer severance expenses of $330,000; legal and accounting fee increases of $304,000, mainly due to internal control and
governance initiatives associated with Sarbanes-Oxley Act compliance issues; increase in customer printed check charges
of $100,000 due to a free checking campaign; increase for moving the Company’s stock listing from the American Stock
Exchange to The NASDAQ National Market of $100,000; increase in merger and acquisition expense related to purchase
of the Denmark branch and sale of the Cameron branch of $103,000; and a $258,000 increase in real property taxes due to
additional facilities and higher tax levies.

The Company also elected to strategically reposition a portion of its investment portfolio during 2005 for the current interest rate
environment generating a $202,000 loss on the sale of available-for-sale securities.

Table 12

Quarterly Results of Operations (unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

2005 Quarters 2004 Quarters
Fourth  Third Second First Fourth  Third Second First
Interest income $27,379 $24,532 $22,615 $19,767 $18,534 $17.442 $16,383 $15,554
Interest expense 9,519 7,667 6,415 5,109 4,570 3,862 3,104 3,107
Net interest income 17,860 16,865 16,200 14,658 13,964 13,580 13,279 12,447
Provision for loan losses 1,446 1,674 1,064 723 1,163 787 1,594 788
Noninterest income 6,238 6,549 5,788 5,280 5,411 5,208 6,310 5,721
Noninterest expense 16,735 15,495 14,680 13,143 13,269 12278 13,102 12,486
Income before income taxes 5,917 6,245 6,244 6,072 4,943 5,723 4,893 4,894
Income taxes 1,832 1,850 2,139 2,003 1,520 1,821 1,568 1,528
Net income $ 4085 $ 4395 $ 4,105 § 4,069 $ 3423 § 3902 § 3,325 § 3,366

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Through the operations of our Banks, we have made contractual commitments to extend credit in the ordinary course of our
business activities. These commitments are legally binding agreements to lend money to our customers at predetermined interest
rates for a specified period of time. We evaluate each customer's credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by us upon extension of credit, is based on our credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral
varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial and residential real estate, We
manage the credit risk on these commitments by subjecting them to normal underwriting and risk management processes.

At December 31, 2005, the Banks had issued commitments to extend credit of $396,614,000 through various types of lending

arrangements, of which $341,109,000 was at variable rates. We believe that we have adequate sources of liquidity to fund
commitments that are drawn upon by the borrowers.
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In addition to commitments to extend credit, we also issue standby letters of credit which are assurances to third parties that they
will not suffer a loss if our customer fails to meet its contractual obligation to the third party. Standby letters of credit totaled
$7,499,000 at December 31, 2005. Past experience indicates that many of these standby letters of credit will expire unused.
However, through our various sources of hquldlty, we believe that we will have the necessary resources to meet these obligations
should the need arise.

Except as disclosed in this report, we are ﬁot involved in off-balance sheet contractual relationships, unconsolidated related entities
that have off-balance sheet arrangements or transactions that could result in liquidity needs or other commitments that significantly
impact earnings.

Critical Accounting Policies

SCBT Financial Corporation has established various accounting policies that govern the application of accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements. The significant
accounting policies of the Company are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these policies
involve significant judgments and estimates by management that have a material impact on the carrying value of certain assets
and liabilities. Different assumptions in the application of these policies could result in material changes in the Company’s
financial position and results of operatio‘ns. ,
The allowance for loan losses reflects the estimated losses that w1ll result from the inability of the Banks’ borrowers to make
required loan payments. In determmmg“ an appropriate level for the allowance, management identifies portions applicable to
specific loans as well as providing amounts that are not identified with any specific loan but are derived with reference to actual
loss experience, loan types, loan volumes, economic conditions, and industry standards. Changes in these factors may cause
management’s estimate of the allowance to increase or decrease and result in adjustments to the Company’s provision for loan
losses. See “Loan Loss Provision” in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and “Allowance for Loan Losses” in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements for further detailed descriptions
of the Company’s estimation process and methodology related to the allowance for loan losses.

Core deposit premium costs, included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets, consist of costs that resulted from the
acquisition of deposits from other commercial banks. Core deposit premium costs represent the estimated value of long-term
deposit relationships acquired in these transactions. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the deposit
accounts acquired on a method that management believes reasonably approximates the anticipated benefit stream from the
accounts. The estimated useful lives are periodically reviewed for reasonableness. Goodwill represents the excess of the
purchase price over the sum of the estimated fair values of the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired less the
estimated fair value of the liabilities assumed. Goodwill is not amortized, but is evaluated annually for impairment.

Effect of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America which require the measure of financial position and results of operations in terms of historical
dollars, without consideration of changes in the relative purchasing power over time due to inflation. Unlike most other
industries, the majority of the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates
generally have a more significant effect on a financial institution’s performance than does the effect of inflation. Interest rates
do not necessarily change in the same magnitude as the prices 6f goods and services.

While the effect of inflation on banks is normally not as significant as is its influence on those businesses which have large
investments in plant and inventories, it'does have an effect. During periods of high inflation, there are normally corresponding
increases in money supply, and banks will normally experience above average growth in assets, loans and deposits. Also,
general increases in the prices of goods and services will result in increased operating expenses. Inflation also affects the
Banks’ customers and may result in an indirect effect on the Banks’ business.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table presents payment schedules for certain contractual obligations of the Company as of December 31, 2005.
Long-term debt obligations totaling $101,017,000 include advance agreements (borrowings) with the Federal Home Loan
Bank (FHLB) of Atlanta. These advances are collateralized by stock in the FHLB of Atlanta and qualifying first mortgage
residential loans and commercial real estate loans under a blanket floating lien. Further information regarding these advances
is contained in Table 11 of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Operating lease obligations of $25,735,000 pertain to banking facilities and equipment. Certain lease agreements include
payment of property taxes and insurance and contain various renewal options. Additional information regarding leases is
contained in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

(Dollars in thousands)
Payment Due by Period

Less Than 1-3 4-5 More Than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long-term debt obligations ‘"’ $144,257 $55,373 $3,335 $13,148 $72,401
Operating lease obligations 18.186 2.869 5,137 3.219 6.961
Total $162.443 £58,242 $8.472 $16,367 $79.362

(1) Represents principal maturities

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk

See “Asset-Liability Management and Market Risk Sensitivity” on page 29 in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations for quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See Table 12 on page 34 for the Company’s unaudited quarterly results of operations and page F-1 for the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Disclosures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31, 2005 (the "Evaluation Date"), the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company's management, including the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial
Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange
Act Ruje 13a-15. Management necessarily applied its judgment in the process of reviewing these controls and procedures, which,
by their nature, can provide only reasonable assurance regarding management's control objectives. Based upon this evaluation, the
Company's President and Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls
and procedures as of the Evaluation Date were effective to provide reasonable assurance regarding management's control
objectives.

Changes in Internal Controls
There were no changes in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during our most recent fiscal

quarter that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal controls over financial
reporting.
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Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.
Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’siinternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005
is included in Item 8 of this Report under the heading “Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting.”

The Company’s independent auditors have issued an audit report on management’s assessment of internal controls over financial
reporting. This report titled “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” appears in Item 8.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Ofiﬁcers of the Registranjt

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the information in the definitive proxy
statement of the Company to be filed in connection with the Company’s 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the
caption “Election of Directors”, in the fourth paragraph under the caption “The Board of Directors and Committees”, in the
subsection titled “Audit Committee” under the caption “The Board of Directors and Committees”, in the second paragraph of
the subsection titled “Governance Committee” under the caption “The Board of Directors and Committees,” and under the
caption “Section 16 (a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”.

Item 11, Executive Compensation ‘

The information required by this itém is incorporated herein by reference to the information in the definitive proxy
statement. of the Company to be filed in connection with thé Company’s 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the
caption “Compensation of Directors”, in the sections titled “Summary Compensation Table,” “Employment Agreements,”
“Stock Options,” “Aggregate Option Exercises During 2005 and Year End 2005 Option Values,” and “Option Grants in
2005” under the caption “Executive Compensation”, under the caption “Defined Benefit Pension Plan,” and under the
caption “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table contains certain {information as of December 31, 2005, relating to securities authorized for issuance
under the Company’s equity compensation plans:

A B C
Number of securities
remaining available

Number of securities for future issuance
to be'issued upon . Weighted-average under equity
exercise of exercise price of compensation plans
outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
Plan category warrants and rights . warrants and rights reflected in column “A™)
Equity compensation ‘
plans approved by 304,018 $23.32 846,126
security holders
quity compensation None — —

plans not approved
by security holders

Included within the 846,126 number of securities available for future issuance in the table above are a total of 284,911 shares
remaining from the authorized total of 315,000 under the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan. All securities totals for the
outstanding and remaining available for future issuance amounts described in this Item 12 have been adjusted to give effect to the 5%
stock dividend paid on January 1, 2005 to shareholders of record as of December 20, 2004.

Other information required by this 1tem is incorporated herein by reference to the information under the caption "Principal
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Shareholders" in the definitive proxy statement of the Company to be filed in connection with the Company’s 2006 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the information under the caption "Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions" in the definitive proxy statement of the Company to be filed in connection with the
Company’s 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information under the caption “Audit and Other Fees”

in the definitive proxy statement of the Company to be filed in connection with the Company’s 2006 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial State“ment Schedules

(a) 1. The financial statements ancf independent auditors’ report referenced in “Item 8 — Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” are listed below:

SCBT Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements iof Income

Consolidated Statements:of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Schedules Filed: ﬁTone

3. Exhibits
In most cases, documents incorporated by reference to exhibits that have been filed with the Company’s reports or proxy
statements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are available to the public over the Internet from the SEC’s web

site at http://www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any such document at the SEC’s pubic reference room located at
450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549 under the Company’s SEC file number (001-12669).

Exhibit No. Description of Exhibit

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 filed with the
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004)

3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 filed with the Registrant’s Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,:2004)

4.1 Specimen SCBT Common Sﬁbck Certificate

4.2 Articles of Incorporation (in¢luded as Exhibit 3.1)

4.3 Bylaws (included as Exhibit 3.2)

10.1 First National Corporation ‘:“Dividend Reinvestment Plan (incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-58692)

10.2* First National Corporation Incentive Stock Option Plan of 1996 (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Definitive Proxy Statement filed in connection with its 1996 Annual Meeting of Shareholders)

10.3*  First National Corporation 1999 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Registration
Statement on Form §-8, Registration No. 333-33092) ‘

10.4* Employment Agreement be;ftween the Registrant and Robert R. Hill, Jr., effective as of September 30, 1999
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’-;s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

10.5* Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Thomas S. Camp, effective as of November 10, 1998
(incorporated by reference to Exhlbxt 10.3 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

10.6* Employment Agreement Amendment between the Reglstrant and Thomas S. Camp, effective as of December 5, 2001
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 4 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

10.7* Employment Agreement between the Registrant and fohn C. Pollok, effective as of October 23, 2002 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Regi‘strant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

10.8* Employment Agreement between the Reglstrant and Richard C. Mathis, effective as of October 23, 2002
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)
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10.9* Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Joe E. Burns, effective as of October 23, 2002 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

10.10* First National Corporation 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-90014))

10.11* Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement between South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. and Robert R.
Hill, Jr., effective as of January 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2003)

10.12* Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement between South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. and Thomas S.
Camp, effective as of January 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2003)

10.13* Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement between South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. and John C,
Pollok, effective as of January 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2003)

10.14* Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement between South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. and Richard C.
Mathis, effective as of January 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2003)

10.15* Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement between South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. and Joseph E.
Burns, effective as of January 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2003)

10.16* SCBT Financial Corporation Stock Incentive Plan {incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Registrant’s
Definitive Proxy Statement filed in connection with its 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders)

10.17* Executive Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
10-K filed on March 15, 2005)

10.18* South Carolina Bank and Trust Deferred Income Plan dated January 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.29 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 10-K filed on March 15, 2005)

10.19* Compensation of Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
10-K filed on March 15, 2005)

10.20  Guarantee Agreement between SCBT Financial Corporation and Wilmington Trust Company, which is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form §-K filed on April 13, 2005

10.21 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust among SCBT Financial Corporation, as Sponsor, Wilmington Trust
Company, as Institutional Trustee, Wilmington Trust Company, as Delaware Trustee, and the Administrators Named therein,
including exhibits containing the related forms of the SCBT Capital Trust I Common Securities Certificate and the Preferred
Securities Certificate, which is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 13, 2005

10.22  Guarantee Agreement between SCBT Financial Corporation and Wilmington Trust Company, which is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 13, 2005

10.23  Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust among SCBT Financial Corporation, as Sponsor, Wilmington Trust
Company, as Institutional Trustee, Wilmington Trust Company, as Delaware Trustee, and the Administrators Named therein,
including exhibits containing the related forms of the SCBT Capital Trust Il Common Securities Certificate and the Preferred
Securities Certificate, which is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 13, 2005.

10.24 Employment Agreement between SCBT Financial Corporation and Thomas Bouchette, which is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 22, 2005.
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10.25 Noncompete Agreement between SCBT Financial Corporation and Thomas Bouchette, which is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 22, 2005.

10.26  Guarantee Agreement between SCBT Financial Corporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, which is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 22, 2005.

10.27  Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust among SCBT Financial Corporation, as Sponsor, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
National Association, as Institutional Trustee, Chase Bank USA, National Association, as Delaware Trustee, and the
Administrators Named therein, including exhibits containing the related forms of the SCBT Capital Trust III Capital Securities
Certificate and the Common Securities Certificate, which is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 22, 2005.

10.28 Form of SCBT Financial Corporatlon Restricted Stock Agreement for Restricted Stock Awarded to Dlrectors Under the
SCBT Financial Corporation Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of May 27, 2004.

10.29  Form of SCBT Financial Corpbration Restricted Stock :Agreement — Restricted Stock Awarded to Employees Under the
SCBT Financial Corporation Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of May 27, 2004.

10.30 Form of SCBT Financial Cotporation Stock Option Agreement for Options Granted to Directors Under the SCBT
Financial Corporation Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of May 27, 2004.

1031  Form of SCBT Financial Corboration Stock Option Agreement — for Options Granted to Affiliates Under the SCBT
Financial Corporation Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of May 27, 2004.

14 SCBT Code of Ethics, which is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 to the Registrants Current Report on Fork 10-K
filed on March 12, 2004. ‘

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23 Consent of J. W. Hunt and Company, LLP

24 Power of Attorney (filed wittl the signature page hereof)
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification t)f the Chief Executive Qfﬁcer
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
32 Section 1350 Certifications

99.1 Supplemental Materials Distributed to Shareholders

[

* Denotes a management compensatory plan or arrangement.
(b) See la Exhibit Index following the Annual Report on Form 10-K for a listing of 1a exhibits filed herewith.

(¢} Not Applicable.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Columbia and State of
South Carolina, on the 14th day of March, 2006.

SCBT Financial Corporation

By: /S/Robert R. Hill, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

- KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Robert R.
Hill, Jr., his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his
name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file
the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
granting unto attorney-in-fact and agent full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite or
necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that attorney-in-fact and agent, or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done
by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons in the capacities indicated on March 16, 2006.

/S/ Robert R. Hill, Jr.
Robert R. Hill, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

/S/ Richard C. Mathis
Richard C. Mathis
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

/S/ Karen L. Dey
Karen L. Dey

Senior Vice President and Controller

/S/ Robert R. Horger
Robert R. Horger
Chairman of the Board of Directors

/S/ Colden R. Battey, Jr.
Colden R. Battey, Jr.
Director

/S/ Luther J. Battiste, 111
Luther J. Battiste, III
Director

/S/ M. Oswald Fogle
M. Oswald Fogle
Director

/S/ Dalton B. Flovd, Jr.
Dalton B. Floyd, Jr.
Director

{S/ Dwight W. Frierson
Dwight W. Frierson
Director
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/S/ R. Caine Halter
R. Caine Halter
Director

/S/ Harry M. Mims, Jr.
Harry M. Mims, Jr.
Director

/S/ Ralph W. Norman
Ralph W. Norman
Director

/S/ James W. Rogquemore
James W. Roquemore
Director

/S/ Thomas E. Suggs
Thomas E. Suggs
Director

/S/ Susie H. VanHuss
Susie H. VanHuss
Director

/S/ A. Dewall Waters
A. Dewall Waters
Director

/S/ John W. Williamson, III
John W, Williamson, 111
Director

/S/ Cathy Cox Yeadon
Cathy Cox Yeadon
Director




Exhibit No.

4.1

10.28

10.29

10.30
10.31
21
23
311
31.2

32
99.1

EXHIBIT INDEX
Description of Exhibit
SCBT Financial Corporation Stock Certificate Specimen

Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Awarded to Directors

Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Awarded to Employees

Form of Agreement for Stock Options Granted to Directors
Form of Agreement for Stock Options Granted to Employees
Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of J.W. Hunt and Company, LLP

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

Section 1350 Certifications

Supplemental Materials Distributed to Shareholders

EXHIBIT 4.1

SCBT Financial Corporation Stock Certificate Specimen

EXHIBIT 21
Subsidiaries of the Registrant

South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. (Orangeburg, South Carolina)

South Carolina Bank and Trust of the Piedmont, N.A. (Rock Hill, South Carolina)

SunBank, N.A. (Murells Inlet, South Carolina)

SCBT Capital Trust I
SCBT Capital Trust I

SCBT Capital Trust I1I
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EXHIBIT 23

Independent Auditors’ Consent
Board of Directors
SCBT Financial Corporation

We consent to the incorporation by reference of our Report, dated March 11, 2006, included in SCBT Financial
Corporation’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, into the Registration Statement on Form
S-8 (File No. 333-26029) and the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-103708) filed by SCBT Financial
Corporation with respect to the SCBT Financial Corporation Employee Savings Plan, the Registration Statement on Form S-8
(File No. 333-26031) filed by SCBT Financial Corporation with respect to the SCBT Financial Corporation Incentive Stock
Option Plan of 1996, the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-33092) filed by SCBT Financial Corporation
with respect to the SCBT Financial Corporation 1999 Stock Option Plan, the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No.
333-90014) filed by SCBT Financial Corporation with respect, to the SCBT Financial Corporation Employee Stock Purchase
Plan, the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-115919) filed by SCBT Financial Corporation with respect to the
SCBT Financial Corporation Stock Incentive Plan, and the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (file No. 333-86922) and the
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (file No. 333-103707), filed by SCBT Financial Corporation with respect to certain
Restricted Stock Agreements. | ‘

/S/ J. W. Hunt and Company, LLP
J. W. Hunt and Company, LLP

Columbia, South Carolina
March 16, 2006
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Robert R. Hill, Jr., Chief Executive Officer, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of SCBT Financial Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual
report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

/s/ Robert R. Hill, Ir.
Chief Executive Officer
Date: March 16, 2006
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~ EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Richard C. Mathis, Chief Financial Officer, certify that:'l
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of SCBT Financial Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report :

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure ‘controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to'us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual
report is being prepared; ‘

b) Designed such internal control over financial reportmg, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, ‘to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements. for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation;

|

d) Disclosed in this report any éhange in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportmg, and

5. The registrant’s other certifying ofﬁcer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses; in the design or operation of internal controls over financial
reporting which are reasonably hkely to adversely affeéct the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

/s/ Richard C. Mathis
Chief Financial Officer
Date: March 16, 2006 i
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of SCBT Financial Corporation (“the Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Robert R. Hill,
Jr., Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all materials respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods expressed in the Report.

/s/ Robert R. Hill, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer
March 16, 2006

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of SCBT Financial Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Richard C.
Mathis, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods expressed in the Report.

/s/ Richard C. Mathis
Chief Financial Officer
March 16, 2006
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of SCBT Financial Corporation (the “Company”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting. Management has assessed the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting using
the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO).

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitions, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets thdt could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Therefore,
even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation and presentation. Also, prOJectlons of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Based on the testing performed using the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), management of the Company believes that the company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005.

The Company’s external auditor, J.W. Hunt and Company, LLP, has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment
and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

SCBT Financial Corporation
Columbia, South Carolina
March 16, 2006

: www.SCBandT.com
(893) 771-2265 P.O. Box 1030, Columbia, S.C. 29202-1030
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To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of SCBT Financial Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SCBT Financial Corporation
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of
income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2005. We also have audited management’s assessment, included in
the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that SCBT
Financial Corporation maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
SCBT Financial Corporation’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements, an opinion on management’s assessment, and an opinion
on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audit of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.




A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the. reliability of finarcial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal contrbl over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the malntenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dlsposmons of the assets. of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary ‘to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regardmg prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the ﬁnanc1al statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial sfatements reférred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of SCBT Financial Corporation and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion,
management’s assessment that SCBT Financial Corporatlon maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based
on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Furthermore, in our opinion,
SCBT Financial Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission (COSO).

| S.U.M«»&M,Lm

Columbia, South Caroline}
March 11, 2006



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in thousands, except par value)

December 31,

2005 2004
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and due from banks 58,554 $ 39,261
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 3,140 14,876
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under agreements to resell 41,440 3,000
Total cash and cash equivalents 103,134 57,137
Investment securities:
Securities held to maturity (fair value of $18,453 in 2005 and $25,406 in 2004) 18,194 24,604
Securities available for sale, at fair value 153,628 135,058
Other investments 10,922 5,784
Total investment securities 182,744 165,446
Loans held for sale 12,961 13,837
Loans 1,535,918 1,153,407
Less unearned income an 177
Less allowance for loan losses (20,025) (14,470)
Loans, net 1,515,876 1,138,760
Premises and equipment, net 43,664 33,667
Goodwill 32,220 3,717
Other assets 35,2587 24,413
Total assets 1,925,856 $ 1,436,977
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing 254,099 $ 224,027
Interest-bearing 1,219,190 947,286
Total deposits 1,473,289 1,171,313
Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase 150,163 89,208
Other borrowings 144,257 51,928
Other liabilities 9,744 5,730
Total liabilities 1,777,453 1,318,179
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 20, 21 and 23)
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock - $2.50 par value; authorized 40,000,000 shares
8,644,883 and 7,657,094 shares issued and outstanding in 2005 and 2004, respectively 21,612 19,143
Stock dividend distributable - 955
Surplus 90,481 72,079
Retained earnings 37,614 26,486
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (1,304) 135
Total shareholders' equity 148,403 118,798
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,925,856 $ 1,436,977

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F-2



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Interest income:
Loans, including fees $ 85,590 $ 61,267 $ 58,283
Investment securities:
Taxable 6,162 4,861 4,682
Tax-exempt 1,217 1,461 1,679
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under agreements to resell 949 138 82
Money market funds 1 11 67
Deposits with banks 374 175 61
Total interest income 94,293 67,913 64,854
Interest expense:
Deposits ‘ 21,146 11,243 11,555
Federal funds purchased and securities |
sold under agreements to repurchase 3,031 687 545
Other borrowingi 4,533 2,713 2,522
Total interest expense 28,710 14,643 14,622
Net interest income:
Net interest income 65,583 53,270 50,232
Provision for loan losses 4,907 4,332 2,345
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 60,676 48,938 47,887
Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts 12,473 11,854 11,537
Other service charges and fees 11,375 9,030 11,378
Gain on sale of assets 7 1,766 -
Total noninterest income 23,855 22,650 22,915
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 34,074 27,762 28,670
Net occupancy expense 3,493 3,309 2,887
Furniture and equipment expense 4,340 4,447 4,397
Realized losses on securities available for sale 202 4 -
_ Other expense 17,944 15,613 12,761
Total noninterest expense 60,053 51,135 48,715
Earnings: :
Income before provision for income taxes . 24,478 20,453 22,087
Provision for income taxes 7,823 6,437 7,301
Net income $ 16,655 $ 14,016 S 14,786
Earnings per share:
Basic $2.05 $1.74 $1.83
Diluted $2.03 $1.72 $1.82

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated
Stock Other
Common Stock Dividend Retained Comprehensive
Shares  Amount Distributable Surplus Earnings _ Income (Loss) Total
Balance, December 31, 2002 7,673,339 § 19,183 - $ 62423 § 20,071 § 1,819 § 103,496
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - - - 14,786 - 14,786
Change in net unrealized gain on securities
available for sale, net of tax effects - - - - - (1,204) (1,204)
Total comprehensive income 13,582
Cash dividends declared at $.66 per share - - - - (5,070) - (5,070)
Stock options exercised 5,723 14 - 86 - - 100
Employee stock purchases 11,224 28 - 217 - - 245
Restricted stock awards 2,000 5 - 44 - - 49
Common stock repurchased (2,100) (5) - (48) - - (53)
Balance, December 31, 2003 7,690,186 19,225 - 62,722 29,787 615 112,349
Comprehensive income: -
Net income - - - - 14,016 - 14,016

Change in net unrealized gain on securities

available for sale, net of reclassification

adjustment and tax effects - - - - - (480) (480)

Total comprehensive income 13,536

Cash dividends declared at $.68 per share - - - - (5,228) - (5,228)
Stock options exercised 71,617 179 - 1,125 - - 1,304
Employee stock purchases 11,199 28 - 253 - - 281
Restricted stock awards 5,000 13 - 133 - - 146
Common stock repurchased (120,908) (302) - (3,288) - - (3,590)
Common stock dividend of 5%, record date,

December 20, 2004 - - 955 11,134 (12,089) - -
Balance, December 31, 2004 7,657,094 19,143 955 72,079 26,486 135 118,798
Comprehensive income:

Net income - - - - 16,655 - 16,655
Change in net unrealized loss on securities
available for sale, net of reclassification
adjustment and tax effects - - - - - (1,439) (1,439)
Total comprehensive income 15,216
Cash dividends declared at $.68 per share - - - - (5,527) - (5,527)
Stock options exercised 21,191 53 - 342 - - 395
Employee stock purchases 12,166 30 - 287 - - 317
Restricted stock awards 17,067 43 - 516 - - 559
Common stock repurchased (8,342) (21) - (231) - - (252)
Common stock issued 564,379 1,411 - 17,486 - - 18,897
Common stock dividend issued 381,328 953 (955) 2 - - -
Balance, December 31, 2005 8,644,883 § 21,612 $ - $ 90481 § 37,614 3§ (1,304) § 148,403

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from operating activities: :
Net income ‘ ' $ 16,655 $ 14,016 $ 14,786
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash ‘
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 3,057 2,698 2,498
Provision for loan losses : 4,907 4,332 2,345
Deferred income taxes ‘ (1,591) (651) 186
Loss on sale of securities available for sale 202 4 -
Gain on sale of assets ' (8) (1,766) @)
Net amortization of investment securities 309 526 1,054
Net change in;
Loans held for sale 876 (1,491 26,795
Accrued interest receivable (2,316) (1,120) 362
Prepaid assets \ (614) 256 (D
Miscellaneous other assets : 1,620 (2,856) (4,916)
Accrued interest payable _ 1,622 429 (739)
Accrued income taxes ! _ 517 36 (502)
Miscellaneous other liabilities 445 356 2,115
Net cash provided by operating activities 25,681 14,769 43,976
Cash flows from investing activities: -
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for sale “ 6,998 1,996 -
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities held to maturity 6,367 2,595 3,666
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities available for sale 25,262 56,594 118,467
Proceeds from sales of other investment securities ' 788 832 -
Purchases of investment securities available for sale . (34,698) (75,415) (111,662)
Purchases of other investment securities ‘ (4,991) (1,341) (526)
Net increase in customer loans : (229,171) (225,341) (77,747)
Recoveries of loans previously charged off i 383 446 700
Business combinations, net of cash acquired (20,650) - -
Purchase of limited partnership interést ' (840) - -
Purchases of premises and equipment ; (5,300) (3,337) (6,022)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment ‘ 141 277 23
Proceeds from sale of credit card portfolio - 9,814 -
Net cash used by investing activities (255,711) (232,880) (73,101)
Cash flows from financing activities: :
Net increase in demand deposits ; 133,975 236,753 48,116
Net increase (decrease) in federal funds purchased ‘
and securities sold under agreements to repurchase . 60,956 8,240 (7,648)
Proceeds from issuance of debt : : 103,329 96,000 46,550
Repayment of debt i ' (17,602) (96,122) (44,000)
Payment in connection with sale of branch } - (12,214) -
Common stock issuance ‘ : 876 427 294
Common stock repurchase ‘ , (252) (3,590) (53)
Dividends paid ' , (5,527) (5,228) (5,070)
Stock options exercised 1 ' 395 1,304 100
Payments on noncompete agreements (123) - -
Net cash provided by financing activities 276,027 225,570 38,289
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 45,997 7,459 ‘ 9,164
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year , 57,137 49,678 40,514
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ) $103,134 $ 57,137 $ 49,678
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Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Supplemental Disclosures:
Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for:
Interest $ 26,351 $ 14,231 $ 15,361
Income taxes § 8,887 $ 7,110 $ 7,761
Schedule of Noncash Investing Transactions:
Acquisition of SunBank, N.A.:
Fair value of tangible assets acquired ‘ $ 97,497 $ - $ -
Goodwill and other intangible assets acquired 17,424
Liabilities assumed (88,346)
Common stock issued (18,897)
Real estate acquired in full or in partial settlement of loans 1,073 1,911 1,465
Total $ 8,751 $ 1,911 § 1,463

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NATURE OF OPERATIONS:

SCBT Financial Corporation (the “Company”) is a bank holding company whose principal activity is the ownership and
management of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A., South Carolina Bank and Trust of the
Piedmont, N.A., and Sunbank, N.A. (the “Banks”). The Banks provide general banking services within the State of South
Carolina. The Mortgage Banc (“TMB”), a wholly owned subsidiary of South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A., provides
mortgage products and services to other financial institutions and mortgage companies in South Carolina and some out-of-
state markets. TMB’s offices and personnel are located in the Company’s headquarters facility in Columbia, South Carolina.
The accounting and reporting policies of the Company and its subsidiaries conform with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In April 2005, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. acquired and incorporated New Commerce BanCorp, and its subsidiary
bank, New Commerce Bank, into its operations. Under the terms of the acquisition, New Commerce BanCorp shareholders
received $18.00 in cash for each share of New Commerce BanCorp common stock that they held.

In April 2005, the Company formed SCBT Capital Trust [ and SCBT Capital Trust II for the purpose of issuing an aggregate
of $20,000,000 of trust preferred securities. In July 2005, the Company formed SCBT Capital Trust III for the purpose of
issuing an aggregate of $20,000,000 of trust preferred securities.

In November 2005, the Company acquired Sun Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiary bank SunBank, N.A. The Company paid
$26,574,000 for the acquisition. The Company has received regulatory approval to merge SunBank, N.A. into its lead
subsidiary, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A., during the first quarter of 2006.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and other entities in which it has a controlling
financial interest. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Assets held
by the Company in trust are not assets of the Company and are not included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTS:

The Company, through its subsidiaries, provides a broad range of financial services to individuals and companies in South
Carolina. These services include demand, time and savings deposits; lending and credit card servicing; ATM processing; and
trust services. While the Company’s decision makers monitor the revenue streams of the various financial products and
services, operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on an organization-wide basis. Accordingly, the
Company’s banking and finance operations are not considered by management to be more than one reportable operating
segment.

USE OF ESTIMATES:
The preparation of consolidated financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
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United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated balance sheet and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to
significant change in the near termr relate to the determination of the-allowance for loan losses, fair value of financial
instruments, and valuation of deferred tax assets. In connection with the determination of the allowance for loan losses,
management has identified specific loans as well as adopted a policy of providing amounts for loan valuation purposes which
are not identified with any specific loan but are derived from actual loss experience ratios, loan types, loan volume, economic
conditions and industry standards. Management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate. While management
uses available information to recognize losses on loans, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on changes
in economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of the examination process, periodically review
the banking subsidiaries’ allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require additions to the allowance based on their
judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Company’s subsidiaries grant agribusiness, commer(:lal and residential loans to customers throughout South Carolina.
Although the subsidiaries have a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of their debtors’ ability to honor” their contracts
is dependent upon economic conditions within South Carolina and the surrounding region.

The Company considers concentrations of credit to exist when, pursuant to regulatory guidelines, the amounts loaned to a
multiple number of borrowers engaged in similar business activities which would cause them to be similarly impacted by
general economic conditions represents 25% of total risk-based capital, or $42,972,000 at December 31, 2005. Based on this
criteria, the Company had five such credit concentrations at the end of 20035, including $133,174,000 of loans to borrowers
engaged in other activities related to real estate, $120,571,000 of loans to lessors of nonresidential buildings, $60,295,000 of
loans to religious organizations, $54,043,000 of loans to lessors of residential buildings, and $48,505,000 of loans to borrowers
constructing new single family housing.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
cash items in process of collection, amounts due from banks, interest bearing deposits with banks, purchases of securities
under agreement to resell, and federal funds sold. Due from bank balances are maintained in other financial institutions.
Federal funds sold are generally purchased and sold for one-day periods, but may from time to time have longer terms.

The Company enters into purchases of securities under agreements to resell substantially identical securities for the purpose of
collateralizing certain customer deposit relationships. Securities purchased under agreements to resell at December 31, 2005 and 2004
consisted of U.S. Government agency and mortgage-backed securities. It is the Company’s policy to take possession of securities
purchased under agreements to resell. The securities are delivered by appropriate entry into the Company’s account maintained by a
third-party custodian designated by the Company under a written custodial agreement that explicitly recognizes the Company’s
interest in the secunities. At December 31, 2005, these agreements were considered to be short-term investments with maturities of
three months or less.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES:

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as "held to maturity" and
carried at amortized cost. Securities not classified as held to maturity, including equity securities with readily determinable
fair values, are classified as "available for sale" and carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses excluded from
earnings and reported in other comprehensive income.

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using methods approximating the interest method over the
terms of the securities. Declines in the fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below their cost that are
deemed to be other than temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses. Gains and losses realized on sales of securities
available for sale are determined using the specific identification method. In estimating other-than-temporary impairment
losses, management considers: (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the
financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuers, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment
in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

Other investments include stock acquired for regulatory purposes and trust preferred securities. Stock acquired for regulatory
purposes include Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (“FHLB”) stock and Federal Reserve Bank stock. These securities do
not have a readily determinable fair Value because their ownership is restricted and they lack a market for trading. As a result,
these securities are carried at cost and are periodically evaluated for impairment. Trust preferred securities represent a
minority investment in SCBT Capital Trust I, SCBT Capital Trust II, and SCBT Capital Trust III. These investments are
recorded at cost and the Company receives quarterly dividend payments on these investments.
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LOANS HELD FOR SALE:

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value in the
aggregate. Estimated fair value is determined on the basis of existing forward commitments, or the current market value of
similar loans. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income.

LOANS:

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off generally are
reported at their unpaid principal balances, less unearned discounts and the allowance for loan losses. Unearned discounts on
installment loans are recognized as income over the terms of the loans by methods that generally approximate the interest
method. Interest on other loans is calculated by using the simple interest method on daily balances of the principal amount
outstanding. Loans are placed on nonaccrual status depending upon the type of loan, the past due status, and the collection
activities in progress. Well-secured loans, in the process of collection, are allowed to remain on an accrual basis until they
become 120 days past due. Partially secured loans are written down to the collateral value and placed on nonaccrual status
on or before becoming 90 days past due. Unsecured commercial loans are charged off on or before the date they become 90
days past due. Closed end consumer loans and open end consumer loans are charged off or written down to the contractual
value on or before becoming 120 and 180 days past due, respectively. A nonaccrual loan may not be considered impaired if it
is expected that the delay in payment is minimal. Interest accrued in the current year but unpaid at the date a loan is placed
on nonaccrual status is deducted from interest income. Interest accrued from previous years is charged against the allowance
for loan losses. Interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent of interest payments received.

A loan is considered impaired when, in management’s judgment, based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status,
collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Management
determines when loans become impaired through its normal loan administration and review functions. Loans identified as
substandard or doubtful as a result of the loan review process are potentially impaired loans. Loans that experience
insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired, provided that management expects
to collect all amounts due, including interest accrued at the contractual interest rate for the period of delay. Impairment is
measured on a loan by loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if
the loan is collateral dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company does
not separately identify individual residential mortgage, overdraft protection, home equity line, and consumer installment loans
for impairment disclosures.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES:

The allowance for loan losses is established for estimated loan charge-offs through a provision for loan losses charged to
earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes that the collectibility of the principal is
unlikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s periodic
review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse
situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral, and prevailing
economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant
revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The specific component relates to loans that are
classified as either doubtful, substandard or special mention. For such loans that are also classified as impaired, an allowance
is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower
than the carrying value of that loan. The general component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical loss
experience adjusted for qualitative factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect
management’s estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision
inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio.

Although management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, because of uncertainties associated with local
economic conditions, collateral values, and future cash flows on impaired loans, it is reasonably possible that a material
change could occur in the allowance for loan losses in the near term. However, the amount of the change that is reasonably
possible cannot be estimated. The allowance is increased by a provision for loan losses, which is charged to expense and
reduced by charge-offs, net of recoveries. Changes in the allowance relating to impaired loans are charged or credited to the
provision for loan losses.
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RATE LOCK COMMITMENTS:

The Company enters into rate lock commitments to originate mortgage loans whereby the interest rate on the loan is
determined prior to funding. Rate lock commitments on mortgage loans that are originated for resale are considered to be
derivatives. The period of time between issuance of a loan commitment and closing and sale of the loan generally ranges
from 10 to 60 days. For such rate lock commitments, the Company is protected from changes in interest rates through the use
of best efforts forward delivery commitments, whereby an investor commits to buy the loan at the time the borrower commits
to an interest rate with the intent that the investor has assumed the interest rate risk on the loan. As a result, the Company is
not exposed to losses nor will it realize gains or losses related to its rate lock commitments due to changes in interest rates.
Operational processes may create timing differences where the final delivery of a forward contract to purchase a loan may
occur in the reporting period immediately following the period when the loan was originally closed. The market values of
rate lock commitments and best efforts contracts are not reddily ascertainable with precision because rate lock commitments
and best efforts contracts are not actively traded.

OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED (“OREO”):

Real estate acquired in satisfaction of a loan and in-substance foreclosures are reported in other assets. In-substance
foreclosures are properties in which the borrower has little or no equity in the collateral. Properties acquired by foreclosure or
deed in lieu of foreclosure and in-substance foreclosures are transferred to OREO and recorded at the lower of the
outstanding loan balance at the time of acquisition or the estimated market value, Market value is determined on the basis of the
properties being disposed of in the normal course of business and not on a liquidation or distress basis. Loan losses arising from
the acquisition of such properties are charged against the allowance for loan losses. Gains or losses arising from the sale of
OREO are reflected in current operations.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over
transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee
obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred
assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement -to
repurchase them before their maturity. ’

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT:

Land is carried at cost. Office equipment, furnishings, and buildings are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
computed principally on the declining-balance and stralght line methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Leasehold improvements are amortized on the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the
improvements or the terms of the related leases including lease renewals only when the Company is reasonably assured of
the aggregate term of the lease. Additions to premises and equipment and major replacements are added to the accounts at
cost. Maintenance and repairs and minor replacements are charged to expense when incurred. Gains and losses on routine
dispositions are reflected in current operations.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS: .

Intangible assets consist primarily of goodwill and core deposn premium costs that result from the acquisition of other
companies or branches from other banks. Core deposit premium costs represent the value of long-term deposit relationships
acquired in these transactions. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the sum of the fair values of the
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired less the [fair value of the liabilities assumed. Core deposit premium costs
are being amortized over the estimated useful lives of' the deposit accounts acquired on a method that reasonably
approximates the anticipated benefit stream from the accounts. Goodwill is not amortized, and is reviewed annually for
potential impairment. The impairment tests are performed at a reporting unit level annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. To the extent that impairment exists, write-downs to
realizable value are recorded.

ADVERTISING COSTS:

The Company expenses advertising productlon costs as they are incurred and advertising communication costs the first time
the advertising takes place. The Company may establish accruals for anticipated advertising expenses within the course of a
current year.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net income.
Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, are
reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with net income, are
components of comprehensive income (see NOTE 13).
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS:
A summary of the Company’s various employee benefit plans follows:

Pension Plan - The Company and its subsidiaries have a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan covering all employees
hired on or before December 31, 2005, who have attained age 21, and who have completed one year of eligible service. The
Company’s funding policy is based principally, among other considerations, on contributing an amount necessary to satisfy
the Internal Revenue Service’s funding standards.

Profit-Sharing Plan - The Company and its subsidiaries have a profit-sharing plan, including Internal Revenue Code Section
401(k) provisions. Electing employees are eligible to participate after attaining age 21 and completing one year of eligible
service. Plan participants elect to contribute portions of their annual base compensation as a before tax contribution. In 2005
and prior years, the Company has matched 50% of these contributions up to a 6% employee conribution. Employer
contributions may be made from current or accumulated net profits. Participants may elect to contribute an additional 1% to
6% (or higher, in certain cases) of annual base compensation as a before tax contribution with no employer matching
contribution. In 2006, the Company will continue its current matching policy for current employees aged 45 and higher with five or
more years of service. The Company has changed some of the provisions in its defined benefit plan and as a result of reduced benefits
for certain employees, will match 100 percent of contributions up to 6 percent of salary of current employees under forty-five or with
less than five years of service. Additionally, any employee hired in 2006 or thereafter will not participate in the defined benefit
pension plan, but they will receive the Company’s 100 percent matching of their 401(k) plan contribution, up to 6 percent of salary.

Retiree Medical Plan - Post-retirement health and life insurance benefits are provided to eligible employees, such benefits being
limited to those employees of the Company eligible for early retirement under the pension plan on or before December 31,
1993, and former employees who are currently receiving benefits. The plan was unfunded at December 31, 2005, and the
liability for future benefits has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan - The Company has registered 315,000 shares of common stock in connection with the
establishment of an Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The Plan, which is effective for the seven-year period commencing July
1,.2002, is available to all employees who have attained age 21 and completed one year of service. The price at which
common stock may be purchased for each quarterly option period is the lesser of 85% of the common stock’s fair value on
either the first or last day of the quarter.

INCOME TAXES:

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of the transactions reported in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes related primarily to differences between the basis of
available-for-sale securities, allowance for loan losses, accumulated depreciation, net operating loss carryforwards, accretion
income, deferred compensation, intangible assets, and pension plan and post-retirement benefits. The deferred tax assets and
liabilities represent the future tax return consequences of those differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when
the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at income tax rates applicable
to the period in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates
are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes. The Company files a
consolidated federal income tax return with its subsidiaries.

STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS:

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, allows all
entities to adopt a fair value based method of accounting for employee stock compensation plans, whereby compensation cost
is measured at the grant date based on the value of the award and is recognized over the service period, which is usually the
vesting period. However, it also allows an entity to continue to measure compensation cost for those plans using the intrinsic
value based method of accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, whereby compensation cost is the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the stock at the grant date
(or other measurement date) over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. Stock options issued under the
Company’s stock option plans have no intrinsic value at the grant date, and under APB Opinion No. 25, no compensation cost
1s recognized for them. The Company has elected to continue with the accounting methodology in APB Opinion No. 25 and,
as a result, has provided pro forma disclosures of net income and earnings per share and other disclosures, as if the fair value
based method of accounting had been applied. The pro forma disclosures include the effects of all awards granted on or after
January 1, 1995. The Company recognizes compensation cost related to restricted stock awards on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period. Please refer to “RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS” below for more discussion of SFAS
123R.

EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Basic earnings per share represents income available to shareholders divided by the weighted-average number of shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share reflects additional shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive
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potential shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance. Potential
shares that may be issued by the Company relate solely to outstanding stock options, and are determined using the treasury
stock method. Under the treasury stock method, the number of incremental shares is determined by assummg the issuance of
the outstanding stock options, reduced by the number of shares assumed to be repurchased from the issuance proceeds, using
the average market price for the year of the Company’s stock..

RECLASSIFICATION:
Certain amounts previously reported have been restated only for the purpose of conforming with the current year’s
presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on net income.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBY) issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections
— A Replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3. This new standard replaces APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting
Changes, and FASB Statement No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements. Among other changes, SFAS
154 requires that a voluntary change in accountmg principle be applied retrospectively with all prior period financial statements
presented on the new accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to do so. SFAS 154 also provides that (1) a change in method of
depreciating or amortizing a long-lived nonfinancial asset be accounted for as a change in estimate (prospectively) that was effected
by a change in accounting principle, and (2) correction of erfors in previously issued financial statements should be termed a
“restatement”. The new standard is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2005. Early adoption is pérmitted for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after
the date SFAS 154 was issued. SFAS ‘;154 does not change the transition provisions of any existing accounting pronouncements,
including those that are in a transition phase as of the effective date of SFAS 154. The Company does not anticipate this revision will
have a material effect on its financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-based Payment, which eliminates the ability to account for
share-based compensation transactions using APB Opinion No. 25, and generally requires that such transactions be accounted for
using a fair value-based method with the resulting compensation cost recognized over the period that the employee is required to
provide service in order to receive their compensation. SFAS 123R also amends SFAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows, requiring the
benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an
operating cash flow as currently required. In the first quarter of 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (*SEC”) issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. (“SAB”) 107. SAB 107 addresses the interaction between SFAS 123R and certain SEC rules and regulations
and provides the SEC staff’s views regarding the valuation of ‘share-based payment arrangements for public companies. Also, in
April 2005, the SEC adopted a new rule that made SFAS 123R effective beginning with the first interim or annual reporting period of
the registrant’s first fiscal year beginning on or after June 15, 2005. The Company will be required to adopt SFAS 123R in the first
quarter of 2006 and currently discloses the effect on net income and earnings per share based on the fair value recognition provisions
of SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. The Company estimates that the impact of the adoption of SFAS 123R on
its results of operations for 2006 is approximately $423,000, net of tax effects.

In December 2004, The FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets — an amendment of APB Opinion No. 29.
SFAS 153 addresses the measurement of nonmonetary exchanges and eliminates the exception from fair value measurement for
nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets in APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions, and replaces
it with an exception for exchanges that.do not have commercial substance. SFAS 153 specifies that a nonmonetary exchange has
commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are' expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. The
provisions of SFAS 153 are effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The
Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 153 to have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

In March 2004, the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force: (“EITF”) Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments. EITF 03-01 provides recognition and measurement guidance regarding when
impairments of equity and debt securities are considered other-than-temporary thereby requiring a charge to earnings, and also
requires additional annual disclosures for investments in unrealized loss positions. The additional annual disclosure requirements were
previously issued by the EITF in November 2003 and were effective for the Company for the year ended December 31, 2003. In
September 2004, the FASB staff proposed two FASB Staff ‘Positions (“FSP”). The first, proposed FSP EITF Issue 03-1-a,
Implementation Guidance for the Application of Paragraph 16 of EITF Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and its Application to Certain Investments, would provide guidance for the application of paragraph 16 of EITF 03-1 to
debt securities that are impaired because of interest rate and/or sector spread increases. The second, proposed FSP EITF Issue 03-1-b,
Effective Date of Paragraph 16 of EITF Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to
Certain Investments, would delay the effective date of EITF 03-1 for debt securities that are impaired because of interest rate and/or
sector spread increases. Other investments within the scope of EITF 03-1 remain subject to its recognition and measurement
provisions for interim and annual periods beginning after June! 15, 2004. The disclosure provisions of EITF 03-1 also were not
affected by the two proposed FSPs. In June 2005, the FASB reached a decision whereby they declined to provide additional guidance
on the meaning of other-than-temporary impairment. The FASB staff was directed to issue EITF 03-1a as final and to draft a new FSP
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that will replace EITF 03-01. In early November 2005 the FASB staff issued the final FSP (retitled FAS 115-1, The Meaning of Other-
Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain Investments). The provisions of FAS 115-1 are effective for other-than-
temporary impairment analysis conducted in periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company does not expect the adoption
of FAS 115-1 to have a material effect on its results of operations or financial condition.

In December 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (revised December
2003)—an interpretation of ARB No. 51 (“FIN 46R”). The Interpretation provides guidance with respect to the identification of
variable interest entities and when a variable interest entity should be included in a company’s consolidated financial statements. FIN
46R requires consolidation of variable interest entities in cases where the equity investment at risk 1s not sufficient to permit the entity
to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties, which is provided through other interests
that will absorb some or all of the expected losses of the entity, or in cases where the equity investors lack one or more of the essential
characteristics of a controlling financial interest, which include the ability to make decisions about the entity’s activities through
voting rights, the obligations to absorb the expected losses of the entity if they occur, or the right to receive the expected residual
returns of the entity if they occur. Management has evaluated investments in variable interest entities and potential variable interest
entities or transactions. Trust preferred securities constitute the Company’s primary FIN 46R exposure. Management has determined
that the Company is not the primary beneficiary of the SCBT Capital Trust I, SCBT Capital Trust II, and SCBT Capital Trust III
(collectively the “Trusts™) that issued trust preferred securities. Therefore, the Trusts were deconsolidated as of December 31, 2005.
As aresult of FIN 46R the Federal Reserve Board, on March 1, 2005, announced changes to its capital adequacy rules, including the
capital treatment of trust preferred securities. The Federal Reserve’s new rules, which took effect in early April 2005, permit the
Company to continue to treat its outstanding trust preferred securities as Tier 1 Capital for the first 25 years of the 30 year term of the
related junior subordinated debt securities. During the last five years preceding maturity, the amount included as capital will decline
20% per year.

In December 2003, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”) issued Statement of Position (“SOP”) No. 03-3,
Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer. SOP 03-3 is effective for loans acquired in fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2004. SOP 03-3 requires acquired loans to be recorded at fair value and prohibits carrying over
valuation allowances in the initial accounting for all loans acquired in a transfer that have evidence of deterioration in credit quality
since origination, when it is probable that the investor will be unable to collect all contractual cash flows. Loans carried at fair value,
mortgage loans held for sale, and loans to borrowers in good standing under revolving credit agreements are excluded from the scope
of SOP 03-3. SOP 03-3 had no material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTION ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Banks are required to maintain a specified average amount of reserve funds in cash or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank.
The average amount of such reserve funds at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $14,073,000 and $16,544,000
respectively.

At December 31, 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries had due from bank balances in excess of federally insured limits of
approximately $4,227,000. The risk associated with this excess is limited due to the soundness of the financial institutions with which
the funds are deposited.
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NOTE 3 — INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The following is the amortized cost and fair value of investment securities held to maturity at December 31:

(Dollars in thousands)

State and municipal
Total

State and municipal
Total

‘ 2005
: Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
| $ 18,194 § 264 § {5) $ 18,453
f: $ 18194 § 264 S (5) § 18,453
i 2004
g‘: Gross Gross
; Amortized. Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 24,604 $ 802 § - 3 25,406
;i $ 24,604 $ 802 $ - $ 25406

The fair values of obligations of states and political subdivisions are established with the assistance of an independent
pricing service. The values are based on data, which often reflect transactions of relatively small size and are not
necessarily indicative of the value of the securities when traded in large volumes.

The following is the amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for sale at December 31:

(Dollars in thousands)

U.S. Government agencies
Mortgage-backed
Corporate bonds
Corporate stock

Total

(Dollars in thousands)

U.S. Government agencies
Mortgage-backed
Corporate bonds
Corporate stocks

Total

2005
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 38228 § 55 S (534) § 37,749
101,754 201 (2,360) 99,595
11,309 54 2) 11,361
4,522 401 - 4,923
$ 155,813 $ 711 $ (2,896) § 153,628
2004
Gross Gross
Amortizesl Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 25365 § 38 § 218) § 25,185
94,664 776 (776) 94,664
10,300 - - 10,300
4,513 396 - 4,909
$ 134842 $ 1,210 § (994) § 135,058
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The following is the amortized cost and fair value of other investment securities at December 31:

2005
(Dollars in thousands) Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Federal Reserve Stock $ 1,888 §% - $ - $ 1,888
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 7,795 - - 7,795
Investment in
unconsolidated subsidiaries 1,239 - - 1,239
Total $ 10922 3 - $ - § 10,922
2004
(Dollars in thousands) Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Federal Reserve Stock $ 1,046 $ - $ - $ 1,046
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 4,738 - - 4,738
Total $ 5,784 § - 3 - $ 5,784

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2005 by contractual maturity are detailed below.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without prepayment penalties.

(Dollars in thousands) Securities Securities
Held to Maturity Available for Sale
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 6,430 $ 6,444 $ 3,938 § 3,900
Due after one year through
five years 9,586 9,707 127,322 124,851
Due after five years through
ten years 2,178 2,302 20,031 19,954
Total $ 18,194 § 18,453 $ 151,291  $ 148,705
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There were no sales or transfers of held-to-maturity securities during 2005, 2004 or 2003. The following table summarizes
information with respect to sale of available-for-sale securities:

(Dollars in thousands) ‘ Years Ended December 31,

‘ 2005 2004 2003
Sale proceeds 3 s 6,998 $ 1,996 _$ -
Gross realized gains $ - 3 - $ -
Gross realized losses : . (202) 4) -
Net realized loss i $ (202) $ (4) $ -

The Company had 85 securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2005. Information pertaining to securities with
gross unrealized losses at December: 31, 2005, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual
securities have been in a continuous loss position follows:

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months
Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair

Losses Value Losses Value
Securities Held to Maturity ‘
State and municipal : $ 5 $ 785 $ - $ -

Total Held-to-Maturity $ 5 $ 785 $ - 3 -

Securities Available for Sale
U.S. Government agencies $ 214 $ 24,185 $ 320 $ 11,175
Mortgage-backed 551 40,213 1,809 50,309
Other investments ‘ 2 506 - -

Total Available-for-Sale : $ 767 $ 64,904 $ 2,129 $ 61,484

At December 31, 2005, debt securities with unrealized lossés have depreciated only 2.2% from the Company's amortized
cost basis. These unrealized losses relate principally to mortgage-backed securities whose prepayment speeds were higher
than anticipated at the time of purchase. Consequently, any premiums paid (above par) have adjusted to revised market
expectations. In analyzing an issuer's financial condition, management considers whether the securities are issued by the
. federal government or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and the results of reviews
of the issuer's financial condition. As management has the ability to hold debt securities until maturity, or for the
foreseeable future if classified as available for sale, no declines are deemed to be other than temporary.

Management evaluates securities for other-than temporary impairment at least on a monthly basis, and more frequently
when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the
extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) thé financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and
(3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for
any anticipated recovery in fair value,

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, investment securities with a carrying value of $60,978,000 and $68,453,000,
respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits, FHLB advances and for other purposes required and permitted by

law. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the carrying amount ‘of the securities pledged to secure repurchase agreements was
$96,720,000 and $67,248,000, respectively.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The following is a summary of loans by category at December 31:

(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 192,090 $ 161,442
Real estate - contruction 57,999 40,915
Real estate - mortgage 1,157,979 846,694
Consumer 127,850 104,356
Total loans 1,535,918 1,153,407
Less, unearned income 17 (177)
Less, allowance for loan losses (20,025) (14,470)
Loans, net $ 1,515876 $ 1,138,760
Changes in the allowance for loan losses for the three years ended December 31, were as follows:
(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Balance at beginning of year $ 14,470 $ 11,700 § 11,065
Loans charged-off (1,850) (2,008) (2,410)
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off 383 446 700
Balance before provision for loan losses and acquired allowance 13,003 10,138 9,355
Provision for loan losses 4,907 4,332 2,345
Allowance acquired in business combinations 2,115 - -
Balance at end of year $ 20,025 § 14,470 § 11,700
The following is a summary of information pertaining to impaired and nonaccrual loans at December 31:
(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004
Impaired loans without a valuation allowance $ - $ -
Impaired loans with a valuation allowance 750 693
Total impaired loans 3 750 $ 693
Valuation allowance related to impaired loans $ 230 § 323
Average of impaired loans during the year $ 1,016 $ 1,629
Total nonaccrual loans $ 2,760 S 2,429
Total loans past due ninety days or more and still accruing 3 1,512 § 840

Interest income which was foregone was an immaterial amount for each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2005. There were no restructured loans at December 31, 2005 and 2004.

Included in the balance sheet under the caption "Other assets" are certain real properties that were acquired as a result of
completed foreclosure proceedings. Also included in the caption are amounts reclassified as in-substance foreclosures. Other

real estate owned totaled $379,000 and $1,712,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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NOTE S - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

(Dollars in thousands) Useful Life 2005 2004
Land : $ 10216 $ 6,861
Building and leasehold improvements | 15-40 years 35,833 28,890
Equipment and furnishings 5-10 years 18,039 15,535
Total ‘ ' 64,088 51,286
Less, accumulated depreciation ‘ 20,424 17,619
Premises and equipment, net; $ 43,664 $ 33,667

Depreciation expense charged to operations was $2,473,000, $2,210,000, and $2,012,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004, and 2003, respectively. ;

Computer software with an original éost of $2,923,000 is being amortized using the straight-line method over thirty-six

months. Amortization expense totaled $261,000, $302,000, $285,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and
2003 respectively.

NOTE 6 - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company ceased amonizatfon of goodwill as of January 1, 2002, The Company has determined
that there has been no impairment of goodwill, based on analysis through December 31, 2005. The changes in the carrying amount of
goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

Balance, January 1, 2004 $ 2,363
Denmark branch acquisition : 1,354
Balance, December 31, 2004 ! 3,717
Devine Mortgage, New Commerce Bank and SunBank acquisitions 28,503
Balance, December 31, 2005 v : $ 32,220

The Company’s other intangible assets, consisting primarily of core deposit premium costs, are included in “Other assets”. The
following is a summary of gross carrying amounts and accumulated amortization of core deposit premium costs at December 31:

(Dollars in thousands) 2005 ' 2004

Gross carrying amount : $ 7,821 § 4,536

Accumulated amortization “ (3,973) (3,668)
s 3,848 . $ 868
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Amortization expense totaled $305,000 and $186,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Estimated
amortization expense for core deposit premium costs for each of the next five years is as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

Years ended December 31,

2006 b 481
2007 463
2008 445
2009 427
2010 409

$ 2,225

NOTE 7 - DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $268,212,000 and
$156,978,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2005, the scheduled maturities of time deposits of all denominations are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2006 $ 473,582
2007 115,747
2008 5,637
2009 2,688
2010 486
Thereafter 1,829

$ 599,969

NOTE 8 - FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED AND SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO
REPURCHASE

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase generally mature within one to three days from the
transaction date, but may have maturities as long as nine months. Certain of the borrowings have no defined maturity date.
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are reflected at the amount of cash received in connection with the
transaction. The Company monitors the fair value of the underlying securities on a daily basis. All securities underlying these
agreements include arrangements to resell securities from broker-dealers approved by the Company. Information concerning
federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase is included in Table 11 of Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

F-18




NOTE 9 - OTHER BORROWINGS

The Company’s other borrowings were as follows as of December'31:

(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004

FHLB advance borrowings with various maturity dates (ranging from one to eighteen years),
various contractual terms, and various repayment schedules with fixed rates of interest. $ 101,018 § 51,928

SCBT Capital Trust I junior subordinated debt with a variable interest rate equal to the three-

month LIBOR rate (4.53% at December 31, 2005) plus a spread adjusted quarterly;

guaranteed by the Company on a subordinated basis, matures in 30 years, and can be called

by the issuer without penalty on or after June 30, 2010. 12,372 --

SCBT Capital Trust II junior subordinated debt with a fixed interest rate of 6.37% for five

years and thereafter at a rate equal to the three-month LIBOR rate plus a spread; guaranteed

by the Company on a subordinated basis, matures in 30 years, and:can be called by the issuer

without penalty on or after June 30, 2010} ' 8,248 --

SCBT Capital Trust [1I junior subordinated debt with a fixed interest rate of 5.92% for ten
years and thereafter at a rate equal to the three-month LIBOR rate plus a spread; matures in

30 years, and can be called by the issuer without penalty on or after September 15, 2012, 20,619 -
Other ' ' 2,000 —
Total : $ 144,257 $ 51,928

FHLB ADVANCE BORROWINGS:

The Company has entered into advance borrowing agreements with the FHLB. Advances under these agreements are collateralized
by stock in the FHLB, qualifying first mortgage residential loans, and commercial real estate loans under a blanket-floating lien.

Advances outstanding of $29,500,000 at December 31, 2005 will convert to a floating interest rate indexed to LIBOR when
the index equals or exceeds 7.50%. There were no advances at variable rates as of December 31, 2005. Net eligible loans of
the Company pledged to the FHLB! for advances and letters of credit at December 31, 2005, were approximately
$189,328,000. With the haircut reduction, total borrowing capacity at FHLB was $128,673,000. After accounting for
outstanding advances totaling $101,017,000 and unused letters of credit totaling $20,000,000, the Company had unused net
credit available in the amount of $7,656,000 at December 31, 2005.

The maximum FHLB advances outstanding at any month-end for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was
$101,045,000 and $92,000,000, respectively. The average amount outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004 was $63,327,000 and $58,630,000, respectively. The weighted-average interest rate during the years ended December
31, 2005 and 2004 was 4.90% and 4.63%, respectively. The weighted-average interest rate at December 31, 2005 and 2004
was 4.72% and 5.03%, respectively.
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JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBT:

The obligations of the Company with respect to the issuance of the capital securities constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by
the Company of the Trusts’ obligations with respect to the capital securities. Subject to certain exceptions and limitations, the
Company may elect from time to time to defer interest payments on the junior subordinated debt securities, which would result in a
deferral of distribution payments on the related capital securities.

As of December 31, 2005, the sole asset of the Trusts is an aggregate of $41,239,000 of the Company’s junior subordinated debt
securities with like maturities and like interest rates to the trust preferred securities.

For regulatory purposes, the junior subordinated debt securities may be classified as Tier 1 Capital. The trust preferred securities
represent a minority investment in a consolidated subsidiary, which is currently included in Tier 1 Capital so long as it does not
exceed 25% of total Tier 1 Capital.

Principal maturities of other borrowings are summarized below:

(Dollars in thousands)

FHLB Junior
Borrowings  Subordinated Debt Other

Years Ended December 31,
2006 $ 53,372 3% - b 2,000
2007 126 -- --
2008 3,208 -- --
2009 13,015 -- --
2010 133 -- --
Thereafter 31,164 41,239 -

$ 101,018 § 41,239 % 2,000

NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Current:
Federal $ 8,634 §$ 6,454 § 6,506
State 780 634 609
Total current tax expense 9.414 7,088 7,115
Deferred:
Federal (1,539) 510y 141
State (52) (141) 45
Total deferred tax expense (benefit) (1,591) (651) 186
Provision for income taxes S 7,823 §$ 6,437 % 7,301
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Temporary differences in the recognition 'of revenue and expense; for tax and financial reporting purposes resulted in net deferred
income tax expense {(benefit) as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) ‘ , 2005 2004 2003
Provision for loan losses : $ (569) $ (1,049) § (262)
Net operating loss carryforwards (1,189) - -
Pension cost and post-retirement benefits - 131 307 6)
Intangible assets ‘ ‘ 429 136 103
Depreciation i (143) 221 393
Deferred compensation ' ‘ 137 (250) -
Other (113) (16) (42)
Total ! $ (1,591) $ (651) $ 186

The provision for income taxes differs from that computed by applying the federal statutory income tax rate of 35% to income before
provision for income taxes, as indicated in the following analysis:

‘ Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) , 2005 2004 2003

Income taxes at federal statutory rate ’ $ 8,567 $ 7,159 § 7,730
Increase (reduction) of taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal

tax benefit . : 500 430 415
Tax-exempt interest income 1 ' (489) (558) (585)
Income tax credits ‘ (354) (194) (49)
Utilization of net operating loss carryforwards (266) - -
Dividends received deduction (116) (158) 40
Other, net : : (19) (242) (170)

Provision for income taxes S 7,823 § 6,437 § 7,301

The components of the net deferred tax asset, included in other assets at December 31 are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) ‘ 2005 2004
Allowance for loan losses = $ 6,984 § 5,278
Net operating loss carryforwards ‘ : 1,443 145
Unrealized losses on investment securities available for sale 943 -
Post-retirement benefits ‘ 107 113
Intangible assets ‘ - 152
Deferred compensation h 387 250
Total deferred tax assets i ' 9,864 5,938
Depreciation ‘ ' 1,559 1,703
Intangible assets 1 ‘ 279 -
Pension plan ‘ ' 837 711
Unrealized gains on investment securities available for sale - 83
Other : : 100 212
Total deferred tax liabilities . 2,775 2,709
Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance ’ 7,089 3,229
Less valuation allowance = (257) (150)
Net deferred tax asset : ; $ 6,832 $ 3,079
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At December 31, 2005, the Company had operating loss carryforwards for federal and state income tax purposes of
approximately $3,397,000 and $5,085,000, respectively, available to offset future taxable income. The carryforwards expire
in varying amounts through 2020. The valuation allowance is based on management's estimate of the ultimate realization of
the deferred tax asset.

NOTE 11 - OTHER EXPENSE

The following is a summary of the components of other noninterest expense:

(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Advertising $ 2,519 § 1,881 § 1,286
Telephone and postage 1,559 1,462 1,480
Professional fees 1,501 1,987 1,399
Office supplies 1,443 1,077 1,021
Data and computer services 1,384 1,040 852
Property and sales tax 891 889 625
Regulatory fees 884 731 743
Business development and staff related 859 680 625
OREQO, repossession, and other loan expenses 725 1,050 573
Amortization 576 488 486
Insurance 277 251 197
Other 5,326 4,077 3,474
Total $ 17,944 § 15,613 § 12,761

NOTE 12 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) Years Ended December 31,
: 2005 2004 2003
Numerator:
Net income - numerator for basic
and diluted earnings per share $16,655 $14,016 $14,786
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share -
weighted-average shares outstanding 8,132 8,063 8,065

Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee stock options 79 80 81

Dilutive potential shares:

Denominator for diluted earnings per
share - adjusted weighted-average

shares and assumed conversions 8,211 8,143 8,146
Basic earnings per share $2.05 $1.74 $1.83
Diluted earnings per share $2.03 §1.72 $1.82

The earnings per share data above for 2004 and 2003 has been retroactively adjusted to give effect to a 5% common stock dividend
paid to shareholders of record as of December 20, 2004.
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The calculation of diluted earnings per share excludes outstanding stock options that have exercise prices greater than the average
market price of the common shares for the year as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Number of shares 35,093 - 16,600

Range of exercise prices ﬂ ' $31.91 to $33.57 - $28.15 t0 $30.96

NOTE 13 - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
The components of other comprehensi‘ye loss and related tax effects are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) ” Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

Unrealized holding losses on securities available for sale

arising during the year , ‘ S (2,603) $ (779) $ (1,942)
Less, reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net income (202) (4) -
Net change in unrealized holding losses (2,401) (775) (1,942)
Tax effect 962 295 738
Net-of-tax amount f $ (1,439) § (430) $ (1,204)

NOTE 14 — RESTRICTIONS ON SUBSIDIARY DIVID:EN DS, LOANS, OR ADVANCES

The Company pays cash dividends to shareholders from its assets, which are mainly provided by dividends from the banking
subsidiaries. However, certain restrictions exist regarding the ability of the subsidiaries to transfer funds to the Company in the form
of cash dividends, loans or advances. The approval of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”) is required to pay
dividends in excess of the subsidiaries’ net profits for the current; year plus retained net profits (net profits less dividends paid) for the
preceding two years, less any required ‘transfers to surplus. As of December 31, 2005, approximately $31,577,000 of the Banks’
retained earnings are available for distribution to the Company as dividends without prior regulatory approval. In addition, dividends
paid by the Banks to the Company would be prohibited if the effect thereof would cause the Banks® capital to be reduced below
applicable minimum capital requirements.

Under Federal Reserve regulation, the Banks are also limited as fo the amount they may lend to the Company. The maximum amount
available for transfer from the Banks to.the Company in the form of loans or advances was approximately $37,030,000 at December
31, 2005. ‘

NOTE 15 - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On April 8, 2005, the Company and its lead banking subsidiary, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A,, acquired in a merger 100% of
the outstanding stock of New Commercé Bancorp, including its banking subsidiary, New Commerce Bank. The acquisition allows the
Company to expand its presence in the Upstate region of South Carolina. New Commerce Bank had two branch offices in the
Mauidin and Simpsonville communities of Greenville County and total assets of approximately $94,000,000 at the merger date, the
close of business on April 8, 2005. New Commerce Bancorp was merged into South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. Pursuant to the
agreement, South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. paid $18.00 in cash for each share of New Commerce Bancorp common stock for an
aggregate purchase price of $20,411,000. The transaction resulted in goodwill of $12,671,000 and core deposit intangible of
$1,613,000. None of the goodwill is deductible for tax purposes and will be subject to impairment testing at least annually. The core
deposit intangible is being amortized over a period of ten years. .

On November 18, 2005, the Company completed the acquisition of Sun Bancshares, Inc., the holding company for SunBank, N.A.
The acquisition allows the Company to expand its presence in the Coastal region of South Carolina. Sun Bancshares, Inc. was merged
into SCBT Financial Corporation. Under terms of the agreement, the Company paid consideration of $26,574,000. The Company
paid $4,374,000 in cash and issued 564,387 shares of SCBT common stock for 100% of Sun Bancshares, Inc.’s common stock issued
and outstanding. Each share of Sun Bancshares, Inc.’s stock was exchanged for 464516 shares of the Company’s common stock.
The common stock issued to effect the transaction was valued at $33.49 per share, which was the average closing price of the
Company’s stock for the five days before and after the date of the definitive agreement. In addition, the Company paid an aggregate
of $2,873,000 to the holders of outstanding options .and warrants for Sun Bancshares, Inc.’s stock. The transaction resulted in
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goodwill of $15,753,000 and core deposit intangible of $1,671,000. None of the goodwill will be deductible for tax purposes and will
be subject to impairment at least annually. The core deposit intangible is being amortized over a period of ten years. SunBank, N.A |
which operates two full service offices in Murrells Inlet and Georgetown and a loan production office in Myrtle Beach, operates as the
Company’s third subsidiary bank. On March 7, 2006, the Company received regulatory approval to merge SunBank, N.A. into South
Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. The company anticipates this merger to occur before March 31, 2006.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of assets and liabilities assumed from the acquisitions of New Commerce
Bancorp and Sun Bancshares Inc., respectively.

New Commerce Sun
Bancorp Bancshares, Inc. Total
(Dollars in thousands)
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,242 § 3,250 § 7,492
Investment securities 15,364 4,519 19,883
Loans, net 68,955 85,353 154,308
Premises and equipment, net 4,103 3,332 7,435
Goodwill 12,671 15,753 28,424
Other intangible assets 1,613 1,671 3,284
Other assets 1,149 1,043 2,192
Total assets acquired 108,097 114,921 223,018
LIABILITIES:
Deposits 80,382 87,619 168,001
Other borrowings 6,601 - 6,601
Other liabilities 703 728 1,431
Total liabilities assumed 87,686 88,347 176,033
Net assets acquired $ 20,411 $ 26,574 $ 46,985

The results of operations of New Commerce Bank, which became part of South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A., and SunBank, N.A.,
were included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income from the respective dates of acquisition.

The following table presents selected pro forma information of the Company as if the New Commerce Bancorp and Sun Bancshares
Inc. acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2003, 2004 and 2005.

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2005 2004 2003

Net interest income $ 69,389 $ 59,057 % 54,213
Net income 15,305 13,721 14,619
Basic earnings per share 1.77 1.59 1.69
Diluted earnings per share 1.75 1.57 1.67
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NOTE 16 - RETIREMENT PLANV‘S

The following sets forth the pension plan's funded status and amounts recognized in the Company’s accompanylng

consolidated financial statements at December 31:
(Dollars in thousands)

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Plan amendment
Actuarial loss
Benefits paid
Benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contribution
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status
Unrecognized net actuarial loss

Unrecognized prior service benefit

Prepaid benefit cost

The components of net periodic pension cost are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost
Recognized net actuarial loss

Net periodic benefit cost

2005 2004
$ 14,059 § 11,511
948 665
834 716
- (338)
153 1,785
(336) (280)
15,658 14,059
11,279 9,253
530 548
1,589 1,758
(336) (280)
13,062 11,279
(2,596) (2,780)
5,242 5,021
(261) (300)
$ 2,385 § 1,941
Years Ended December 31,
2008 2004 2003
$ 948 § 665 § 653
834 716 677
(957) (792) (714)
(38) (38) 1
359 186 176
$ 1,146 $ 737 $ 793
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2005 2004

Information as of the measurement date:

Projected benefit obligation $15,658 $14,059

Accumulated benefit obligation , 12,953 11,176

Fair value of plan assets 13,062 11,279
Measurement date October 31 October 31
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligation
at measurement date:

Discount rate 5.75% 6.00%

Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00%

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 the assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost are
as follows: A

2005 2004 2003
Discount rate 6.00% 6.50% 6.75%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The expected rate of return for the pension plan represents the average rate of return to be earned on plan assets over the
period the benefits included in the benefit obligation are to be paid. In developing the expected rate of return, the Company
considered long-term compound annualized returns of historical market data as well as historical actual returns on the
Company’s plan assets. Using this reference information, the Company developed forward-looking return expectations for
each asset category and a weighted average expected long-term rate of return for a targeted portfolio allocated across these
investment categories. The asset allocation of the Company’s pension plan is targeted at 45% in U.S. equities, 5% in
international equities, and 50% in fixed income. In June 2004, the Pension Committee moved a portion of the Plan’s fixed
income assets to two shorter-term investment vehicles in anticipation of a rising interest rate environment. This allocation to
shorter-term securities is expected to be a short-term deviation from long-term policy asset allocation.

In developing the 8% long-term rate of return assumption for the pension plan, the Company utilized the following long-term
rate of return and standard deviation assumptions:

Rate of Return Standard Deviation

Asset Class Assumption Assumption
Fixed income 6.00% 6.50%
Domestic equity 10.00% 16.00%
Foreign equity 10.05% 20.00%
Inflation 3.00% 0.00%

The portfolio’s equity weighting is consistent with the long-term nature of the Plan’s benefit obligation, and the expected
annual return on the portfolio of 8%.

The policy, as established by the Pension Committee, seeks to maximize return within reasonable and prudent levels of risk.
The overall long-term objective of the Plan is to achieve a rate of return that exceeds the actuarially assumed rate of return of
8% . The investment policy will be reviewed on a regular basis and revised when appropriate based on the legal or regulatory
environment, market trends, or other fundamental factors.
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Below is a summary of the Plan’s year-énd asset allocation:

(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004

Asset Class Fair Value Percentage Fair Value Percentage
Cash or cash equivalents ‘ $ 529 4.00% $ 282 2.50%
Guaranteed investment account ' 1,914 14.70% 1,868 16.60%
Short-term fixed income 2,049 15.70% 1,735 15.40%
Broad market fixed income 2,050 15.70% 1,737 15.40%
Domestic equity 5,840 44.70% 5,095 45.10%
Foreign equity - 680 5.20% 562 5.00%

Totals ‘ 5 13,062 100.00% $§ 11,279 100.00%

Domestic equity securities include the, Company’s common stock in the amounts of $648,000 (19,382 shares representing
4.96% of plan assets) and $575,000 (17,469 shares representing 5.3% of plan assets) at year-end 2005 and 2004,
respectively. During 2005, the plan made purchases totaling $32,000 or 1,040 shares of the Company’s common stock.
Dividends on the Company’s common stock received by the plan totaled $13,000 for 2005.

Estimated future benefit payments (including expected future service as appropriate):

(Dollars in thousands)

2006 $ 361
2007 ‘j 406
2008 ‘ 480
2009 590
2010 : 624
2011-2015 j 4,266
$ 6,727

Expenses incurred and charged against:operations with regard to all of the Company’s retirement plans were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) ; Years Ended December 31,
2005 ' 2004 2003
Pension s 1,145 § 737§ 793
Profit-sharing 479 460 352
Total 8 1,624 S 1,197 § 1,145

The Company expects to contribute approximately $650,000 to the pension plan in 2006, but reserves the right to contribute between
the minimum required and maximum deductible amounts as determined under applicable federal laws.

Effective January |, 2006, amendments were made to our pension plan and 401(k) savings plan. On this date a new benefit formula
applies only to participants who have not attained age 45 or who do not have five years of service. Concurrently, changes in our
401(k) plan will be effective for new employees hired on or after this date or for employees under the age of 45 or who have attained
at least five years of service.
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NOTE 17 - POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The following sets forth the plans funded status and amounts recognized in the Company's accompanying consolidated
financial statements at December 31:

(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004

Change in Benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ ' 547 § 582
Interest cost . 31 36
Actuarial (gain) loss 23 (19)
Benefits paid (53) (52)
Benefit obligation at end of year 548 547

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year - -
Employer Contribution 53 52
Benefits paid (53) (52)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year -- -
Funded status at end of year (548) (547)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss 12 ¢))
Unrecognized transition obligation 221 252
Accrued benefit cost $ (315) $ (296)
2005 2004
Measurement Date October 31 October 31

Weighted-average assumption used to determine benefit
obligation as of measurement date:
Discount rate 5.75% 6.00%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net
periodic benefit cost for years ended December 31:

Discount rate 6.00% 6.50%
Expected long-term return on plan assets N/A N/A

Assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31:

Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 5.00% 5.00%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to
decline (the ultimate trend rate) N/A N/A
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2008 2004
(Dollars in thousands) Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Interest cost $ 31 § 36 § 38
Amortization of transition obligation 31 31 31
Net periodic benefit cost $ 62 $ 67 $ 69
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Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plan. A one-
percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects at the end of 2005:
|
1-Percentage- 1-Percentage-
Point Increase Point Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest cost components : $ 2,850 § (2,524)
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation 47,392 (42,072)

Estimated future benefit payments (including expected future service as appropriate):
(Dollars in thousands) ‘
2006 : § 50

2007 50,
2008 i 50
2010 48
2011-2015 ‘ 227

$ 474

The Company expects to contribute approximately $50,000 to the post-retirement medical plan in 2006.
NOTE 18 — STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

During 1996, 1999, and 2004, the Company adopted stock option plans under which incentive and nonqualified stock options
may be granted periodically to key employees and non-employee directors. Options granted to key employees under the
current plan may not be exercised in whole or in part within one year following the date of the grant, and thereafter become
exercisable in 25% increments, per year, over the next four years. Options granted to non-employee directors become
exercisable in 25% increments, per quarter, over the next four quarters. The options are granted at an exercise price at least
equal to the fair value of the common:stock at the date of grant and have terms ranging from five to ten years. No options
were granted under the 1996 plan after December 18, 2000. No options were granted under the 1999 plan after January 2,
2004, and the plan is closed other than for any options still unexercised and outstanding. The 2004 plan is the only plan
from which new stock-based compensétion grants may be issued.

Activity in the Company’s stock optlon plans is summarized i 1n the following table. All information has been retroactively
adjusted for stock dividends and stock splits.

2005 . 2004 2003

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Qutstanding at January 1 298,748 § °©  21.66 316,247  § 19.12 236,526 $ 16.91
Granted 45,568 . 3247 73,080 28.57 101,063 24.08
Exercised (21,191)  18.66 (75,030) 17.36 (6,009) 16.74
Expired/Forfeited (19,107) . 24.37 (15,549) 23.16 (15,333) 18.72
Outstanding at December 31 ' 304,018 T23.32 298,748 21.66 316,247 19.12
Exercisable at December 31 i 171,809 20.14 117,457 18.97 138,296 18.63
Weighted-average fair value of options :
granted during the year i ) 9.53 , 5 8.76 $ 8.01
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Information pertaining to options outstanding at December 31, 2005, is as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Number Contractual Average Number Average
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Exercise Price Outstanding  Exercise Price
$11.96-5816.71 , 84,583 5.7 years $15.36 73,618 $15.16
$18.97-%23.24 92,999 6.1 years $21.66 61,750 $21.10
$24.68 - $29.50 91,343 8.1 years $28.48 36,441 £28.57
$31.91 - $33.57 35,093 9.1 years $33.45 - N/A
304,018 6.9 years 171,809

The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted-average assumptions:

2005 2004 2003
Dividend yield 2.19% 2.47% 2.49%
Expected life 10 years 10 years 10 years
Expected volatility 24.00% 25.00% 29.00%
Risk-free interest rate 4.24% 4.37% 3.99%

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock-based compensation
plans. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized. Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plans
been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under the plans consistent with the method
prescribed by SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income and earnings per share would have been adjusted to the pro forma
amounts indicated below:

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Net income, as reported $ 16,655 §$ 14,016 $ 14,786
Less, total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under the fair value based method, net of related tax effects 280 237 280
Pro forma net income 3 16,375 S 13,779 § 14,506

Earnings per share:

Basic - as reported $ 205 S 1.74 § 1.83
Basic - pro forma 2.01 1.71 1.80
Diluted - as reported 2.03 1.72 1.82
Diluted - pro forma 1.99 1.69 1.78

The Company has entered into Restricted Stock Agreements with several of its senior officers and directors. All agreements
are conditioned upon continued employment. Termination of employment prior to a vesting date, as described below,
would terminate any interest in non-vested shares. Prior to vesting of the shares, as long as employed by the Company, the
officers will have the right to vote such shares and to receive dividends paid with respect to such shares. All restricted
shares will fully vest in the event of change in control of the Company or upon the death of the officer. The Company granted
17,592, 5,000, and 2,000 shares in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The weighted-average-grant-date fair value of restricted shares
granted in 2005, 2004, and 2003 was $32.70, $29.00, and $24.40, respectively. Compensation expense of $275,000, $81,000, and
$72,000 was recorded in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2005, non-vested shares associated with restricted stock agreements totaled 35,217, The vesting schedule of
these shares is as follows:

Year ! Shares
2006 6,067
2007 8,967
2008 ‘ 4,467
2009 : 13,216
2010 ‘ 1,000
2011 ‘ 1,500
35,217

NOTE 19 - STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

In February 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a repurchase program to acquire up to 250,000 shares of its
outstanding common stock. This program superseded any previously announced programs that may have had remaining available
shares for repurchase. No shares were repurchased under this program in 2005. During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
the Company repurchased 102,128 and 2,100 shares at a cost of $2,977,000 and $53,000, respectively. Under other arrangements
where directors or officers sold or surréndered currently owned shares to the Company to acquire proceeds for exercising stock
options, the Company repurchased 8,467 shares at a cost of $256,000 in 2005.

NOTE 20 - LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Company’s subsidiaries were obligated at December 31, 2005, under certain noncancelable operating leases extending to the year
2030 pertaining to banking premises and equipment. Some of the! leases provide for the payment of property taxes and insurance and
contain various renewal options. The exercise of renewal options is, of course, dependent upon future events. Accordingly, the

following summary does not reflect possible additional payments due if renewal options are exercised.

Future minimum lease payments, by year and in the aggregate, under noncancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms in
excess of one year are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2006 ‘ $ 2,869 .
2007 f 2,614
2008 : 2,523
2009 { 2,392
2010 i 827
Thereafier : 6,96 1
$ 18,186

Total lease expense for the years ended December 31, 2005 2004, and 2003 was $2,695,000, $3,003,000, and $3,002,000,
respectively.

NOTE 21 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved at times in various litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the
opinion of management, there is no pending or threatened, litigation that will have a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

NOTE 22 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During 2005 and 2004, the ‘Company’s bénking subsidiaries had loan and deposit relationships with certain related parties principally,
directors and executive officers, their immediate families and their business interests. Al of these relationships were in the ordinary

course of business. Loans outstanding to this group (including immediate families and business interests) totaled $34,701,000 and
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$28,153,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004 respectively. During 2005, $17,438,000 of new loans were made to this group while
repayments of $11,686,000 were received during the year. Other changes resulted in an increase of $796,000. Related party deposits
totaled approximately $31,571,000 and $15,285,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

NOTE 23 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Company’s subsidiaries are parties to credit related financial instruments with off-balance sheet risks in the normal course
of business to meet the financing needs of their customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit,
standby letters of credit and financial guarantees. Such commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit, interest
rate, or liquidity risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. The contract amounts of these
instruments express the extent of involvement the subsidiaries have in particular classes of financial instruments.

The subsidiaries’ exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, and financial guarantees is represented by the contractual amount of
those instruments. The subsidiaries use the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as they
do for on-balance sheet instruments. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the following financial instruments were outstanding
whose contract amounts represent credit risk:

(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004

Commitments to extend credit $ 389,114 § 277,996

Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees 7,499 2,668
3 396,613 $ 280,664

COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT:

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require
payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future liquidity requirements. The Banks evaluate each customer’s credit worthiness on
a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the subsidiaries upon extension of credit, is
based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable,
inventory, property, plant and equipment, and personal guarantees. Unfunded commitments under commercial lines-of-credit,
revolving credit lines and overdraft protection agreements are commitments for possible future extensions of credit to existing
customers. These lines-of-credit are uncollateralized and usually do not contain a specified maturity date and may not be drawn
to the extent to which the banking subsidiaries are committed.

STANDBY LETTERS OF CREDIT AND FINANCIAL GUARANTEES:

Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees are conditional commitments issued by the banking subsidiaries to
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Those letters of credit and guarantees are primarily issued to
support public and private borrowing arrangements. Essentially, all standby letters of credit have expiration dates within one
year. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary, is based on management's credit evaluation of the
customer.

NOTE 24 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of a financial instrument is the current amount that would be exchanged between willing parties, other than in a
forced liquidation. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no
quoted market prices for the Company's various financial instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available,
fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected
by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates
may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument. SFAS No. 107 excludes certain financial instruments and all
nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented may not
necessarily represent the underlying fair value of the Company. The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value:
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.
INVESTMENT SECURITIES:

Securities available for sale, excluding Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock, are valued at quoted market
prices where available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable
securities. Securities held to maturity are valued at quoted market prices or dealer quotes. The carrying value of Federal Reserve
Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock approximates fair value based on their redemption provisions.

LOANS:

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no signhificant change in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying
values. Fair values for certain mortgage loans (e.g., one-to-four family residential), credit card loans, and other consumer loans
are based on quoted market prices of similar loans sold in conjunction with securitization transactions, adjusted for differences
in loan characteristics. Fair values fot other loans (e.g., commercial real estate and investment property mortgage loans,
commercial and industrial loans) are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered
for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair values for non-performing loans are estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, where applicable.

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES: ;U
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and non-interest bearing checking, passbook savings, and certain
types of money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their
carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of variable-rate, fixed-term money market accounts, and certificates of deposit
approximate their fair values at the reéporting date. Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a
discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated
expected monthly maturities on time deposits. f

FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED AND SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE:

The fair value of federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase is estimated based on the current
rates offered for borrowings of the same remaining maturities.

NOTES PAYABLE:

The carrying amount of short-term borrowings is a reasonable éstimate of fair value. The fair value of long-term borrowings is
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis and the Company’s current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of
instruments.

COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDET, STANDBY LETTERS OF CREDIT AND FINANCIAL GUARANTEES:

The fair value of commitments is estimated using the fees clrrently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into
account the remaining terms of the agreements and the presént creditworthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan
commitments, fair value also considers the difference between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. The fair
value of guarantees and letters of credit is based on fees currently charged for similar agreements or on the estimated cost to
terminate them or otherwise settle the ob“ligations with the counterparties at the reporting date.

F-33



2005 2004
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(Dollars in thousands)
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 103,134 3 103,134 $. 57,137 $ 57,137
Investment securities 182,744 183,003 165,446 166,248
Loans:
Loans and loans held for sale 1,548,862 1,537,221 1,167,017 1,159,145
Less, allowance for loan losses (20,025) (20,025) (14,470) (14,470)
Net loans 1,528,837 1,517,196 1,152,547 1,144,675
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 1,473,289 1,403,000 1,171,313 1,135,801
Federal funds purchased
and securities sold under .
agreements to repurchase 150,163 150,163 89,208 89,208
Notes payable 144,257 144,933 51,928 55,952
Unrecognized financial instruments:
Commitments to extend credit 389,114 386,189 277,996 276,101

Standby letters of credit 7,499 7,499 2,668 2,668

NOTE 25 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and its banking subsidiaries are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the financial statements. Under
capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and its subsidiaries
must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-
sheet-items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. Prompt corrective action
provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and its subsidiaries to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier I capital (as defined in the
regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management
believes, at December 31, 2005 and 2004, that the Company and its subsidiaries met all capital adequacy requirements which
they are subject to.
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As of their most recent regulatory examinations, the Company and its subsidiaries were considered well capitalized under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, an institution must maintain minimum
total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the following tables. There are no conditions or
events since that notification that management believes have changed the institutions’ category.

Actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table.

Minimum To Be Well
Capitalized Under
Minimum Capital Prompt Corrective
(Dollars in thousands) Actual Requirement Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
At December 31, 2005:
Total risk-based capital (to risk-weighted assets): ,
Consolidated $ 171,888 ' 11.45% $ 120,120 8.00% $ 150,150 10.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. 137,304  10.90% 100,806 8.00% 126,008 10.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust ‘
of the Piedmont, N.A. 19,189 11.86% 12,938 8.00% 16,173 10.00%
SunBank, NA 12,764 15.96% 6,399 8.00% 7.999 10.00%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets): ‘
Consolidated 153,874 10.25% 60,060 4.00% 90,090 6.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. ‘ 121,696 9.66% 50,403 4.00% 75,605 6.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust ‘
of the Piedmont, N.A. i 17,165 10.61% 6,469 4.00% 9,704 6.00%
SunBank, NA ‘ 11,762 14.70% 3,199 4.00% 4,799 6.00%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets): f .
Consolidated : 153,874 8.58% 71,745 4.00% 89,681 5.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. ‘ 121,696 7.88% 61,779 4.00% 77,224 5.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust
of the Piedmont, N.A. 17,165 8.16% 8,412 4.00% 10,515 5.00%
SunBank, NA : 11,762 -~ 12.96% 3,629 4.00% 4,536 5.00%
At December 31, 2004 ‘
Total risk-based capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated ‘ $ 128,547 11.10% § 92,613 8.00% $ 115,767 10.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. : 111,608 10.95% 81,551 8.00% 101,938 10.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust ,
of the Piedmont, N.A. ! 13,913+ 10.12% 10,995 8.00% 13,744 10.00%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated ‘ 114,077 9.85% 46,307 4.00% 69,460 6.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. ' 98,966 . 9.71% 40,775 4.00% 61,163 6.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust ‘
of the Piedmont, N.A. . 12,194 8.87% 5,497 4.00% 8,246 6.00%
Tier | capital (to average assets): !
Consolidated | 114,077 8.05% 56,664 4.00% 70,830 5.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust, N.A. ! 98,966 7.96% 49,740 4.00% 62,175 5.00%
South Carolina Bank and Trust ‘
of the Piedmont, N.A. ‘ 12,194 7.87% 6,198 4.00% 7,747 5.00%
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NOTE 26 - CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY

Financial information pertaining only to SCBT Financial Corporation is as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31,

2005 2004
Assets:
Cash $ 971 § 603
Investment securities available for sale 888 773
Investment in subsidiaries 186,391 115,746
Less allowance for loan losses (29) 30)
Premises and equipment 5 701
Other assets 1,626 1,137
Total assets 3 189,852 § 118,930
Liabilities $ 41,449 § 132
Shareholders' equity 148,403 118,798
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 189,852 §$ 118,930
Statements of Income
(Dollars in thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Income:
Dividends from subsidiaries $ 5531 §$ 5728 § 5,069
Operating income 18 14 7
Total income 5,549 5,742 5,076
Operating expenses 1,908 572 310
Income before income tax benefit and equity
in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 3,641 5,170 4,766
Applicable income tax benefit 629 191 103
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 12,385 8,655 9,917
Net income $ 16,655 § 14,016 §$ 14,786
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TO OUR SHAffREHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS and FRIENDS

"

i

Robert R. Horger
Chairman of the Board
SCBT Financial Corporation
and

Robert R, Hill, Jr.
President and CEO
SCBT Financial Corporation

. . ! .
It is with gr@at pnde that we communicate the results that SCBT Financial
Corporation’s empioyees achieved in 2005. To summarize, it Was a record year

on almost every front.

While we have celebrated many achievements this year, we will focus on the four primary
areas from which we measure our success and the key drivers of our accomplishments:
soundness, proﬁtability, growth and people.

Soundness: We éxperienced exceptional performance in credit quality with charge-offs

at only .11% of av%.rage loans, past due loans at year-end of .70%, and OREO at a record




iow level of $379,000 at year end. Particularly
impressive was SCBT of the Piedmont, which
ended the year in a net recovery position.
Credit quality has always been a core strength,
and even as we experience significant growth,
we continue to focus on very high performance

in this area.

Profitability: We also experienced record
earnings with earnings per share increasing
17.8% and net income increasing 18.8%. All

of our banks performed well during the year
s2.03
51.82
$1.71 3172

| l ' I

01 02 0 o4 05
Earnings Per Share
(diluted)

with SCBT of the Piedmont’s earnings up
34.8% and South Carolina Bank and Trust’s
earnings up 22.0%. Additionally, SunBank

had earnings of $98,000 net of merger expenses
during the final six weeks of the year when the
company owned SunBank. We were fortunate
to see some net interest margin expansion
from the end of 2004 throughout 2005.
Additionally, we generated increased fees
associated with loans, deposit services, and
investment services. Expense control also
contributed to our increased profitability. Qur
process improvement initiative resulted in a
decrease in overhead of $1.3 million, which
exceeded our $1 million goal for 2005. We
continued to enter or expand in growth
markets, and although our growth initiatives
in these markets are expensive, they are critical
to the continued growth and increased

profitability of our company.

Growth: Our team produced extraordinary
growth this year with assets increasing by 34%

and deposits increasing by 26%. Our growth




was strong organically and was‘j bolstered by
the acquisition of New Commérce Bank,
SunBank, and Devine Mortgagé Company.
Through these acquisitions, wé added six new
offices to our network. SCBT c;f the Piedmont
opened a new loan production}f office in
northern York County to take advantage of
growth in that expanding market. We saw

gains on many fronts with mo‘rtgage fees and
1

investment services fees both having
0

" 51,536
$1153
$939
$863
smw ||||l|||
00 02 03 04 05

Loans ‘
(at year end, excluding loans held for
sale, in millions) !

significant increases. We also continued to
experience exceptional gains in opening new
checking accounts, resulting in approximately

20% growth and 15,939 new accounts in 2005.

People: The best topic for discussion is the
one we saved for last. What a great team of
people we have at SCBT! From our board and
management team to our dedicated employees,
we are fortunate to have individuals who truly
care about our company, employees, and
customers. We are privileged to continue to
add first-rate bankers to our team through

the addition of SunBank, New Commerce,
Devine Mortgage and other employees who
have recently joined us. We are very proud

of the quality of bankers that represent SCBT
and the quality of customers they serve. These
bankers, who work daily to provide the highest
levels of service, are the reason for our success.
We have a culture that is built around valuing
our employees and customers, and as we build

South Carolina’s premier community bank,




we are most gratitied that many great bankers
around the state share our passion for what

we are building and are joining our team.

While 2006 may be a challenging year with
higher rates, a flat yield curve, and a
potentially slower economy, we are confident
our team will work very hard to ensure that
we provide service and performance at very
high levels. We thank you for your continued
support as we build South Carolina’s premier

community bank.

Robert R. Horger
Chairman of the Board

G /4

Robert R. Hill, Jr.
President and

Chief Executive Officer

$1,473

$1171
$947
$898
| I I
01 02 03 04 05
Deposits
(at year end, in millions)

14.09%

13.64% ° 13.72%
13.19%
| l 122'%'
00 02 03 o4 05

Return on Average Equity

30.68
so63 *0:6%
$0.54
$0.50 l
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Dividends Per Share
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SCBT FINANCEAL / 2005 Financial Highlights

% Change
Year Ended December 31 Increase/
(Dollars in thousands, except per share) . 2065 2004 (Decrease}
FOR THE YEAR " ’
Interest income $k 94,293 3 67,913 38.9%
Interest expense k 28,710 14,643 96.1
Net interest income . 65,583 53,270 23.1
Provision for loan losses 4,907 4,332 13.3
Noniriterest income 23,855 22,650 5.3
Noninterest expense 60,083 51,135 17.4
Income before provision
for income taxes . 24,478 20,453 19.7
Provision for income taxes 7,823 6,437 21.5
Net income 16,655 14,016 18.8
PER COMMON SHARE
Net income, basic b3 2.05 $ 1.74 17.8%
Net income, diluted 2.03 1.72 18.0
Cash dividends : 0.68 0.65 4.9
Book value 17.17 14.77 16.17
KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES
Return on average assets 1.00% 1.05% (4.8) %
Return on average equity 13.19 12.20% 8.11
Average nonperforming assets ‘
as a percentage of loans & OREO 0.24 0.35 (31.4)
Average shareholders’ equity-as
a percentage of average assets 7.56 8.65 (12.5)
SELECTED YEAR END BALANCES
Assets $1,925,856 $ 1,436,977 34.03 9%
Loans, net of unearned income* ‘1,535,901 1,153,230 33.18
[nvestment securities | 182,744 165,446 9.71
Deposits 1 1,473,289 1,171,313 25.78
Nondeposit borrowings : 294,420 141,136 108.61
Shareholders’ equity ‘ 148,403 118,798 24.92
Number of common shares outstanding 8,644,883 $5,038,382 7.55

.
Share data have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to a 10% common stock dividend paid to shareholders of record on
November 22, 2002 and a 5% common stock dividend paid to shareholders of record on December 20, 2004.

*Excludes loans held for sale.

For more financial information about the Company, please refer to SCBT Financial Corporation’s 2005 Annual Report on Form
10-K, a copy of which is included with the package provided to the Company’s shareholders in connection with the Company’s
2006 annual meeting of shareholders.




DR. RONA BELFORD
President
Belford Research, Inc.
Bluffton, SC

SN g A

Belford Research Inc. is a

Microelectronics Research Company
specializing in Electronic Materials,
in particular straining semiconductor

materials and devices.

’ Frankly, most banks, especially the
larger ones in the area, looked at me a
little skeptically. They gave inappropriate
advice and were really not in tune with
the needs of a small operation. They
didn’t know or weren't interested.

They were unsure of what to make of a
woman with a Ph.D. running a high-tech
physical electronics company, and in the
lowcountry, no less. Cne bank did listen
and responded with useful, honest advice
and service, the one bank that took my
business seriously and helped to launch
the new building was South Carolina
Bank and Trust. They gave me and my
business personal attention, which all
“start ups” need in the early stages,

and they’ve continued to be efficient,
accurate and flexible as we’ve grown.
When it came to making a choice of
banks, it was one of the best decisions
I've made. The employees of South
Carolina Bank and Trust are professional
and honest; they respect what | want to

accomplish. | appreciate that.”



¢ approach
get started.”




ROBERT CASTELLANI
President

DEAN BUGNAR
CFO

North American
Rescue Products, Inc.

Greenville, SC

i
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North American Rescue Products, Inc.
develops products and training
simulations that have a

direct correlation to decreasing
preventable deaths on

the battlefield.

”We like to think that we’re doing things
for the right reasons. For instance, our
business provides products for combat
medical situations; products that will
ultimately save soldier and civilian lives. We
provide real-life simulations to train medics
before they go into combat situations. And
we do things like having vocational rehab
patients assemble our products, which helps
them feel productive while they’re getting
back on their feet. We wanted a bank that
has the same sort of emotional barometer
we Have, a bank that possesses the same
sense of obligation to do the right thing in
the community. Cur choice was South
Carolina Bank and Trust. They've helped
our business grow, and they’ve even helped
us set up our charity accounts. They

understand what we're all about, because

they took the time to know us.”






DAVID R. FISHER
President
Creek Harbour Land
Development, LLC
Murrells Inlet, SC

Now, you may not realize it to look

at me, but | move pretty darn fast. You

have to when you're trying to develop

property in a resort area that’s growing

by leaps and bounds. | needed a bank

that moves at the same pace | do, and

I've got to teil you, | interviewed a lot

of places before | made a decision. You

see, | wanted a bank that wasn’t afraid

Creek Harbour is the epitome to give me advice. | wanted a bank
of quiet, lowcountry living in a that let me talk directly to the decision
natural environment, close to the makers. | wanted a bank that had the
conveniences of Murrells Inlet same sort of entrepreneurial spirit | had.
and the Grand Strand. Lucky for me, | found one that gave

me everything | wanted... SunBank.

Hey, it wasn’t a selfish choice, just a

smart one.”
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SCBT and South Carolina’s
HIGHER EDUCATION

The way we see it, the future is as

close as tomorrow, and as clichéd as that

might sound, the students attending

Claflin, SC State and OC Tech are a crucial

part of our future. They are decision

makers-in-training; they are visionaries

just learning to look down the road.

If we don't train them properly and give

them the opportunities to lead, South
Carolina may continue to lag in the areas
where we’d like to be first. Our bank has
its origins right here. And that’s why we
feel such an obligation to have the origins
of the new South Carolina right here as
well. As long as we're around, we'll be

supporting these schools. It's probably

the smartest investment we’ll ever make.”
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MARKET GROWTH
PROJECTED 2005-2010

5 Key SC Markets” 7.7%
Southeast: 6.5%
United States: 4.8%

*MSA’: Columbia, Charleston-North Charleston,

Greenville-Spartanburg-Anderson, Charlotte-
Gastonia-Rock Hill, Myrtle Beach

2005 was a year of immense growth for

South Carolina. The state attracted a high

level of $1.27 billion in investments by neyi
companies entering South Carolina

to start or expand their business. The
job creation rate from these companies
was the second highest since the SC

Department of Commerce began tracking

records. The projected average wage for
these new jobs was 13% higher than last

year’s and 45% higher than the State’s

current per capita income.
Former New Commerce main office at

East Butler Road and Interstate 385 For SCBT, growth continues to be a
priority. In 2005, we acquired SunBank,
Devine Mortgage and New Commerce
Bank, opened a new office in Hilton Head
and broke ground on a new branch in
Fort Mill, expanding our services to reach
even more communities throughout the
state. South Carolina is booming, and
it is part of SCBT’s mission to support
our communities with that growth.

Source: South Carofina Department of Commerce
2005 Capital Investment Report.
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SCBT FINANCIAL / Stock Performance

and Statistics

The financial information on pages 18 through 21 should be read in conjunction with Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Operations
and Financial Condition and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the more detailed financial statements and the notes thereto, all of which

are contained in SCBT Financial Corporation’s 2005 Annual

Report on Form 10-K.

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
STOCK PERFORMANCE
Dividends per share 3 0.68 ) - 0.65 $ 0.63 $ 0.54 $ 0.50
Dividend payout ratic 34.29% 36,66% 33.98% 33.71% 32.63%
Dividend yield
{based on the average of
the high and low for the year) 2.14% 2.06% 2.45% 2.42% 3.32%
Price/earnings ratio (end of year)
(based on year-end stock price
and diluted earnings per share) 16.46x 19.52x 15.70x 13.45x 11.07x
Price/book ratio (end of year) 1.95x 2.27x 2.05x 1.78x 1.44x
COMMON STOCK STATISTICS
Stock price ranges:
High $ 3489 § 3738 & 30.67 $ 27.96 $ 18.83
Low 28.53 25.60 20.52 16.73 11.26
Close 33.42 33.57 28.58 22.86 16.71
Volume traded on exchanges 2,202,700 1,711,500 1,436,000 2,049,200 837,900
As a percentage of average
shares outstanding 27.09% 21.23% 17.81% 25.46% 10.35%
Earnings per share, basic $ 2.05 $ 1.74 $ 1.83 $ 1.72 $ 1.51
Earnings per share, diluted 2.03 1.72 1.82 1.70 1.51
Book value per share 17.17 14.77 13.91 12.85 11.57
QUARTERLY COMMON STOCK PRICE RANGES AND DIVIDENDS
Quarter 2005 2004 2003
High Low Dividend| High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
Ist $33.250  $28.530 $0.170 $31.667  $28.762 $0.162 $26.667  $20.524  $0.152
2nd $32.000  $28.810 $0.170 $31.143  $25.600 $0.162 $26.752  $23.486  $0.152
3rd $34.890  $31.350  $0.170 $30.762  $25.810 $0.162 $26.971  $23.857 §0.162
4th $34.340  $30.980  $0.170 $37.381  $28.086 $0.162 | $30.667  $26.333  $0.162

Per share data have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to a 10% common stock dividend paid to shareholders of record on
November 22, 2002 and a 5% common stock dividend paid to shareholders of record on December 20, 2004.
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SCBT FINANCIAL / Selected Consqlidated Financial Data

At Decemnber 31

(Dollars in thousands, except per share) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Assets $1,925,856 $ 1,436,977 $1,197,692 $ 1,144,948  § 1,025,682
Loans, net of unearned income* 1,535,901 1,153,230 938,760 863,422 748,080
Investment securities ‘ 182,744 . 165,446 152,009 164,951 189,933
Deposits 1,473,289 1,171,313 947,399 898,163 811,523
Nondeposit borrowings ; 294,420 141,136 133,017 138,116 116,117
Shareholders’ equity 148,403 118,798 112,349 103,495 93,065
Number of locations ; a1 5’- 34 32 32 30
Full-time equivalent employees 590 ) 513 514 480 442
SELECTED RATIOS
Return on average equity : 13.19% 12.20% 13.72% 14.09% 13.64%
Return on average assets 1.00 1.05 1.23 1.28 1.21
Average equity as a percentage

of average assets 7.56 8.65 9.00 9.05 8.91
ASSET QUALITY RATIOS
Allowance for loan losses to .

period end loans 1.30% - 1.25% 1.25% 1.28% 1.28%
Allowance for loan losses to period

end nonperforming loans 468.74 442.64 173.30 233.47 203.74
Nonperforming assets to period k

end loans and OREO 0.30 0.43 0.87 0.67 0.74
Nonperforming assets to period

end total assets . 0.24 0.35 0.88 0.51 0.47
Net charge-offs to average loan;s 0.11 0.15 0.19 0.25 0.19
*Excludes loans held for sale

it Sylee T Soings
27% 5%
NOW Accounts
19%

Consumer
16%

‘ Time Deposits
Commercial & CRE & Commercial Demand 41%
Industrial Secured by Real Estate Deposits (NIBL)
12% 42% 17%
LOAN MiX DEPOSIT MIX
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SCBT FINANCIAL / Consolidated Balance Sheets
Year Ended December 31
(Doliars in thousands, except par valie) 2005 2004
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and due from banks $ 58,554 s 39,261
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 3,140 14,876
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreement to resell 41,440 3,000
Total cash and cash equivaients 103,134 57,137
Investment securities:
Securities held to maturity
(fair value of $18,453 in 2005 and $25,406 in 2004) 18,194 24,604
Securities available for sale, at fair value 153,628 135,058
Other investments 10,922 5,784
Total investment securities 182,744 165,446
Loans held for sale 12,961 13,837
Loans 1,535,918 1,153,407
Less unearned income a7 (177)
Less allowance for loan losses (20,025) (14,470
Loans, net 1,515,876 1,138,760
Premises and equipment, net 43,664 33,667
Goodwill 32,220 3,717
Other assets 35,257 24,413

Total assets

$ 1,925,856

$ 1,436,977

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing $ 254,099 $ 224,027
Interest-bearing 1,219,190 947,286
Total deposits 1,473,289 1,171,313
Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase 150,163 89,208
Other borrowings 144,257 51,928
Other liabilities 9,744 5,730
Total ligbilities 1,777,453 1,318,179
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock - $2.50 par value; authorized 40,000,000 shares; 8,644,883
and 7,657,094 shares issued and outstanding in 2005 & 2004, respectively 21,612 19,143
Stock dividend distributable - 955
Surplus 90,481 72,079
Retained earnings 37,614 26,486
Accumulated other comprehensive income (1,304) 135
Total shareholders’ equity 148,403 118,798

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

3 1,925,856

$ 1,436,977
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SCBT FINANCIAL / Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended Deceinber 31

(Dollars in thousands, except per share) 2005 2004 2003
Interest income:
Loans, including fees $ 85,590 3 61,267 58,283
Investment securities:
Taxable 6,162 4,861 4,682
Tax-exempt 1,217 1,461 1,679
undec ageements o st 949 138 &
Money market funds 1 11 67
Deposits with banks 374 175 61
Total interest income 94,293 67,913 64,854
Interest expense:
Deposits ‘ 21,146 11,243 11,555
Federal funds purchased and secﬁrities
sold under agreements to repurchase 3,031 687 545
Other borrowings 4,533 2,713 2,522
Total interest expense 28,710 14,643 14,622
Net interest income:
Net interest income 65,583 53,270 50,232
Provision for loan losses 4,907 4,332 2,345
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 60,676 48,938 47,887
Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts 12,473 11,854 11,537
Other service charges and fees 11,375 9,030 11,378
Gain on sale of assets 7 1,766 -
Total noninterest income 23,855 22,650 22,915
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 34,074 27,762 28,670
Net occupancy expense 3,493 3,309 2,887
Furniture and equipment expense 4,340 4,447 4,397
Realized losses on securities available for sale 202 4 -
Other expense 17,244 15,613 12,761
Total noninterest expense 60,053 51,135 48,715
Earnings:
Income before provision for income taxes 24,478 20,453 22,087
Provision for income taxes 7,823 6,437 7,301
Net income b 16,655 3 14,016 14,786
Earnings per share:
Basic 3 2.08 $ 1.74 1.83
Diluted 3 2.03 $ 1.72 1.82
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SCBT Financial Corporation Board of Directors: (standing, left to right) Dwight W. Frierson, A. Dewall Waters,

M. Oswald Fogle, Robert R. Hill, Jr., Robert R. Horger, Susie H. VanHuss, Ph.D., James W. Roquerore, Thomas E. Suggs,
Ralph W. Norman, Jr., Luther |. Battiste, 111, (seated, left to right) Colden R. Battey, Jr., | W. Williamson, 1il, Caine Halter,
Harry M. Mims, Jr., Cathy Cox Yeadon, Daltor: B. Floyd, r.
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SCBT FINANCIAL / Board of Directors

Colden R. Battey, Jr.
Partner and Attorney
Harvey & Battey, PA
Beaufort, SC

Luther ). Battiste, 11}
Partner and Attorney

fohnson, Toal & Battiste, PA
Columnbia and Orangeburg, SC

Dalton B. Floyd, jr.

Chairman of the Board, SunBank, N.A.

Attorney and Owrer
The Flovd Law Firm, PC
Surfside Beach, SC

M. Oswald Fogle
President and

Chief Executive Officer
Decolam, Inc.
Orangeburg, SC

Dwight W. Frierson

Vice Chairman of the Board
Vice President and

General Manager

Coca-Cola Bottling Compary
Orangeburg, SC

Caine Halter

President
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Greenville, SC
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President and

Chief Executive Officer
Columbia, SC
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Horger, Barnwell & Reid
Orangeburg, SC

Harry M. Mims, Jr.
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Orangeburg, SC
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james W. Roquemore
Chief Exccutive Officer
Patten Seed Company, Inc.
General Manager
Super-Sod/Caroling
Orangeburg, SC

Thomas E. Suggs
President and

Chief Executive Officer
Keenain & Suggs, Inc.
Columbia, SC

Susie H. VanHuss, Ph.D.

Executive Director

University of South Carolina Foundations
Coltmbia, SC

A. Dewall Waters
Partner/Owner

A.D. Waters Enterprises, LLC
Orangeburg, 5C

J.W. Williamson, Il
President

J.W. Williamson Ginnery, Inc.
Denmark, 5C

Cathy Cox Yeadon

Vice President, Human Resources
Cox Industries, Ic.

Orangeburg, SC




Standing, left to right:

Richard C. Mathis
Executive Vice President '
and Chief Financial Officer .
Robert R. Hili, )r.

President and
Chief Executive Officer
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President and \
Chief Executive Officer !
SCBT of the Piedmont '

John C. Pollok !

Senior Executive Vice President

and Chief Operating Officer !

Seated, left to right:

joe E. Burns
Executive Vice President
and Chief Credit Officer

Dane H. Murray
Executive Vice President
and Division Head
Lowcountry and
QOrangeburg Regions

john F. Windley
Executive Vice President
and Division Head
Upstate, Midlands and
Beaufort Regions
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Myrtle Beach, SC
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Georgetown Pediatric Center, PA
Georgetown, SC

Judy B. Long

Owner
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and Salt Peddler, LLC
Pawleys Island, 5C

Georgie B. Martin
Owner
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Surfside Beach, SC

Thomas 0. Morris, jr.
Pharmacist and Owner

Home Medical Care

and Hemingway Pharmacy, Inc.
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President and

Chief Executive Officer
Keenan & Suggs, inc.
Columbia, SC
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A.D. Waters Enterprises, LLC
Orangeburg, SC
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President
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Cox Industries, Inc.
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President and Owner
Jo-Lin Enterprises
Surfside Beach, SC
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Senior Executive Vice President
and Chief Operating Officer
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Left to right (back row)

‘Thomas Bouchette
President and

Chief Executive Officer
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Senior Vice President !
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Senior Vice President
Orangeburg Regional President
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President
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Senior Vice President
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M EXISTING MARKETS BY COUNTY

* Bamberg * Charleston e Florence * Horry * Lexington
* Beaufort » Colleton * Georgetown * Jasper * Orangeburg
¢ Berkeley * Dorchester * Greenville ¢ Lancaster *» Richland

* York

B TARGETED EXPANSION MARKETS BY COUNTY

* Anderson
o Spartanburg

ALL DAY BANKING

As SCBT expanded to more and more location{s throughout South Caralina, we also
made a commitment to expand our hours. In 2005, SCBT introduced All Day Banking.
Now, every transacticn made Monday through Friday during business hours at any
location throughout the state will be credited that business day. It's about banking

on our customers’ schedules, not the other way around.

FREE ONLINE BANKING

2005 saw the introduction of Free Online Banking, giving every customer worldwide,

convenient, round-the-clock access to his or her personal accounts.

This information is currentt as of February 28, 2006.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

General Office

SCBT Financial Corporation
520 Gervais Street
Columbia, SC 29201

www.SCBandT.com

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held
at 2 p.m. on Tuesday, April 25, 2006 in the
Dorchester-fasper Room on the 2nd Floor,

520 Gervais Street in Columbia, South Carolina.

Form 10-K and Other Information

Copies of SCBT Financial Corporation’s Annual
Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission
on Form 10-K (excluding exhibits thereto), and other
information may be obtained without charge by
written request to:

Karen L. Dey

Controller

SCBT Financial Corporation
Post Office Box 1030
Columbia, SC 29202

(803) 765-4621

Analyst Contact

Richard C. Mathis

Chief Financial Officer
SCBT Financial Corporation
Post Office Box 1030
Columbia, SC 29202

(803) 765-4618

Stock information

The Company’s Common Stock is listed on
the NASDAQ® Stock Market under the trading
symbol SCBT.

28










——————————————

Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income ' S 16,655 § 14,016 $ 14,786
Adjustments to reconcile net incomerto net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . 10 11 12
Gain on sale of premises and equipment ' - - 2
Decrease (increase) in other assets ’ (136) 110 17
Decrease in other liabilities ‘ 277 @) (161)
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (12,385) (8,655) (9,917)
Net cash provided by operating activities : 3,867 5,475 4,735

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of investment securities available for sale - (110) : -
Payments for investments in subsidiaties ‘ (40,916) - -
Repayment of loan to subsidiary : - - 299
Recoveries on loans previously charged off - 16 -
Purchases of premises and equipment _ - (685) (15)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment ' - - 18
Other, net i ' 685 - -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (40,231) (779) 302
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 41,239 - -
Cash dividends paid I (5,527) - (5,228) (5,070)
Common stock issuance ‘ 877 427 294
Common stock redeemed ; (252) (3,590) (53)
Stock options exercised ' 395 1,304 100
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ' 36,732 (7,087) (4,729)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ' 368 (2,391) 308
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 603 2,994 2,686
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year : ' $ 971 % 603 $ 2,994
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